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Corporate Overview

NGIE P

Founded in Chongging in 2004, Hanhua Financial Holding Co.,
Ltd. (*Hanhua Financial’, “Hanhua” or the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries named as the “Group”, “we”, “our” or “us”)
(Stock Code: 3903) was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) via issue of H
shares in 2014, and has now expanded its business portfolio to
include financing guarantee, commercial banking, financial asset
management and equity investment. As at the end of 2021, the
Company had a registered capital of RMB4.6 billion, total assets
of RMB12.4 billion and net assets of RMB8 billion. Since its
establishment, the Company has recorded cumulative business
turnover of over RMB300 billion, providing services to more than
200,000 small and medium-sized enterprises (“SMEs”) and more
than 2,000,000 individual customers.

Credit guarantee. Hanhua Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd.
(“Hanhua Guarantee”), established in 2009 with a registered
capital of RMB3.5 billion, has established 26 branches across the
country and gained a long-term corporate credit rating of AA+. As
at the end of 2021, Hanhua Guarantee had net assets of RMB4
billion, and outstanding guarantee balance of RMB32.5 billion.
Hanhua Guarantee has provided services to a total of 50,000
SMEs.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Commercial banking. Chongqging Fumin Bank Co., Ltd. (“Fumin
Bank”), a private bank established in 2016 with Hanhua Financial
as the lead promoter, is owned as to 30% by Hanhua Financial, its
largest shareholder. Fumin Bank is the first private bank normally
approved by the government. In line with its mission of “supporting
micro businesses & helping startups and enriching the people &
prospering the country”, Fumin Bank is committed to better serving
micro and small-sized enterprises, agricultural industry, rural areas
and farmers as well as innovative startups by innovating the service
methods and business models of digital inclusive finance. Since
its establishment, Fumin Bank has developed a series of digital
featured products such as Fumin Bao, Fuyi Loan and E-Bills Quick
Discounting to cater to the needs of SMEs, which was recognized
by the People’s Bank of China and well-received among customers.
As at the end of 2021, Fumin Bank had total assets of RMB54.1
billion, total loans of RMB37.7 billion, total liabilities of RMB50.2
billion and total deposits of RMB28.6 billion, with its financial
services benefiting more than 10 million customers.

Financial asset management. Liaoning Fu’an Financial Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (‘Fu’an Asset”) was established in 2017
jointly by Hanhua Financial (as the lead promoter) and a local state-
owned enterprise, with a registered capital of RMB1 billion. Fu’an
Asset is the second local asset management company in Liaoning
Province. Based in Liaoning and radiating across the country, Fu’'an
Asset provides financial institutions and enterprises with services
such as transfer and disposal of non-performing assets, debt
restructuring, investment management, financing innovation.
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Corporate Information

NEEF

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES
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Mr. Qian Shizheng (Independent Non-executive Director) (Chairman)
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang (Non-executive Director)
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin (Independent Non-executive Director)

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REHEFHNEZES
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu (Independent Non-executive Director) (Chairman) BRmEE (BIUIENTES) (/)
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STRATEGIC INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang (Executive Director) (Chairman)
Mr. Cui Weilan (Executive Director)
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu (Independent Non-executive Director)

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang (Executive Director) (Chairman)
Mr. Cui Weilan (Executive Director)
Ms. Liu Tingrong (Non-executive Director)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ren Weidong

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Cui Weilan (Executive Director)
Mr. Ren Weidong (Company Secretary)

REGISTERED OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

6-9, Building 2, 11 East Honghu Road
Yubei District

Chongging

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Rm 1203, 12/F, Man Yee Building
68 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong
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Corporate Information

NEEF

HEAD OFFICES IN THE PRC

1st Floor, Building A, No. 2 Fortune Tower
No. 15 Caifu Avenue

Chongging

PRC

and

No. 1 Beizhong Street, Inner Dongzhimen
Dongcheng District

Beijing

PRC

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation (Headquarters)
No. 25 Financial Street

Xicheng District

Beijing

PRC

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. (Headquarters)
No. 7088 Shennan Boulevard

Futian District

Shenzhen

Guangdong Province

PRC
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Corporate Information
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Financial Reporting Council Ordinance BB
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LEGAL ADVISOR TO THE COMPANY AQNAEEER
Jones Day REEBEEESEM
COMPANY’S WEBSITE NGIE D
www.hanhua.com www.hanhua.com
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Summary of Financial Data and Key Performance Indicators

BRBENREREEEEHNE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) (Br BB I AARBEBETYIR)

% Increase/
(decrease) of

the current year
compared with
2021 2020 last year 2019 2018 2017
RENEE
2021% 20206 HOA)% 2019 2018F 017F
Operating results RExE
Operating income 2EWA 858.2 1,154.0 (25.6) 1,246.8 1,509.6 1,505.1
- Net guarantee and consulting fee income ~ — 2R RZABFRA 4770 528.0 0.7 6107 6745 631.4
~ Net interest and handling fee income -FERFEBFHA 231.1 4281 (46.0) 5789 781.0 811.7
(Reversal)/provision for quarantee losses (&) /3R (36.5) (12.5) 192.0 (5.4) (1.1) 26.7
BEERS
Impairment losses EERERA 194.8 198.0 (1.6) 113.1 2574 264.3
Operating expenses BB 633.4 674.1 (6.0 756.3 815.2 7914
Net profi R 112.3 208.0 46.0) 293.0 3285 3134
Profitability indicators BRENRE
Return on average total assets'! T REERRED 0.8% 1.3% (0.5 ppt BAE) 1.6% 1.7% 1.7%
Return on average shareholders’ equity? ~ FHRREZRBEE 1.4% 26% (1.2ppt AR E) 3.7% 4.1% 4.0%
Cost to income ratio® RARALD 72.0% 57.2% 148 ppt EA 59.6% 52.9% 51.5%
Scale indicators REEE
Total assets EEBE 12,357.1 14,863.6 (169)  17,526.5 18,845.7 18,906.6
- Cash and cash equivalents -ERES 795.0 1,505.2 (47.2) 1,636.1 1,903.2 2,436.4
- Gross loans and advances to customers  —EHEZX R BHLEE 1,378.2 2292.3 (39.9) 4,862.3 5,845.3 8,065.3
- Gross recelvables for factoring business ~ —JERIE 48 %8 1,260.1 1,292.9 (2.5) 1,706.5 2,399.9 1,659.9
Total liabilties AfELR 4,319.8 6,766.7 (362 96139 109818 108350
Owner’s equity FEEER 8,037.3 8,096.9 0.7) 79126 7,863.9 8,071.6
Notes: TR
(1) Net profit divided by average balance of total assets as at the (1) FAEBRABBYI R EARE FIIEEEREE -
beginning and end of the year.
(2)  Net profit divided by average balance of shareholders’ equity as at the (2 FFEER AR RERA TR R E RS
beginning and end of the year. LER
(3) Operating expenses after deducting “tax and surcharges” divided by (B KR [IFHERHNIMEETL  BRIAZE
operating income. LN
(4) To facilitate comparison, some historical figures are restated on new 4 BRABLER FHELEHBECRBIHOG

calculation basis or logic.
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As a Chinese proverb says, everything goes through ups and
downs as seasons change. Looking back on 2021, the persistent
COVID-19 pandemic severely impacted every aspect of economic,
social and financial activities, leaving SMEs struggling to sustain
their operations. In the face of the complex and changing market
environment, the Company managed to cope with the adverse
factors by proactively adapting to new changes and requirements
of customers and business partners and enhancing its digital
capability while maintaining stable operations, which has achieved
considerable results.

New business grew steadily. In 2021, the transaction amount of
non-financing guarantee business amounted to RMB38.6 billion,
representing an increase of 131.7% as compared to that of 2020.
In particular, electronic bid guarantee business grew rapidly and
registered transaction amount of RMB34.2 billion (2020: RMB9.3
billion), taking a leading position in the industry. By leveraging
Hanhua Cloud Chain platform, Hanhua’s electronic guarantee
business has been officially put into operation in more than 230
urban public resources trading centres in 28 provinces across the
country, including Sichuan, Shandong, Zhejiang, Jiangsu, Anhui,
Guangdong, Hunan and Shaanxi. In 2021, the average outstanding
balance per customer of non-financing guarantee business was
RMB800,000. Our non-financing guarantee business segment has
provided services to tens of thousands of customers, effectively
reducing the financial burden of SMEs and improving transaction
efficiency.

Chairman’s Report
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Chairman’s Report

EERWRE

Structural adjustment has achieved initial success. Upholding
the principles of “staying close to the livelihood of people, staying
close to the industry and serving SMEs”, the Company developed
its guarantee business in a prudent, steady and moderate
manner. In response to the changes in the market environment,
the Company promoted digital transformation and adjusted
business structure, and proactively shifted its focus to non-
financing guarantee business in 2021. As at the end of 2021, the
balance of non-financing guarantee business was RMB16.3 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 34.0%; while the balance
of financing guarantee business was RMB16.1 billion, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 26.7%. With Hanhua Guarantee as the
mainstay, the Company has concentrated its efforts on developing
towards digital finance, proactively connected industry scenarios
and enhanced scenario building to actualize comprehensive digital
operations. Fu’an Asset has established cooperation with more
than 40 banks, including state-owned banks, joint-stock banks,
city commercial banks, rural commercial banks and rural credit
cooperatives, and has acquired RMB27.3 billion of non-performing
assets since its establishment. At the end of 2021, the debt assets
under management of Fu’an Asset amounted to RMB7.25 billion.
Fumin Bank has been striving to innovate the service modes and
business models of digital inclusive finance to better serve SMEs,
agriculture industry, rural areas and farmers and innovative startups,
and recorded total comprehensive income of RMB360 million in
2021. The digital featured products developed by Fumin Bank,
such as Fumin Bao, Fuyi Loan and E-Bills Quick Discounting, were
recognized by the People’s Bank of China and well-received in the
market.

Asset quality improved significantly. In 2021, we further worked
towards “safety first, customer base upgrade, comprehensive
income and compliant credit extension”, and implemented whole-
process risk management and control at all levels through “product
management”. As a result, the quality of our assets continued to
improve, while core risk management indicators such as default
payment and default rate continued to decline. In 2021, the default
rate was 0.4%, representing a decrease of 0.2 percentage point
as compared to that of 2020. As at the end of 2021, the collateral
coverage rate of traditional financing guarantee business was
66.0%. The collateral coverage rate of bond guarantee business
was over 80%, and over 90% of the bonds guaranteed had an “AA”
or higher issuer credit rating.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Looking ahead, technologies such as the Internet, big data, cloud
computing, artificial intelligence and blockchain have profoundly
changed all industries, and the digitalization of the financial industry
is picking up pace. Hanhua will always keep in mind its original
aspiration to provide financial services to the development of SMEs,
and take the initiative to innovate and reform to benefit from the
development of digital economy in the new era.

With digital transformation as the core strategy. With the
increasing sophistication of technologies, the financial industry is
well-positioned to reform its service mode, marketing model and risk
control model through technological means and thereby upgrade
its growth model. After 17 years of development, the Company has
successfully established a professional, standardized and inclusive
market brand, and accumulated rich resources in terms of business
licenses, management teams, technologies and market networks.
The Company will build on its success to start a new chapter by
promoting comprehensive digital transformation, and move towards
digital finance by applying new technologies and techniques to its
products, services and operations, thereby enhancing its capability
in an all-round way to better serve SMEs and reconstructing its own
development model.

With building fintech capabilities as the core mission. The
financial sector has a vocation to serve the real economy and
support industrial development, and the digitisation of finance
must be premised on in-depth collaboration and connection with
industry scenarios. In this regard, we will have in-depth cooperation
with industry scenarios that meet needs of national strategies
and social development and have sufficient customer base and
potential for expansion, a complete industrial chain and a stable
competitive landscape, so as to create accurate customer profiling
and labeling and digitalize operations. We will further enhance our
risk management capability by creating a digital risk control model,
developing a more professional and efficient approval mechanism,
optimizing our forward-looking risk prevention and control system
and building a strong risk management system and team.

Chairman’s Report
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Chairman’s Report

EERWRE

With digital organizational capability as the bedrock.
Digitisation requires innovative, agile and efficient organizational
capabilities. Therefore, we will streamline our governance structure
and strengthen value growth and sustainable development. In
particular, we will build a streamlined and efficient organizational
system by delegating more authority to lower-level management and
shorten decision-making process, thereby improving organizational
efficiency. We will design an innovative talent management system
to adjust personnel structure, improve per capita efficiency, and
stimulate organizational vitality. We will also build a robust long-
acting evaluation and incentive mechanism to promote stable and
sustainable development.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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The financial information set out in this annual report was prepared
on a consolidated basis according to the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”). Unless otherwise stated, the
financial information of the Group is expressed in RMB million.

Financial Highlights
M E

REERE MBI IEERTIAR G EER
REBVBHRELEL ([EBUMBREE
ADRE - R BEEHIN REEB T
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For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2021 2020
20214 20204

% of % of

operating operating

Amount income Amount income

Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2 EEKA T IEERA
(BRBAEFHEMN UARBFETLIIR) % %

Operating results REEE

Net guarantee and consulting fee income ~ #&{R &350 & B WA 477.0 55.6 528.0 45.8
Net interest and handling fee income FERFEBFRA 231.1 26.9 428.1 37.1
Net fee and interest income FFEEBRABKRA 708.1 82.5 956.1 82.9
Net trading gain R 55z 76.1 8.9 72.1 6.2
Net foreign exchange losses 0 5 R &8 (0.3 - (0.1) =
Other operating income, net Hth 2 3E F WA 74.3 8.7 125.9 10.9
Operating income EEWA 858.2 100.0 1,154.0 100.0
Reversal for guarantee losses BEERBEEES 36.5 4.3 12.5 1.1
Impairment losses BERBEEX (194.7) (22.7) (198.0) (17.1)
— Receivables for default payments — R ER (51.4) (6.0) (201.1) (17.4)
— Micro and small loan business —\HEEER 6.6 0.8 52.7 4.6
- Entrusted loans —REEXK (13.0) (1.5) (9.0) (0.8)
— Receivables for factoring business —BRRER (138.3) (16.1) (11.5) (1.0)
- Finance lease receivables — W EMRER 1.4 0.2 (29.1) (2.5)
Operating expenses BEYH (633.4) (73.8) 674.1) (58.4)
- Operation and administrative expenses ~— %K REEE (618.1) (72.0) (660.0) (57.2)
- Tax and surcharges —® e K& (15.3) (1.8) (14.1) 1.2)
Other net losses Hi 1% (13.1) (1.5) (48.9) 4.2)
Share of profits of associates Bt EREKRE 110.6 12.9 57.9 5.0
Profit before taxation BRI B 164.1 19.1 303.4 26.4
Income tax expenses FiEAT (51.8) (6.0) (95.4) (8.3
Net profit for the year REFFHE 112.3 13.1 208.0 18.1
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Financial Highlights
M E

The Group pursued a “customer-oriented” strategy in business
expansion. Externally, “single customer access and unified credit
standards” have been implemented through “customer expansion
and risk management” to improve the quality of customer
service; internally, with the objectives of “integration of functions
and efficiency enhancement”, it strengthened the integration of
functions, especially the mid-and-back office, for higher operating
efficiency and lower operating cost. In 2021, the Group continued
to operate through four major business segments, namely the
partnership finance business segment, the micro and small loan
business segment, the capital investment and management
business segment and other segment.

Partnership finance business segment:

Partnership finance business segment mainly engages in the
provision of integrated financing services for SME clients covered by
the national operating network of the Group, which primarily include
credit guarantee, capital business (capital business mainly includes
receivables for factoring business, bill discount, entrusted loans),
financial assets management and other services.

Micro and small loan business segment:

Micro and small loan business segment consists of eight small loan
companies in Chongging, Chengdu, Tianjin, Shenyang, Nanning,
Guiyang, Nanjing and Shenzhen, as well as institutions with
functions such as information consulting, asset management and
credit services, with focus on offering “small-amount and diversified”
integrated financial services to various micro and small enterprises,
individual business proprietors and individuals.

Capital investment and management business segment:
This segment provides capital investment services to certain SMEs

that have growth potential and value, by utilization of its own funds
and raising funds through cooperation with external institutions.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Other segment:

This segment represents the aggregation of other business lines
and the operational results that undertake management functions of
the headquarters and cannot be completely divided into any of the
above segments.

The Group has continued to adjust the business structure and
customer structure, and provide integrated financial services
to micro, small and medium-sized enterprises (“MSMEs”) and
individuals based on the “customer-oriented” strategy. At the same
time, “performance management” has been used as a means to
enhance the risk control awareness of all staff. Assets quality of
new businesses improved significantly as admission criteria for new
customers was strengthened and management on collaterals was
stepped up. Meanwhile, the recovery of historical non-performing
assets was strengthened and achieved good progress.

In 2021, the net profit of the Group amounted to RMB112.3 million,
representing a decrease of RMB95.7 million or 46.0% as compared
to the net profit of RMB208.0 million in 2020, the analysis of which
is as follows:

° Remarkable results have been achieved effectively in
the transformation of credit guarantee business, the
electronic bid guarantee products continued to maintain
a rapid growth trend and took a leading position in the
industry, gradually becoming a new profit growth point
for the Group’s guarantee business.
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In order to effectively reduce the transaction costs of market
entities, reduce the burden of SMEs, simplify the transaction
process, improve the transaction efficiency and improve the
service function of the electronic bidding and procurement
platform, the Group took a forward-looking approach and
developed the electronic guarantee platform for bidding and
procurement at the end of 2018. Since the issuance of the
first electronic bid guarantee at the Dazhou Public Resources
Trading Centre, Sichuan Province in December 2018, the
electronic bid guarantee has been officially put into operation
in more than 230 urban public resources trading centres in 28
provinces across the country, including Sichuan, Shandong,
Zhejiang, Jiangsu, Anhui, Guangdong, Hunan and Shaanxi,
with rapid development.

The electronic bid guarantee business continued to maintain
a rapid growth trend and registered transaction amount of
RMB34,216.7 million in 2021 (2020: RMB9,338.1 million),
taking a leading position in the industry and gradually
becoming a new profit growth point for the Group’s guarantee
business.

Due to the delay of the contribution of new electronic bid
guarantee business to operating income, and the reduced
scale of traditional financing guarantee business and bond
guarantee business, the Group’s net guarantee and consulting
fee income generated from credit guarantee business in 2021
decreased by RMB51.0 million or 9.7% as compared to that of
2020.

In view of the default in payment of some commercial
acceptance bills held under receivables for factoring
business, the Group has made adequate provision for
impairment losses to cope with the potential risk of loss.
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In 2021, the default in payment of commercial acceptance
bills issued by certain enterprises led to an increase in the
default rate of receivables for factoring business of the Group
with the collection of commercial acceptance bills as the main
repayment source. As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2021, the balance of overdue receivables for factoring business
was RMB58.3 million and RMB376.0 million, respectively,
representing a year-on-year increase of RMB317.7 million or
544.9%. As a result, the interest and handling fee income from
the receivables for factoring business decreased to RMB130.9
million in 2021, representing a decrease of RMB79.1 million or
37.7% as compared with RMB210.0 million in 2020.

The Group established a special working group to take stock
of overdue bills, actively communicated with bill acceptors,
bill holders and bill endorsers, and implemented specific
collection plans according to the specific conditions of each
business. At present, significant progress has been made
and the ultimate risk of loss is manageable. Nevertheless, the
Group has adopted a prudent assessment system and made
adequate provision for impairment of overdue receivables for
factoring business to enhance its anti-risk capacity. In 2021,
the provision for impairment losses of receivables for factoring
business of the Group was RMB138.3 million, representing an
increase of RMB126.8 million or 1,102.6% as compared with
the provision for impairment losses of RMB11.5 million in 2020.
As at 31 December 2021, the provision rate of the receivables
for factoring business was 14.3% (31 December 2020: 3.2%),
representing a significant year-on-year increase.
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The scale of credit lending business of the micro and
small loan business segment funded by its own working
capital was reduced for the purpose of business
transformation and upgrading with effectiveness; while
the scale of credit consulting business relating to credit
service output capability remained stable.

In order to achieve the purpose of business transformation
and upgrading with effectiveness, the micro and small loan
business segment proactively adjusted its business structure
and gradually reduced the credit lending business funded
by its own working capital. As a result, the balance of credit
lending business of the micro and small loan business segment
was RMB679.9 million as at 31 December 2021, representing
a decrease of RMB976.3 million or 58.9% as compared with
RMB1,656.2 million as at 31 December 2020.

Since 2018, the micro and small loan business segment has
leveraged the Group’s accumulated experience, capabilities
and strengths in micro and small loan services to provide
credit consulting business to financial institutions such as
external partner banks, including assistance in obtaining
clients, standardized risk assessment services and post-
loan management service, and charged certain service fee
based on services provided. As at 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2021, the balance of credit consulting business
was RMB4,195.8 million and RMB4,134.1 million, respectively,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 1.5%, remaining
relatively stable.
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The assets quality of credit guarantee business
enhanced continuously, with core risk management
indicators such as default payments and default rate on
a downward trend.

In 2021, the total default payments of the Group for defaulting
clients was RMB165.8 million, representing a decrease of
RMB6.0 million or 3.5% as compared with RMB171.8 million
in 2020. Meanwhile, in 2021, the default rate of the Group’s
credit guarantee business (default rate = current default
payment amount/current guarantee amount released) was
0.4% only, representing a significant decline as compared with
0.6% in 2020.

With the continued enhancement in cost management,
the refined management system was gradually formed,
which resulted in the continuous decline in operating
expenses.

In 2021, the Group reported operating expenses of RMB633.4
million, representing a decrease of RMB40.7 million or 6.0% as
compared with the operating expenses of RMB674.1 million
in 2020. The decrease was mainly due to: (1) the continuous
enhancement of human resources management by the Group
and the continuous improvement of operational efficiency
through “process reconstruction and performance adjustment”
resulted in a further decrease in the number of employees.
As at 31 December 2021, the total number of employees of
the Group was 1,125, representing a significant decrease as
compared with 1,377 employees as at 31 December 2020;
(2) the Group commenced to purchase commercial properties
as its own office premises to gradually phase out the original
leasing of offices in certain cities with business since 2017.
With more commercial properties purchased being gradually
put into use, the operating expenses relating to office leasing
have been declining; and (3) the Group continued to adopt
cost optimization management measures and actively reduced
various non-essential expenses. As a result of the combined
impact above, the operation and administrative expenses
showed a declining trend.
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In 2021, the Group continued to adopt cost optimization
management measures to control various expenses. As a
result, the percentage of such expenses in respect of the
total operating expenses remained stable without drastic
fluctuations.

The commercial bank initiated by the Company
developed rapidly with steady operation.

The Company and six other domestic institutions jointly
established Chongging Fumin Bank Co., Ltd. in 2016. The
Company invested RMB900.0 million in Fumin Bank for its
30% equity interest and became its largest shareholder. In
accordance with the requirements of the accounting standards,
this investment is accounted for using the equity method by
the Company.

Fumin Bank adhered to its position in the inclusive financial
market and focused on the digital development. With
products as its means and business as its bridge, Fumin Bank
actively initiated digital financial service business and service
innovation. By adhering to the path of exploring differentiated
characteristics, Fumin Bank achieved better results and
social benefits. Its assets and liabilities maintained a balanced
growth trend in the past several years. As at 31 December
2021, Fumin Bank had total assets of RMB54,131.2 million
(81 December 2020: RMB53,177.2 million) and total liabilities
of RMB50,247.7 million (31 December 2020: RMB49,652.2
million). Meanwhile, its profitability remained stable. In 2021,
Fumin Bank achieved the total comprehensive income of
RMB358.5 million (2020: RMB227.5 million). Accordingly, the
Group recorded gains of RMB107.6 million in “share of profits
of associates” in respect of its investment in Fumin Bank in
2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Credit guarantee
Business expansion and products

The Group kept improving its product portfolio based on the
macroeconomic environment and market conditions, in combination
with needs of business development in the future, to provide
more diversified product support for business marketing. At the
same time, the Group revised and optimized some of its existing
products to meet market changes, and continuously improved
product popularity and competitiveness. In addition, the Group will
continue its product innovation. Such strategies will promote the
constant improvement of the Group’s business product portfolio.
The Group’s guarantee products primarily include guarantee for
direct financing and sale under repurchase agreement transactions
through bank and other fund channels; guarantees for bonds
issued on the stock exchange market, inter-bank markets and other
channels; and other forms of non-financing guarantees such as
electronic bid guarantee and pledge and performance guarantee for
construction projects.

The Group adhered to the principles of compliant operations and
“encouragements and discouragements”, and effectively integrated
the macroeconomic control policies and industry policies of the
government to develop the guarantee business in a prudent, steady
and appropriate manner. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s
outstanding guarantee balance of the credit guarantee business
was RMB32,452.1 million, representing a decrease of RMB1,709.9
million or 5.0% as compared with RMB34,162.0 million as at
31 December 2020. Remarkable results have been achieved
effectively in the transformation of credit guarantee business, the
rapid development of the electronic bid guarantee business, which
has been a key focus of the Company in recent years, has led to
a significant increase in the balance of non-financing guarantee
business. As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021, the
balance of non-financing guarantee business was RMB12,195.0
million and RMB16,340.7 million, respectively, representing a year-
on-year increase of 34.0%. On the other hand, the balance of
financing guarantee business further declined. As at 31 December
2020 and 31 December 2021, the balance of financing guarantee
business was RMB21,967.0 million and RMB16,111.4 million,
respectively, representing a year-on-year decrease of 26.7%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE WD AT

The following table sets forth the key performance indicators of
the credit guarantee business of the partnership finance business
segment of the Group as at the dates indicated:

TREINRFARABRAEEEFERE
BEBIBSHEREREBOREREE
BiEE:

As at 31 December

BZ12R318
2021 2020 Change
20215 20205 L)

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount  Percentage %
(BRRAEZHEN UARBBETIIT) 28 i i AR %
Product distribution of outstanding ERHELRER I

guarantee:
Traditional financing guarantee BHRERR 4,152.4 6,738.0 (2,585.6) (38.4)
Bond guarantee EHFER 11,959.0 15,229.0 (3,270.0) (21.5)
Outstanding financing guarantee MERRERBE 16,111.4 21,967.0 (5,855.6) (26.7)

balance
Outstanding non-financing FREER 16,340.7 12,195.0 41457 34.0

guarantee balance
Total outstanding guarantee balance #/RE%ES 32,452.1 34,162.0 (1,709.9) (5.0)
Traditional financing guarantee business EEREEREK

Traditional financing guarantee business mainly includes bank
financing guarantee and other non-bank financing guarantee. In
2021, the transaction amount of traditional financing guarantee
business was RMB4,332.9 million, representing a decrease of
RMB3,532.3 million or 44.9% as compared with RMB7,865.2 million
in 2020. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s outstanding balance
of traditional financing guarantee business was RMB4,152.4
million, representing a decrease of RMB2,585.6 million or 38.4% as
compared with RMB6,738.0 million as at 31 December 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In the course of conducting business and risk review, the Group has
always adhered to the principle of “small amount dispersion and
reasonable installments”. As at 31 December 2021, the average
balance of individual client for the Group’s traditional financing
guarantee business was RMB6.5 million (31 December 2020:
RMB4.9 million).

The following table sets forth the distribution of balance of the
traditional financing guarantee business by geographical region as
at the dates indicated:

B WA

EFEHHEEARAREBEES AEBHBK
BE[/NEIR-AESH|RE-HZE
2021F12A31H - A B EH B ER
¥EEPIYHERBBEAEARKESHE
BT (2020 12A318: ARB490B &
JT) °

TREINRFAAEHERRERZREY
iR E D MEREBHRES MBI

As at 31 December

BZ12A31H
2021 2020
2021%F 20205
(Expressed in RMB million, unless

otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRAEZHN UARBEETIIT) 2# 1488 % 2 1485 %
Chongaing BE 1,059.2 255 Chongaing BE 1,250.0 18.6
Liaoning BE 693.6 16.7 Liaoning = 830.1 12.3
Jiangsu TE 481.4 11.6  Sichuan )l 582.4 8.6
Sichuan gl 429.2 10.3 Jiangsu L& 557.1 8.3
Heilongjiang BRI 320.2 7.9 Shandong 3 353.5 5.2
Others Hit, 1,159.8 28.0 Others Hft 3,164.9 47.0
Total CH 4,152.4 100.0 Total CH 6,738.0 100.0

As at 31 December 2021, Chongqing, Liaoning, Jiangsu,
Sichuan and Heilongjiang were the five biggest markets in terms
of proportion in the aggregate balance of traditional financing
guarantees, amounting to 72.0%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE WD AT

The following table sets forth the distribution of balance of the
traditional financing guarantee business by industry as at the dates
indicated:

TREINRFAFTAHERBRELZEREH
BMITEEDHMBEREBHRBEIMIFN

As at 31 December

HZ12A31H

2021 2020

20214 2020%F
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BREZHEIN UAREFETLIHIR) b3 A% 8 15458 %
Commercial services B 1,313.5 31.6 1,490.9 221
Construction BHEX 894.3 215 1,451.3 215
Manufacturing and processing BERMIE 768.7 18,5 1,057.6 15.7
Public utilities UNE-S 368.0 8.9 367.0 55
Information technology services 5 B MR % 160.0 3.9 175.8 2.6
Others Hib 647.9 15.6 2,195.4 326
Total a5t 4,152.4 100.0 6,738.0 100.0

As at 31 December 2021, the traditional financing guarantee
business mainly concentrated on commercial services, construction,
manufacturing and processing, public utilities and information
technology services in terms of proportion in the aggregate
balance of traditional financing guarantees. We always adhere
to the idea of “industry diversification” to avoid over-reliance on
a single industry. Meanwhile, in order to effectively spread risks,
our traditional financing guarantee business revolved around the
principles of “staying close to the livelihood of people, staying close
to industry and serving SMEs”, and provided active support for the
development of SMEs.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The following table sets forth the distribution of balance of the
traditional financing guarantee business by risk exposure as at the
dates indicated:

B WA

TREINRXARBHRARBA S D
BRBMEEREBRES M-

As at 31 December

BZ12A318
2021 2020
20214 2020F
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BEEFEIN UAREEETLIT) k2 A5 % 2l 154 %
Less than RMB3 million AREIABTUA 441.5 10.6 2,339.3 34.7
Over RMB3 million to RMB5 million ARBIRELU LR 560.2 13.5 916.8 13.6
ARBSEETL
Over RMB5 million to RMB10 million ARBSHELUEE 986.7 23.8 1,427.7 21.2
AREI0EET
Over RMB10 million to RMB30 million ARBEI0BETULE 1,317.0 31.7 1,303.2 19.3
AREBEET
Over RMB30 million ARBOBEETLMUE 847.0 20.4 751.0 11.2
Total &% 4,152.4 100.0 6,738.0 100.0

While continuing to work with high-quality SME customers, the
Group strengthened its cooperation with quality companies such
as Top 100 Enterprises, leading industry companies and high-
quality listed companies. In the course of conducting business
and risk review, the Group has always adhered to the principle of
“small amount dispersion and reasonable installments”. As at 31
December 2021, the balance of guarantees for SME customers
within the Group’s outstanding guarantee balance of traditional
financing guarantee business of less than RMB10.0 million was
RMB1,988.4 million (31 December 2020: RMB4,683.8 million),
accounting for 47.9% (31 December 2020: 69.5%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE WD AT

The following table sets forth the distribution of the remaining

TREIINATANERBEERER

maturity of the traditional financing guarantee business as at the TR B BHRE S MHIBER:
dates indicated:
As at 31 December
HZ12A318
2021 2020

20214 2020%F
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BEEFHEIN UAREEETLIT) k2 148 % 2H 154858 %
Due within six months 618 A A 1,982.4 47.7 2,669.1 39.6
Due over six months up to one year 6fE AUA F =15 1,819.4 43.8 3,180.7 47.3
Due over one year up to two years 1EN ER2F 24741 6.0 528.9 7.8
Due over two years up to three years 2EN L E3F 90.0 2.2 215.7 3.2
Due over three years SEHE 13.5 0.3 134.6 2.1
Total ait 4,152.4 100.0 6,738.0 100.0

The Group focuses on providing short-term guarantees to respond
quickly to changes in markets and customers. As at 31 December
2021, the balance due within one year of the Group’s traditional
financing guarantee business accounted for 91.5% (31 December

2020: 86.9%).

Bond guarantee business

Currently, “Hanhua Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd.”, mainly engaged

in financing guarantee services of the Group, received

an “AA+”

long-term corporate rating with positive outlook from CSCI
Pengyuan Credit Rating Co., Ltd., Shanghai Brilliance Credit Rating
& Investors Service Co., Ltd., China Lianhe Credit Rating Co., Ltd.

and Dagong Global Credit Rating Co., Ltd., respectively.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2021, the Group provided guarantee services
for a total of 33 bonds worth of RMB11,959.0 million, representing
a decrease of RMB3,270.0 million or 21.5% as compared with the
guarantee balance of RMB15,229.0 million as at 31 December
2020. The decrease was due to the successful release of certain
bond guarantees upon maturity of relevant bonds. Most issuers of
the bonds guaranteed by the Group started to repay the principal in
installments in the third year from the issuance year to reduce their
pressure to repay the principal and the interest in one lump sum at
maturity; In addition, the Group provided guarantee for newly issued
bonds worth of RMB1,500 million in 2021 (2020: Nil).

The following table sets forth the Group’s outstanding bond
guarantee balance by the geographical location of issuer as at the
dates indicated:

B WA

HZ2021F12A318 A& B Xt A
33REHFHEFTARK11,9050.088 T
REERRE  K2020F12831H E R
#%EARB15220 08B LR ARE
3,270.08 BT Eig21.5%  HE TR&IR
REPEHFHNEKINER - A EBIER
MESEEBY BRBHEHFB BT
FERBTENE=ZFHRESHEER
FARE URDETARB -AEER
NEREEN SN 20214 AEB A
BITEESE AT ARYE1,5008 & TIRMEE
1R (20204 : #&)

TREINRXFAFABPAEEREES Z
TTAFTB IR A AT VB S IER AR -

As at 31 December

HZ12A31H
2021 2020
20215 20205
(Expressed in RMB million, unless

otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRAEZHN UARBEELIIT) 2H 1AEE % 3 1485 %
Hunan e 3,500.0 29.3 Hunan wilE 4,320.0 28.4
Jiangsu T & 2,560.0 21.4 Jiangsu TE 3,780.0 24.8
Shandong % 1,420.0 11.9  Tianjin RE 1,260.0 8.3
Chongqing BE 869.0 7.3 Chongging BE 1,229.0 8.1
Anhui ZH 660.0 5.5 Jiangxi i 1,140.0 75
Others Hity 2,950.0 24.6 Others Hit 3,500.0 22.9
Total &% 11,959.0 100.0 Total &% 15,229.0 100.0

The Group only provides guarantees for enterprise bonds issued by
the investment and financing platforms established and controlled
by local governments, and does not involve in corporate bonds
issued by listed companies.

REER /M7 BT ARSI 2 H 6 % A
BYrauniTmeXErEHER T
RETRABBETHRARGEFERER-
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As at 31 December 2021, Hunan, Jiangsu, Shandong, Chongging B E2021FE 128318 @ LAFT 15 B FH E R
and Anhui were the main markets in terms of proportion in the MBEEOLITE ME - IH LR =
balance of bond guarantees, and over 91.2% of the bonds B ZRABMESEREBNHETER

guaranteed by the Group had AA or higher issuer ratings.

A ERESFPCBEITATRBIAAE
AAR A EAG L B91.2%

The following table sets forth the distribution of the bond guarantee TREVNRFATBBHESBEREBIERT
business by industry as at the dates indicated:

REOWBERDMEBER:

As at 31 December

BZ12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BREEFHEIN UAREEELIT) k2 A% k2. 154858 %
Public facilities investment and AEFHRENEE 5,529.0 46.2 7,939.0 52.1

management
Construction BEXE 2,980.0 25.0 1,860.0 12.2
Household goods RA 2,300.0 19.2 3,930.0 25.8
Public management and social NEEREL AL 1,080.0 9.0 1,360.0 8.9

organization
Others =i 70.0 0.6 140.0 1.0
Total a3t 11,959.0 100.0 15,229.0 100.0

The following table sets forth the distribution of the collaterals TEREIIARMTEHHRESEREBFBER

obtained by bond guarantee business as at the dates indicated:

MIRE R DM iE 0 -

As at 31 December

HZ12A318

2021 2020

2021% 20204
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(REEFHIN UARKBETIIT) 2H 1485 % 2 14858 %
Unsecured guarantee SEIRAER 1,870.0 15.6 2,700.0 17.7
Secured guarantee BHERER 10,089.0 84.4 12,529.0 82.3
- Land and buildings - T RETF 4,140.0 34.6 5,450.0 35.8
- Trade receivables and equity interests ~ — U BR 20 T B 4 5,949.0 49.8 7,079.0 46.5
Total &it 11,959.0 100.0 15,229.0 100.0

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.

BESEROERDIT



Management Discussion and Analysis
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The following table sets forth the distribution of the remaining
maturity of the bond guarantee business as at the dates indicated:

TREIINATAREFBEREBH G

BB D MER

As at 31 December

BZ12A318
2021 2020
20214 2020F
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(REEFAIN DAREBETIIR) k3] 4B % 2H 154858 %
From 1 January 2021 to 2021F1A182 - - 4,330.0 28.4
31 December 2021 2021128318
From 1 January 2022 to 20221 A1BE 4,469.8 37.4 4,639.8 30.5
31 December 2022 2022%12A31H
From 1 January 2023 to 2023F1H1BZ 4,239.8 35.5 4,409.8 29.0
31 December 2023 2023%F12A31H
From 1 January 2024 to 2024F1R1RE 1,169.8 9.8 1,069.8 7.0
31 December 2024 2024%F12A31H
From 1 January 2025 to 202551H1HZ 1,069.8 8.9 569.8 3.7
31 December 2025 2025%12A31H
From 1 January 2026 to 2026F1H1EZ 809.8 6.8 209.8 1.4
31 December 2026 2026127310
After 1 January 2027 20271 A1R bR 200.0 1.6 = =
Total A%t 11,959.0 100.0 15,229.0 100.0

The maximum period of the bonds guaranteed by the Company is
seven years, and issuers of most bonds begin to repay the principal
gradually from the third year, in order to relieve the pressure for
repayment of the principal due on one-off basis. In terms of the
balance of a single bond, the outstanding bond guarantee balance
will show a declining trend year by year. As at the date of approval
of this report, the principal and interest of all the City Investment
Bonds guaranteed by the Group have been normally repaid, without

any exception.

EREFERBEERRALF BAR
MBEBAE=FHABETARLER
A MR BTAEBEHFNH— K
EEXENEN REEEFHEMS -
HESEREGHRBEHZEZF TRBY -
BEAHRSHENE A AEEER
BMAEBREFHEEEANE KRR

BEe
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Non-financing guarantee

The Group also offers non-financing guarantee services whereby the
Group acts as the guarantor and undertakes to pay one party (i.e.
the creditor) a certain amount if another party (i.e. the principal) fails
to meet certain obligations (such as fulfilling the terms of a contract).
To reduce the Group’s credit risks, the Group requires business
owners or controlling persons of the principal to provide counter-
guarantees, which make them jointly and severally liable together
with the principal when the Group incurs a loss. The non-financing
guarantee products mainly comprise electronic bid guarantee and
project performance guarantee (collectively, the “non-financing
guarantee business”).

To meet the demands for “project performance guarantee” by
the construction industry, the Group designed specific products
by taking into account the operating features of the construction
industry, and assisted a number of construction and engineering
construction enterprises which met certain qualifications in their
business expansion by issuing “bid guarantee, performance
guarantee and prepayment guarantee”.

In order to effectively reduce the transaction costs of market
entities, reduce the burden of SMEs, simplify the transaction
process, improve the transaction efficiency and improve the service
function of the electronic bidding and procurement platform,
the Group took a forward-looking approach and developed the
electronic guarantee platform for bidding and procurement at the
end of 2018. Since the issuance of the first electronic bid guarantee
at the Dazhou Public Resources Trading Centre, Sichuan Province
in December 2018, the electronic bid guarantee has been officially
put into operation in more than 230 urban public resources trading
centres in 28 provinces across the country, including Sichuan,
Shandong, Zhejiang, Jiangsu, Anhui, Guangdong, Hunan and
Shaanxi, with rapid development.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2021, the transaction amount of the non-financing guarantee
business was RMB38,609.0 million, representing an increase of
RMB21,9483.4 million or 131.7% as compared with RMB16,665.6
million in 2020, which was mainly due to the rapid growth of
electronic bid guarantee business. Although the transaction amount
of the non-financing guarantee business increased significantly in
2021, the balance of non-financing guarantee business did not
increase proportionally due to the small amount and short term of
single electronic bid guarantee business. As at 31 December 2021,
the balance of non-financing guarantee business was RMB16,340.7
million, representing an increase of RMB4,145.7 million or 34.0% as
compared with RMB12,195.0 million as at 31 December 2020.

Due to the small amount and short term of single electronic bid
guarantee business, as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2021, the balance of non-financing guarantee business with
guarantee amount of each transaction less than RMB3 million
was RMB5,221.9 million and RMB11,848.5 million, respectively,
accounting for 42.8% and 72.5% of the total balance of non-
financing guarantee business, respectively. As at 31 December
2020 and 31 December 2021, the balance of non-financing
guarantee business due within six months amounted to
RMB7,268.0 million and RMB12,245.5 million, respectively,
accounting for 59.6% and 74.9% of the total balance of non-
financing guarantee business, respectively.

B WA

2021 ERMBEREBELEEAAR
#38,609.0 5 & JT ' B2020%F Z 8 ¥ 15
Az ARE16,665.68 & T BN A
R#¥21,043 45 &L E18131.7% * &
EINEZRREFIRERRHERIRR
R -HAR0IFIEMEEREBZE
BEAREBM EAREFRERHER
BELHE)D PREBRE - EMEERE
& ERRE A R B B 5 35 h0 o B £20214F12
AS1H EBMEEREBHBBAARY
16,340.78 & T ' H82020F 12 A31H &
BARB12,195.08 B oA &0 A
R¥4145. 7B 8L 151834.0% ©

HREESTFRERIEBH /) - H
R 45 - & £2020F 12 A31H K20214F12
AS1H BEEERBERAARBE=Z8E
THIEREEREBBREINAARKE
522198 BT MARE11,848.56H &
TTEEREEREBHEO L5
B42.8%F72.5% ° B, £2020F 12 A 31
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The following table sets forth the distribution of the non-financing
guarantee business by geographical region as at the dates
indicated:

TREINXNFAFAHIFREERELZ
b5 B D W HE R 0 MR IB R

As at 31 December

BZE12A31H8
2021 2020
20216 2020F
(Expressed in RMB million, unless

otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRRAEZHN UARBEETIIT) k7] 1485 % 3 154858 %
Sichuan )l 2,898.0 17.7 Sichuan epl] 2,436.4 20.0
Anhui ZH 2,891.8 17.7 Chongging BE 1,504.5 13.1
Fujian RE 2,044.2 12,5 Liaoning EE 1,372.4 11.3
Chongging BE 1,148.4 7.0 Zhejiang piipan 1,034.0 8.5
Jiangsu L& 963.8 5.9 Jiangsu L& 908.2 7.4
Others Hity 6,394.5 39.2 Others Hity 4,849.5 39.7
Total CH) 16,340.7 100.0 Total CH 12,195.0 100.0

As at 31 December 2021, Sichuan, Anhui, Fujian, Chongging and
Jiangsu were the five biggest markets in terms of proportion in
the aggregate balance of non-financing guarantees, amounting to
60.8%. The proportion of the five biggest markets in the aggregate
balance of non-financing guarantees remained stable as compared
with 60.3% as at 31 December 2020.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Risk management and assets quality

The following table sets forth the key risk indicators of the credit

guarantee business of the Group as at the years indicated:

B WA

EREEREEESE

TREIATRFEAEEERERER
EHARRREEES:

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12B3BLEE
2021 2020 Change
20215 2020F 29
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount  Percentage %
(REEFRIN UARBEBETIIR) 7 i i I=¥iy:4
Default rate!” REEO 0.4% 0.6% (0.2 pptADH) -
Default payments BOMT 165.8 171.8 (6.0) (3.5)
Guarantees released BERRER 46,151.9 28,614.2 17,537.7 61.3
Loss ratio® BExe 0.1% 0.7% (0.6 pptE D E) -
Provision for impairment losses FRMERRER 51.4 201.1 (149.7) (74.4)
for receivables for default payments BEMBERX
Guarantees released ERRER 46,151.9 28,614.2 17,537.7 61.3
Recovery rate® [E] g b R @ 68.6% 68.8% (0.2 pptE D &)
Recovered amount m &5 113.8 118.2 (4.4) 3.7)
Default payments RIS 165.8 171.8 (6.0) (3.5)
As at 31 December
HZ12A318
2021 2020 Change
20215 2020F 2
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount  Percentage %
(REEFAIN DARBBEETIIR) 7 3 3 Bt
Provision rate BiExE 1.0% 1.0% = =
Provisions for guarantee losses EREEEGESHE 322.1 358.6 (36.5) (10.2)
Total outstanding guarantee balance BERGRE 32,452.1 34,162.0 (1,709.9) (5.0
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Notes:

(1) Default payments made on behalf of defaulting clients divided by
guarantee released.

The Group did not include the default payment for the principal and
interest of a targeted debt financing instrument when calculating
relevant indicators of the Group’s credit guarantee business such
as the default payment amount, default rate, etc. in 2020. After the
default payment for the targeted debt financing instrument was made,
the Group made corresponding provision for impairment losses based
on the controlled collateral and prudent consideration of future cash
recovery. The Group believes that this default payment is only an
isolated and exceptional event.

(2)  Provision for impairment losses of receivables for default payments
divided by guarantee released.

(8) Recovered amount divided by default payments made on behalf of
defaulting clients.

(4) Provisions for guarantee losses divided by the balance of the
outstanding guarantees. Provision rate indicates the level of reserve
which the Group set aside for the guarantee portfolio.

After years of development, the partnership finance business
segment has developed an independent risk culture and risk
management system. The Group applied the general principles of
risk management that aim to “focus on quality and seek progress
while maintaining stability; adjust the structure and enhance quality
and efficiency; manage by classification and engage in bottom-line
thinking; and optimize models and carry out transformation and
upgrading”, and further worked towards “safety first, customer base
upgrade, comprehensive income and compliant credit extension” in
2021.

Safety first. The Group adheres to the principles of unified
customer access and single debtor, small amount dispersion and
reasonable installments. For new customers, in the market survey
phase, the Group strengthened customer admission standards
and efforts in on-site investigation and management of uncertain
risks. While focusing on the primary repayment source, the Group
also developed the secondary repayment source by strengthening
acquisition and management of collaterals, so as to reduce the
ultimate risk. As at 31 December 2021, the collateral coverage of
traditional financing guarantee business was 66.0% (31 December
2020: 72.7%). Furthermore, the Group raised all staff's awareness
of risk management by fully implementing the administrative rules
for distribution of performance-based bonus after the “discharge of
guarantee liabilities” among the members of all business units and
teams.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Customer base upgrade: We preferred to select the consumer
industry that has growth potential and manufacturing industry with
room for development in the emerging markets. Meanwhile, the
Group firmly withdrew from surplus industries with relatively high
inventory pressure as well as the industries with low efficiency of
resource allocation, and gradually developed “partnership finance,
supply chain finance, capital market” as its three major customer
bases and business direction.

Comprehensive income: While granting business units with
the risk pricing power for a single business, the Group set the
principles on minimum comprehensive pricing guidelines to
achieve the balance between risk and return. Moreover, the Group
achieved overall upgrade of comprehensive income by utilizing
the partnership finance business segment, the sound financial
instruments of Hanhua Financial and by offering customers with
integrated financial service solutions.

Compliant credit extension: The Group published policies on
credit extension periodically and adjusted the same from time
to time through “product management” on the basis of research
and studies. Meanwhile, it strengthened the standardization of
operational procedures to achieve comprehensive management
of the entire process of “pre-loan, in loan and post-loan stages,
and the disposal and recovery of non-performing assets” so as to
reduce operational risk.

In 2021, the total default payments of the Group paid on behalf of
defaulting clients amounted to RMB165.8 million, representing a
decrease of RMB6.0 million or 3.5% as compared with RMB171.8
million in 2020. The overall default rate of the Group shows the
quality of the Group’s guarantee portfolio. In 2021, the Group’s
default rate was 0.4%, representing a decrease of 0.2 percentage
point as compared with 0.6% in 2020. The decrease in the amount
of default payments and default rate in 2021 indicate that the
asset quality of the Group’s guarantee business has significantly
improved. This was mainly due to the Group’s continued efforts in
adjusting customer structure and business structure and vigorously
developing electronic bid guarantee business nationwide that
features short guarantee term, small amount of each transaction
and low risk, which has diversified business risks while increasing
business turnover rate.
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The Group assessed the recoverability, recovery amount and
recovery time of receivables for default payments on an item-by-
item basis, mainly based on the collaterals and counter-guarantee
provided by clients, compared the present value of potentially
recoverable amount and default amount and recognized the
difference as impairment losses of receivables for default payments.
As most of the Group’s collaterals are assets related to commercial
real estate and land, the prices of which are relatively stable in
recent years and the Group expects that such assets can be
disposed of with discount in the future to recover cash quickly,
the Group made provision for impairment losses of RMB51.4
million for existing receivables for default payments in 2021. As
at 31 December 2021, the Group’s provision rate of receivables
for default payments (provision rate = provision for impairment of
receivables for default payments/original value of receivables for
default payments) was 35.6%, representing an increase of 1.7
percentage points as compared with 33.9% as at 31 December
2020.

For defaulting clients, the Group stepped up management on
collateral and disposal of non-performing assets so as to rapidly
recover funds. In 2021, the Group recovered cumulative default
payments of RMB113.8 million from defaulting clients (2020:
RMB118.2 million) with recovery ratio (recovery ratio = current
recovery amount/current default payments) of 68.6% for 2021
(2020 : 68.8%).

Provision rate of the credit guarantee business represents the level
of reserve which the Group set aside for the potential guarantee
losses. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s balance of provisions
for guarantee losses was RMB322.1 million (31 December 2020:
RMB358.6 million). As at 31 December 2021, the provision rate
of our credit guarantee business was 1.0% (31 December 2020:
1.0%), remaining stable. As at 31 December 2021, the proportion
of provisions for guarantee losses in terms of all types of guarantee
products was basically equivalent to that as at 31 December 2020.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Market coverage

The Group provides credit guarantee services through its credit
guarantee network comprising of credit guarantee branches
established in the following regions, including Chongqging, Sichuan,
Yunnan, Hubei, Shaanxi, Gansu, Heilongjiang, Jilin, Liaoning, Tianjin,
Hebei, Shandong, Jiangsu, Shanghai, Anhui, Hunan, Guizhou,
Guangxi, Guangdong, Fujian and Zhejiang.

Capital business
Business expansion and products

The following table sets forth the key performance indicators of the
capital business in the partnership finance business segment of the
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Group as at the dates indicated: =
As at 31 December
BZ12A318
2021 2020 Change
20215 20204 2%

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount  Percentage %
(REETAIN DAREBETIIR) k3] 2H 2F BAH
Entrusted loans ZRER 365.4 360.9 45 1.2
Receivables for factoring business JEURIE TR 1,260.1 1,292.9 (32.8) (2.5)
Balance of capital business ESEKBE 1,625.5 1,653.8 (28.3)
Balance of provision for impairment loss & )il {E % 448 193.8 83.7 110.1 1315
Provision rate'” BHxn 11.9% 51% 6.8 pptE D -
Provision coverage rate® BEEE%0 93.2% 252.9% (159.7 ppt =

B
Balance of overdue capital business BOHESEBHE 445.2 174.3 270.9 155.4
Proportion of overdue capital business® 2 EHE & £ HO 27.4% 10.5% 16.9 pptE 2 % -
Balance of impaired capital business BREECEBHE 207.9 33.1 174.8 528.1
Proportion of the balance of impaired BREESEBHBIALY 12.8% 2.0% 108 pptEDE -

capital business”
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Notes:

)

Balance of provision for impairment losses divided by the balance of
capital business.

Balance of provision for impairment losses divided by the balance
of impaired capital business. Provision coverage rate represents our
provision rate for potential loss of the capital business portfolio.

Balance of overdue capital business divided by the balance of capital
business.

Overdue capital business refers to capital business where all or part of
its principal or interest is overdue for 1 day or more.

This definition applies to all capital businesses of the Group, including
entrusted loans, receivables for factoring business and finance lease,
and credit lending business in the micro and small loan business
segment.

Balance of impaired capital business divided by the balance of capital
business.

For the capital businesses, the Group monitors risk exposure in loan
and advance groups according to Guidelines for Risk Classification
of Loans unveiled by the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory
Commission and applies the loan risk classification method. Loans and
advances fall into five categories by risk exposure, namely, Normal,
Special Attention, Substandard, Doubtful and Loss. The last three
categories are considered impaired. Where one or several events
provide objective evidence of impairment, the loan and advance in
question are considered impaired. The provision for impairment of
loans and advances is assessed in on a group or individual basis.

The Group regularly reviews the quality of individually significant
financial assets. With respect to assets for which provision is made
individually, the Group assesses the loss and determines the amount
of provision on the balance sheet date on an item-by-item basis. In
assessing loss, the Group usually considers the value of collaterals and
future cash flow.

This definition applies to all capital businesses of the Group, including
entrusted loans, receivables for factoring business and finance lease,
and credit lending business in the micro and small loan business
segment.

Loan categories are defined as follows:
Normal: The borrower is able to fulfill the loan terms and conditions

and there is no ground to doubt full and timely payment of the principal
and interest.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Special attention: The borrower is able to pay the principal and
interest for the time being, but some factors that may affect such
payment negatively are present.

Substandard: The solvency of the borrower is obviously undermined.
The borrower is unable to pay the principal and interest in full with his
or her normal income. A loss might be incurred even if the guarantee
is executed.

Doubtful: The borrower fails to pay the principal and interest in full.
A material loss will be incurred definitely even if the guarantee is
executed.

Loss: The principal and interest are unrecoverable in full or at all after
all possible actions are taken or all necessary legal procedures are
implemented.

The partnership finance business segment satisfied customers’
demand for funding of different maturities, costs and trading
structure through entrusted loans and receivables for factoring.
As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021, the balance
of capital business of the partnership finance business segment
amounted to RMB1,653.8 million and RMB1,625.5 million,
respectively, representing a year-on-year decrease of RMB28.3
million or 1.7%. In 2021, the default in payment of commercial
acceptance bills issued by certain enterprises led to an increase in
the default rate of receivables for factoring business of the Group
with the collection of commercial acceptance bills as the main
repayment source. As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2021, the balance of overdue receivables for factoring business was
RMB58.3 million and RMB376.0 million, respectively, representing a
year-on-year increase of RMB317.7 million or 544.9%. As a result,
the net interest income generated from the capital business showed
a downward trend. In 2020 and 2021, net interest and handling
fee income from the partnership finance business segment was
RMB214.8 million and RMB152.7 million, respectively, representing
a year-on-year decrease of RMB62.1 million or 28.9%.
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Risk management and assets quality

The Group satisfied customers’ financing demand through the credit
guarantee business and direct financing. In each case, it adhered to
the principle of “unified customer access and single debtor”, so as
to set a universal credit standard and credit line. For details on the
risk management policy of the capital business of the partnership
finance business segment, please refer to the section headed “Risk
management and assets quality” of the credit guarantee business.

As at 31 December 2021, the balance of overdue capital business
of the partnership finance business segment was RMB445.2
million, representing an increase of RMB270.9 million or 155.4% as
compared with RMB174.3 million as at 31 December 2020, which
was mainly due to the increase in overdue receivables for factoring
business. As a result, the balance of impaired capital business of
the partnership finance business segment increased to RMB207.9
million as at 31 December 2021, representing an increase of
RMB174.8 million or 528.1% as compared with RMB33.1 million as
at 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, the balance of provision for impairment
losses of capital business in the partnership finance business
segment was RMB193.8 million (31 December 2020: RMB83.7
million), with provision rate of 11.9% (31 December 2020: 5.1%).
After occurrence of past due events relating to receivables for
factoring business with the collection of commercial acceptance
bill as the main repayment source, the Group established a special
working group to take stock of overdue bills, actively communicated
with bill acceptors, bill holders and bill endorsers, and implemented
specific collection plans according to the specific conditions of
each business. At present, significant progress has been made and
the ultimate risk of loss is manageable. Nevertheless, the Group
has adopted a prudent assessment system and made adequate
provision for impairment of overdue receivables for factoring
business to enhance its anti-risk capacity.
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Financial assets management

In April 2017, the Group, as the promoter, jointly established
Liaoning Fu’an Financial Asset Management Co., Ltd. with three
other companies in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).
Fu'an Asset has a registered capital of RMB1,000.0 million, and
all shareholders of Fu'an Asset had made contribution in cash in
accordance with the relevant requirements under the investors’
agreement. On 4 July 2017, Fu’an Asset obtained the approval of
operation from the regulators, and the filing with China Banking
Regulatory Commission (“CBRC”) has been completed on 2
January 2018. As at 31 December 2021, the Group holds 60.0%
equity interest of Fu'an Asset.

Pursuant to the business license obtained by Fu’an Asset, its
business scope includes acquisition; entrusted operation and
management of non-performing assets of financial institutions
and non-financial institutions; management of, investment in and
disposal of non-performing assets; debt restructuring and corporate
restructuring; debt-to-equity swap business, management of,
investment in and disposal of equity assets; external investment
and management; financial, investment, legal, and risk management
advisory and consulting business.

As a leading comprehensive and inclusive financial service
group in the PRC, the Group strives to pursue new development
opportunities in the financial services industry through equity
investment and integration of platform resources, so as to provide
comprehensive financial services to MSMEs and fulfill their
diversified financing and business needs.
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In order to regulate the batch transfer, acquisition and disposal
business of non-performing assets of financial enterprises, and
effectively prevent and eliminate financial risks, according to the
Administrative Measures on the Batch Transfer of Nonperforming
Assets of Financial Enterprises, Notice on Relevant Issues
Concerning Conditions for Qualification Licensing of Local Asset
Management Companies to Carry out the Batch Purchase and
Disposal of Non-performing Assets of Financial Enterprises, and the
Letter of the General Office of CBRC in relation to the Appropriate
Adjustment of Relevant Policies on Local Asset Management
Company, provincial people’s governments may establish an
additional local asset management company, the disposal of the
non-performing assets is permitted by way of debt restructuring,
external transfer, etc., and the transferee of the external transfer is
free from regional restrictions. These provide market opportunities
for social capital, especially private capital to participate in mitigating
and stimulating the non-performing assets of local financial
institutions.

The establishment of Fu’an Asset is an important part of the overall
strategic layout of building an inclusive finance ecosystem of the
Group, which will enrich and extend its layout of the integrated
finance ecosystem. As an integral part of the partnership finance
business segment, Fu’an Asset will leverage the existing business
team and institutional layout in actively seizing opportunities in the
development of asset management market in the “New Normal”
economic environment of the PRC. Coordinating existing financial
business resources, it will provide comprehensive integrated
financial services to MSMEs in their entire life cycle and further
enhance the integrated business strength of the Group.
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MICRO AND SMALL LOAN BUSINESS SEGMENT

Micro and small loan business segment, which consists of eight
small loan companies in Chongging, Chengdu, Tianjin, Shenyang,
Nanning, Guiyang, Nanjing and Shenzhen, as well as institutions
with functions such as information consulting, asset management
and credit services, has mainly focused on offering small-
amount and diversified integrated financial services to various
micro and small enterprises, individual business proprietors and
individuals (hereinafter collectively referred to as “small and micro
customers”). Among them, small loan companies in Chongging,
Sichuan, Shenyang and Shenzhen have obtained the qualification
for “lending loan on the internet”.

The micro and small loan business segment has gradually
developed “credit lending business based on self-loan” and
“credit consulting business based on market development and
credit assessment”, by virtue of its years of experience in serving
small and micro clients, and its own capabilities and strengths
as well as combining relevant regulatory policies and industry
characteristics. These two business models have formed a variety
of service portfolios around the small and micro customer market,
and rationalized and adjusted business structure through business
portfolios with “different risk levels and different profit levels”, thus
improving service capabilities for small and micro customers.
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Credit Lending Business:

[t mainly refers to small loan companies with granting qualification
leading the issuance of loans to small and micro customers with
their own working capital (including registered capital and external
financing funds), while the Group is responsible for marketing to
customers, due diligence, risk review and post-loan management,
and the Group is entitled to the income and assumes the risks
related thereto.

Credit Consulting Business:

It mainly refers to the Group’s provision of credit consulting
business to financial institutions such as external partner banks by
leveraging its accumulated experience, capabilities and strengths
in micro and small loan services, including assistance in obtaining
clients, standardized risk assessment services and post-loan
management service, while external partner financial institutions
conduct independent evaluation on small and micro customers
based on their own understanding of small and micro customers
and risk tolerance, and make independent decision about whether
to provide services.

In the course of cooperation with various financial institutions,
both parties share information, exchange resources, and
give full play to their resource and technological advantages,
with a view to jointly provide credit lending business to small
and micro customers. The Group’s strengths lie in its risk
awareness and experience built on serving customer groups
over the years in the small and micro customer sector, as well
as special risk control capacities, nationwide network and
team, and sound credit service output capability.
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The following table sets forth the assets under management of
the Group’s small and micro credit business segment as at 31
December 2021:

B WA

HE2021F12A31H AEFB/NHMEE
EEoHFBEB TN EENEEREFEENT

As at 31 December

HZ12A318
2021 2020
20215 2020
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(REEFAIN DARBBEETIIR) 2H 15 % k2l 154E5E %
Micro and small finance Credit lending business /M4 &l EER% 205.7 9.0 406.6 13.0
Credit consulting business ERmR% 2,088.0 91.0 2,716.9 87.0
Subtotal NEt 2,203.7 100.0 83,1235 100.0
Standard finance Credit lending business 2% g EERS 463.1 67.1 1,230.7 69.7
Credit consulting business ERAR% 227.0 329 534.7 303
Subtotal NEt 690.1 100.0 1,765.4 100.0
Platform finance Credit lending business T A& & EER% 1.1 0.6 18.9 2.0
Credit consulting business AR 1,819.1 99.4 944.2 98.0
Subtotal Nt 1,830.2 100.0 963.1 100.0
Loan balance Credit lending business B #%8 EERH 679.9 14.1 1,656.2 28.3
Credit consulting business = AR 4,134.1 85.9 4,195.8 717
Total &t 4,814.0 100.0 5,852.0 100.0
As at 31 December 2021, the balance of assets under management HE2021FE12A318 [\ EEXBK S

of the micro and small loan business segment was RMB4,814.0
million, representing a decrease of RMB1,038.0 million or 17.7%
as compared with RMB5,852.0 million as at 31 December 2020.
The decrease was mainly due to a further reduction in assets under
management of the credit lending business.

In order to achieve the purpose of business transformation and
upgrading with effectiveness, the micro and small loan business
segment proactively adjusted its business structure and gradually
reduced the credit lending business funded by its own working
capital. As a result, the balance of assets under management
of credit lending business of the micro and small loan business
segment was RMB679.9 million as at 31 December 2021,
representing a decrease of RMB976.3 million or 58.9% as
compared with RMB1,656.2 million as at 31 December 2020.
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Leveraging the Group’s accumulated experience, capabilities and
strengths in micro and small loan services, the micro and small loan
business segment provided credit consulting business to financial
institutions such as external partner banks, including assistance in
obtaining clients, standardized risk assessment services and post-
loan management service, and charged certain service fee based
on services provided. As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2021, the balance of credit consulting business was RMB4,195.8
million and RMB4,134.1 million, respectively, representing a year-

on-year decrease of 1.5%.

The table below sets out key assets quality indicators of credit
lending business in the Group’s micro and small loan business

segment as at the dates indicated:

NI EEEB>HXFNAEREBR T/ NS
BRSEHERNCRH N MER - B
SNEBEERTE e AMBBIREEBER
% a?ﬁﬁ%ﬁbiﬁﬂi%ﬁ 1 B 12 24L& B
TERE - EEHHEERBES  WIKE
hf,\ﬁh%s’meuﬁzﬂx—ms’aﬂ&%%ﬁ =
£2020F12A31H %2021F12H31H
ERRBEBBREI I AARKL195.8
AEBETMAR®41341AE T BIR
1.5% °

TREINEBEZMTRERAEENREER
EBOMEERGNEREELERZR

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020 Change
20215 2020
12A31A 12A318 #
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount  Percentage %
(RRETRIN DARKBETIIR) k2 28 28 B %
Micro and small finance loans IMEERER 205.7 406.6 (200.9) (49.4)
Standard finance loans BEERER 463.1 1,230.7 (767.6) (62.4)
Platform finance loans ¥ ‘*/f BER 11.1 18.9 (7.8) (41.3)
Subtotal of loan balance BB/ 679.9 1,656.2 (976.3) (58.9)
Balance of provision for impairment losses & Z )i, {8 %/ #4 %8 84.4 94.6 (10.2) (10.8)
Provision rate!” BExO 12.4% 57% 6.7 pptE D -
Provision coverage rate® BEEERO 251.2% 284.1% (32.9 pptE 2 %) -
Balance of overdue loan business @_Hﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ 276.5 2171 59.4 27.4
Proportion of overdue loan business® HERERELO 40.7% 131% 276 pptB D H; -
Balance of impaired loan business BREERERRE 33.6 33.3 0.3 0.9
Proportion of the balance of BREERERGEGELY 4.9% 20% 29pptED -
impaired loan business®
Notes: iR
(1)  Balance of provisions for impairment losses divided by the balance of (1) BEREEESRBRUEREBHE-

loan business.
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(2)  Provision for asset impairment divided by the balance of impaired loan
business. Provision coverage rate represents the Group’s provision
rate for potential loss of the loan business portfolio.

(3) Balance of overdue loan business divided by the balance of loan
business. For the definition of “overdue loan business”, please refer to
page 38 of this report.

(4) Balance of impaired loan business divided by the balance of loan
business. For the definition of “impaired loan business”, please refer to
page 38 of this report.

In 2021, in accordance with the overdue and impairment
characteristics of products, the Group made reversal for impairment
losses of RMB6.6 million, representing a decrease of RMB46.1
million or 87.5% as compared with the reversal for impairment
losses of RMB52.7 million in 2020. In 2021, the amount of
impairment losses charged to the current statement of profit or loss
was reversed, mainly due to the decreased balance of credit lending
business as at 31 December 2021 which resulted in a decrease in
the balance of provision for impairment losses for the loan asset
portfolio as at 31 December 2021.

Provision rate indicates the level of the Group’s reserves for
potential future risks in respect of the small and micro credit
business. As at 31 December 2021, the balance of provisions for
impairment losses of micro and small loan business segment was
RMB84.4 million (31 December 2020: RMB94.6 million), with a
provision rate of 12.4% (31 December 2020: 5.7%).
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As at 31 December 2021, the overdue balance of micro and small
loan business segment was RMB276.5 million, representing an
increase of RMB59.4 million or 27.4% as compared with RMB217.1
million as at 31 December 2020. The proportion of overdue
loan business increased to 40.7% as at 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020: 13.1%) due to the decline in loan balance of credit
lending business. Overdue loans are mainly from the “Jiaye Loan”
business. Jiaye Loan is a product with sufficient collaterals and its
primary repayment source requirement is more relaxed than that
of small and micro financial products. Although the amount and
proportion of overdue loans increased, there was no fundamental
change in the overall risk level. As at 31 December 2021, the
balance of overdue Jiaye Loan business was RMB193.9 million,
accounting for 70.1% of the balance of overdue loan business.

As at 31 December 2021, the balance of impaired loans of the
micro and small loan business segment was RMB33.6 million,
basically unchanged as compared with RMB33.3 million as at 31
December 2020. However, due to the decrease in the balance of
credit lending business, the proportion of impaired loans in the loan
balance of credit lending business increased from 2.0% as at 31
December 2020 to 4.9% as at 31 December 2021.

CAPITAL INVESTMENT AND MANAGEMENT
BUSINESS SEGMENT

The capital investment and management business segment uses
capital owned by the Group and aligns with other institutions in
fund raising to provide capital investment services to specific SMEs
demonstrating growth potential and value.

In early 2015, the Group started to engage in capital investment
and management business. In terms of fund raising, the Group
worked together with external organizations that aim to serve SMEs
to raise capital by way of funds, with a special focus on industry
funds established by government authorities at any levels and listed
companies. As at 31 December 2021, the Group successfully
established 8 funds with external investors (31 December 2020: 8),
raising gross proceeds of RMB684.1 million (31 December 2020:
RMB881.5 million).

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In terms of the use of proceeds, we provide small capital investment
services to leading SMEs in their respective industries with stable
operating and management teams and positive growth prospect in
the existing clientele. As at 31 December 2021, RMB1,064.8 million
(81 December 2020: RMB999.4 million) had been used for equity
investment for long term returns from capital appreciation, and
RMB140.9 million (31 December 2020: RMB162.2 million) for debt
investment for stable return with the aim of effectively utilizing idle
funds to enhance capital earning.

In 2021, the capital investment and management business segment
derived total income of RMB10.8 million (2020: RMB11.9 million)
from interest on debts invested. In addition, the Group recorded
net gains of RMB23.8 million (2020: RMB9.8 million) from dividends
from invested business and disposal of some equity interest in
invested entities. Benefiting from the continuous development of the
invested entities, the capital investment and management business
segment achieved gains from fair value change of RMB8.1 million in
2021 (2020: RMB31.3 million).

Meanwhile, the Group makes provision for asset impairment
associated with these creditor’s rights by referring to the rules of
risk management of capital business in the partnership finance
business segment. In 2021, the Group made provision for asset
impairment losses of RMB6.4 million (2020: reversal of impairment
losses of RMB6.8 million). In respect of the Group’s equity
investment in specific SMEs, as at the date of approval of this
report, the invested entities are running soundly and there is no
indication of impairment.
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SELECTED ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Net interest and handling fee income

The following table sets forth the breakdown of the Group’s
net interest and handling fee income by products for the years

HESHRBRER

MNERFEEFURA

TR AGEBREFATFERERD
BOMERTFEEFWRARA:

indicated:
For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2021 2020 Change
20215 2020% g
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount  Percentage %
(RREZRIN DARKBETIIR) 7 28 28 B %
Interest and handling fee income from RE U T FEHNF SR
FEBUA
Loans and advances to customers EHERRBR 191.6 4200 (228.4) (54.4)
Factoring business REEB 130.9 210.0 (79.1) (37.7)
Cash at banks |ITEH 7.2 12.9 (5.7) (44.2)
Time and restricted bank deposits THERMFHER 64.8 424 22.4 52.8
RES

Finance lease business BEMEEHK 2.4 5.1 2.7) (52.9)
Credit consulting services ERRBRBEERA 138.4 194.3 (55.9) (28.8)

commission income
Other handling fee income HFEBRA 50.4 38.5 11.9 30.9
Total interest and handling fee income FIERFEE WA KA 585.7 923.2 (337.5) (36.6)
Interest and commission expenses ~ REUTEENFER

arising from FHEHEIH
Interest-bearing borrowings TEER (274.9) (340.7) (65.8) (19.3)
Debts securities issued EREH - (44.2) (44.2) (100.0)
Financial assets sold under ENOBECREE (8.0) (19.6) (11.6) (59.2)

repurchase agreements
Commission expenses from micro and ~ MAEFEE T H (23.2) (50.8) (27.6) (54.3)

small loans
Other interest and commission expenses  E M7 2 k4 % H (48.5) (39.8) 8.7 21.9
Total interest and commission AERFEEXLAR (354.6) (495.1) (140.5) (28.4)

expenses
Net interest and handling fee income FIERFEEFUA 231.1 428.1 (197.0) 46.0)

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.

BESEROERDIT



Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2021, the Group’s net income from interest and handling fee was
RMB231.1 million, representing a decrease of RMB197.0 million
or 46.0% as compared with the net income from interest and
handling fee of RMB428.1 million in 2020. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the decrease of interest and handling fee income.

In 2021, the Group’s interest and handling fee income was
RMB585.7 million, representing a decrease of RMB337.5 million or
36.6% as compared with RMB923.2 million in 2020. This decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in interest and handling fee income
generated from both micro and small loan business and receivables
for factoring business as a result of the decreasing scale of the
micro and small loan business and the increase in the overdue rate
of receivables for factoring business.

In 2021, the Group’s interest and commission expenses was
RMB354.6 million, representing a decrease of RMB140.5 million or
28.4% as compared with the interest and commission expenses of
RMB495.1 million in 2020, which was mainly due to the decrease of
the interest-bearing liabilities of the Group. As at 31 December 2020
and 31 December 2021, the balance of interest-bearing liabilities
of the Group amounted to RMB5,263.9 million and RMB3,204.7
million, respectively, representing a year-on-year decrease of 39.1%

B WA
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AREE2311E BT B2020F F| B K F
BEEZEWRAAREI81EBET WP A
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337.5B BT EIE36.6%  c EE R X /)
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BEE WD AT

Other operating income, net

The following table sets forth the breakdown of other operating
income, net of the Group for the years indicated:

HiEEFRA

TR AEEBRERTFENE ME
EIFWABA

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12ABLEE
2021 2020 Change
20215 2020F 2%

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount  Percentage %
(BRRAEZHEN UARBBETIIT) 28 i i AR %
Commission income of insurance REBELAZBRA 27.8 38.9 (11.1) (28.5)

broker business
Commission expenses of insurance RBCLAEBLT T (25.9) (35.7) 9.8) (27.5)

broker business
Net gains on disposal of long-term RERBRERE TS 17.0 57.2 (40.2) (70.3)

equity investments
Government grants KR8 17.4 37.9 (20.5) (54.1)
Dividend income % B U A 24.0 15.4 8.6 55.8
Rental income HEBA 11.8 11.1 07 6.3
Others Hith 2.2 1.1 1.1 100.0
Total &t 74.3 125.9 (51.6) (41.0)

In 2021, the Group’s other operating income, net was RMB74.3
million, mainly including commission income of insurance broker
business, gains on disposal of long-term equity investments,
government grants, dividends and rental income. Among them:

The commission income of insurance broker business mainly
generated from insurance product brokerage business of Zhongli
Insurance Sales Co., Ltd.;

In 2021, the Group received government grants and tax refunds of
RMB17.4 million, representing a decrease of RMB20.5 million or
54.1% as compared with RMB37.9 million in 2020. Such income
was mainly generated from the policy supports provided by the
governments at different levels for the Group’s local financing
guarantee business;

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Dividend income mainly generated from the dividends received from
investment projects of the Group’s capital investment management
business segment;

Rental income mainly generated from the Group’s rental of
repossessed assets and idle properties to third parties.

Operating expenses

The table below sets out the breakdown of operating expenses of
the Group for the years indicated:

B WA

BEBRAZTZRERAKSEERARESE
B RBIRIRIRE R B AR BUR 5 AT

HEBRANETERERAEEHEEEE
BpEELREE =T MERNES I
A e

EEX

TR AEEEHEMTIFENEEX
AR A

For the year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLEE
2021 2020 Change
20215 2020F £
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount  Percentage %
(BRAEZHEN UARBEELIIT) =8 3 =28 B %
Staff costs 8 T 369.9 381.6 (11.7) (3.1)
- Equity-settled share-based payment  — AR B MR - 4.5 (4.5) (100.0)
Tax and surcharges He kK 15.3 14.1 1.2 8.5
Operating lease charges in respect FELEHEER 2.6 8.3 (5.7) (68.7)
of buildings
Depreciation and amortization expenses 47 & &z # #4551 % 99.9 96.9 3.0 3.1
Others Hith 145.7 178.2 (27.5) (15.9)
Total At 633.4 674.1 (40.7) (6.0)

In 2021, the Group reported operating expenses of RMB633.4
million, representing a decrease of RMB40.7 million or 6.0% as
compared with RMB674.1 million in 2020. For the analysis on the
Group’s operating expenses, please refer to the paragraphs on
pages 19 to 20 under the section headed “Financial Highlights” of
this report.
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SELECTED ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The following table sets forth a summary of Group’s assets and

liabilities as at the dates indicated:

RSB RRREE

TREIIAEERAIAHRNEERE

BHE:

As at 31 December

HZ12A31H
2021 2020 Change
20215 20204 =

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount  Percentage %
(BEEFHEIN UAREEETLIIT) k2 =8 k2. A%
Assets BE
Cash and cash equivalents EWES 795.0 1,505.2 (710.2) (47.2)
Time and restricted bank deposits EHRZBRBITER 1,753.6 2,210.6 (457.0) (20.7)
Trade and other receivables e T H A e i IR 2,067.2 1,868.8 198.4 10.6
Receivables for factoring business JEMRIER 1,112 1,308.5 (196.4) (15.0)
Loans and advances to customers EHERRBR 1,311.5 2,213.6 (902.1) (40.8)
Finance lease receivables EURBERER 91.7 108.2 (16.5) (15.2)
Financial assets measured at fairvalue ~ MA#ZBEFEAES 1,807.8 2,135.8 (328.0) (15.4)

through profit or loss FARHBEENEREE
Repossessed assets HEEE 297.3 219.9 77.4 35.2
Investment property and property, REUEHER 1,074.0 1,140.3 (66.3) (5.8)

plant and equipment mE - BEREE
Intangible assets BVEE 92.4 98.9 6.5) 6.6)
Interest in associates REBERE-BEb% 1,505.2 1,558.8 (53.6) (3.4)
Goodwil BE 9.7 9.7 = =
Deferred tax assets BERMBHEE 439.6 485.3 (45.7) (9.4)
Total assets BEE 12,357.1 14,863.6 (2,506.5) (16.9)
Liabilities =X
Interest-bearing borrowings TEER 3,177.9 5,162.8 (1,984.9) (38.4)
Financial assets sold under repurchase  EHEIBESRIEE 90.3 165.8 (75.5) (45.5)

agreements
Deferred income RIBMELLEES 234.5 371.0 (136.5) (36.8)
Provisions for guarantee losses EREEREES 322.1 358.6 (36.5) (10.2)
Customer pledged deposits FARES 424 65.2 (22.8) (35.0)
Accruals and other payables BT R E M B3R 335.1 4413 (106.2) (24.1)
Current tax liabilities EHMEHARE 93.4 168.5 (75.1) (44.6)
Lease liabilities HEBE 24.1 335 9.4) (28.1)
Total liabilities BaE 4,319.8 6,766.7 (2,446.9) (36.2)
NET ASSETS EEFE 8,037.3 8,096.9 (59.6) 0.7)

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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EEENWmED T

Trade and other receivables e K E b fE U Rk 18

The trade and other receivables of the Group consist of receivables AEBEKEEMERREEZESER
for default payments under credit guarantee business, receivables SEERAEREBNERRENR B
for assets disposal, and prepayments. The following table sets BEHEEZARBNREBE - TRHFIIAK
forth the breakdown of trade and other receivables as at the dates SE R AT B LAY FE U K H b 8 W ERIR
indicated: HY BR 4 -

As at 31 December

BZ12A318
2021 2020 Change
2021 2020F 2%

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount  Percentage %
(REEFAIN DAREBETIIR) tH 3 3 B %
Receivables for default payments EUR B 1,327.8 1,327.7 0.1 =
Trade receivables JEYRER R 31.1 68.6 (37.5) (54.7)
Less: allowance for default B ERRERERES (473.1) (449.5) 23.6 5.3

payment receivables
Subtotal Nt 885.8 946.8 (61.0) (6.4)
Interest receivables R RIS 114.0 56.4 57.6 102.1
Receivables for assets disposal ERBEEZR 437.9 596.7 (158.8) (26.6)
Other prepayments, deposits and HpBEME AERk 629.5 268.9 360.6 134.1

other receivables Hib W IR
Subtotal Nt 1,181.4 922.0 259.4 28.1
Total @t 2,067.2 1,868.8 198.4 10.6
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As at 31 December 2021, the balance of default payment receivable
was RMB1,327.8 million, representing an increase of RMBO.1 million
as compared with RMB1,327.7 million as at 31 December 2020.
For the detailed information on the assets quality of the Group’s
credit guarantee business, please refer to the paragraphs on pages
33 to 36 under the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this report.

Other prepayments, deposits and other receivables mainly
include security deposits and deposits for various businesses
of the Group in the course of its operation as required by third
parties, prepayment for operation and all types of advances for
business operation. As at 31 December 2021, the balance of
other prepayments, deposits and other receivables was RMB629.5
million, representing an increase of 134.1% as compared with
RMB268.9 million as at 31 December 2020.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or
loss

The following table sets forth the Group’s financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss as at the dates indicated:

B E2021FE12A318 B KB K sh i
A AR1,327.86 & T H2020F12 A
STHEKWREZRBEARK1,327.788
TR EMARBOAEE L BN
SEERAEREBEEEENFHAREE
BABARE [EEERED T
% 33H £36H

=z fh

2 BB

HEmMmBEARE e REMEWKKEE
EREAEBELSAERRE=FEX
FANSHEHERRES He BHHNE
EXHFREBEB UREEHAEBEPRZE
BHAUHRBRIAEF - H E2021F12 A31
B EMEMARIE - F e & EMEKRE
HEAARKE20.5H &L HE F2020
F12A31HM BB ARK268.9H5E T
FEEL 3B IN134.1% °

UAnBEAEEHSBFAEHES
TERFINAKEERAREBEARAEBE
AEREEPHAEHEENEREE

As at 31 December

BZ12A31H
2021 2020 Change
20215 2020F &
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount  Percentage %
(REPEFHIN UARKBRETIIT) 2# B B A%
Unlisted debt investment FEMERERE 795.5 1,058.1 (262.6) (24.8)
Unlisted equity investment FETRERE 295.1 442.6 (147.5) (33.)
Listed equity investment THRERE 55.8 54.6 1.2 2.2
Non-performing assets package TREER 661.4 580.5 80.9 13.9
Total &t 1,807.8 2,135.8 (328.0) (15.4)

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s unlisted debt investment
was RMB795.5 million, representing a decrease of RMB262.6
million or 24.8% as compared with the unlisted debt investment of
RMB1,058.1 million as at 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s unlisted equity investment
(independent third party companies) was RMB295.1 million,
representing a decrease of RMB147.5 million or 33.3% as
compared with RMB442.6 million as at 31 December 2020, mainly
due to the disposal of such assets.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s listed equity investment was
RMB55.8 million, which remains stable as compared with RMB54.6
million as at 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s non-performing assets
package was RMB661.4 million, representing an increase of
RMB80.9 million or 13.9% as compared with RMB580.5 million as
at 31 December 2020.

B WA
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BEE WD AT

Interest in associates

The following table sets forth the Group’s interest in associates as
at the dates indicated:

REBRERE-BELHE

TREHAEERFR B BRI RE
RE-BEbhXE:

As at 31 December

BZ12A31H
2021 2020 Change
20215 20205 2%

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount  Percentage %
(BRRAEZHEN UARBBETIIT) 28 i i A2 %
Interest in associates: RERERE -BEbE:

Chongqing Fumin Bank Co., Ltd. BEERBOBRHERRAF 1,165.1 1,057.5 107.6 10.2
Shandong Financial Assets Exchange LWREBEERHF L 66.8 65.7 1.1 1.7

Co., Ltd. BRAR

Others Hit 273.2 4356 (162.4) (37.3)
Total &t 1,505.1 1,558.8 (53.7) (3.4)

The interest in associates mainly represents the investment in Fumin
Bank. The Group and six other domestic institutions jointly founded
Fumin Bank in 2016. The Company invested RMB900.0 million in
Fumin Bank for a 30% share of its registered capital and became its
largest shareholder. Fumin Bank formally commenced business in
August 2016.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Repossessed assets

The following table sets forth the repossessed assets of the Group
as at the dates indicated:

B WA

BEEEE

TREJAKERAREHRNEEEE

As at 31 December

BZ12A31H8
2021 2020 Change
20215 20205 2%
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount  Percentage %
(BRAEZHEMN UARBBETIIT) 28 k¥ k¥ AR %
Land and buildings T REEY 288.7 197.0 91.7 46.5
Others Hit 8.6 22.9 (14.3) (62.4)
Total EH 297.3 219.9 774 35.2

Repossessed assets are mainly land and buildings and other
assets recovered from defaulting clients of the Group’s guarantee
business. As at 31 December 2021, the balance of repossessed
assets was RMB297.3 million, representing an increase of RMB77.4
million or 35.2% as compared with RMB219.9 million as at 31
December 2020. The Group has implemented scientific recovery
measures against defaulting clients and applied strict performance
assessment to motivate the project team, so as to step up
management on collaterals and disposal of non-performing assets
with a view to accelerating the recovery of funds.

KEEEFTZEARASERERENER
BEEWH L EEAREMEBEE-
HE2021F12A31B BEBEEEBRES
AR®297.3H BT 8202094128311
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Interest-bearing borrowings

The following table sets forth a breakdown of interest-bearing
borrowings of the Group as at the dates indicated as follows:

TREHAEERFAR BB B ERK
B4R

As at 31 December

BZ12A31H
2021 2020 Change
20215 2020F 2%

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount  Percentage %
(REEFAN UARBBEETIIR) 3 i i B %
Bank loans RITER

- Unsecured -BER 470.0 405.4 64.6 15.9

~ Secured by properties of the Group —AREENEEER 276.8 174.6 102.2 58.5

- Secured by other assets of the Group ~ — M REBH {1 EE L # 376.0 370.0 6.0 1.6
Subtotal et 1,122.8 950.0 172.8 18.2
Other borrowings Hb &7 1,163.0 2,882.8 (1,719.8) (59.7)
Other interest-bearing liabilities Hinst BB & 829.2 1,269.4 (440.2) (34.7)
Interest payables FERH 2 62.9 60.6 2.3 38
Total &t 3,177.9 5,162.8 (1,984.9) (38.4)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The following table sets forth the maturity mix of interest-bearing
borrowings of the Group as at the dates indicated:

B WA

TREINAEERAR B B SERD
AR

As at 31 December

BZ12R318
2021 2020 Change
2021 20206 S
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount  Percentage %
(REEFAIN DAREBETIIR) k3] 2H 2H A%
Due within one year 1A 2,038.9 2,619.3 (580.4) 22.2)
Due between one year and two years 1ER2F LR 262.0 1,726.9 (1,464.9) (84.8)
Due between two years and five years ~ 2F Z5F LA 2711.7 584.3 (312.6) (53.5)
Due over five years 5ELA L 542.4 171.7 370.7 215.9
Interest payables RS 62.9 60.6 23 38
Total &t 3,177.9 5,162.8 (1,984.9) (38.4)

As at 31 December 2021, bank borrowings amount of RMB276.8
million (31 December 2020: RMB174.6 million) were secured by
properties owned by the Group with an aggregate carrying value of
RMB796.3 million as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
RMB346.4 million).

As at 31 December 2021, bank borrowings amounting to
RMB376.0 million (31 December 2020: RMB370.0 million) were
secured by other assets of the Group. Such assets mainly
comprised receivables for factoring business that are highly liquid
and meet the credit review standards set by credit granting parties.

In 2021, the Group paid all interest-bearing borrowings prior to due
dates and there was no record of default.

For more detailed discussion of the Group’s interest rate risk,
please refer to Note 35(b) to financial statements.

HZE2021F12A31H 8 AARE
276.8E &t (202012 A31H : AR
1746EB L) MBTERNLAEEER
MEEEETF -EHZ=2021F128318 -
EHYENFEEBLERARKET6.3HE
JC (202012 A31H : AR ¥346.48H &
JL) e

HZE2021F12831H €8 AAREKE
376.0B &t (2020128318 : AR ¥
370.0BE B L) MIRITIERARNEBE E A
BEEARER EHRNEEZTEZERAR
Bt HEEREIAEAEEEENER
RIEBEEFEEE -

20215 AEBEFABENAEBTERNE
REMEEARZANEER AEBIME
HIFCER -

FEAEBNERRABREAETNTR B
2 B 3R & M 5E35(b) °
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Accruals and other payables

The following table sets forth the breakdown of accruals and other
payables of the Group as at the dates indicated:

FE ST K HL ft FE 1 5K

TREHAEERARBEBEGT REM
J& S SRA0 B A4

As at 31 December

HZ12A31H
2021 2020 Change
20215 2020%F 2%
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount  Percentage %
(REEFAN UARBBEETIIR) 3 3 £H B %
Other payables HiERR 266.2 340.3 (74.1) (21.8)
Accrued staff cost T T 5 BN 33.4 52.7 (19.3) (36.6)
Valug-added tax and other surcharges ~ FEFTIZER R EMHT NE 3.2 13.6 (10.4) (76.5)
payable
Withholding individual income tax payable T8 $1E X {8 A FT/EH 4.1 4.4 0.3 6.8)
Receipts in advance TR 28.2 30.3 2.1) 6.9
Total &t 335.1 4413 (106.2) (24.1)

Other payables represent various deposits and payments for
business partnership that were interest free and collected from
external partners. As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2021, the balance of accruals and other payables of the Group was
RMB441.3 million and RMB335.1 million, respectively, representing
a year-on-year decrease of RMB106.2 million or 24.1%.

Debt-to-equity ratio

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s debt-to-equity ratio
(calculated by the sum of interest-bearing borrowings and financial
assets sold under repurchase agreement, over total equity) was
39.9% (31 December 2020: 65.8%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital expenditure

The following table sets forth the Group’s capital expenditure as at
the dates indicated:

B WA

BRI

TREIRATEMAREEARAFS

For the year ended 31 December

BZE12A31HLEE
2021 2020 Change
20215 20205 2%
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount Amount  Percentage %
(BRAEZHEMN UARBBETIIT) 28 k¥ k¥ AR %
Capital expenditure EAHX 14.0 15.1 (1.1) (7.3

The Group’s capital expenditure mainly comprises long-term rent
paid for new business outlets along with business expansion, and
spending on acquisition of IT hardware and systems. In 2021, the
capital expenditure was RMB14.0 million, representing a decrease
of RMB1.1 million or 7.3% as compared with RMB15.1 million in
2020. In 2021, the Group had no significant capital expenditure
items.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT AND CONTRACTUAL
OBLIGATION

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capital commitment of nil,
representing a decrease of RMB1.9 million or 100.0% as compared
with RMB1.9 million as at 31 December 2020.

AEEBEAALTEREEBRERLE
XEHTEBEPERINOREAMA
T BENGEERMEENRZANMAX -
2021F  EXHE BARK14.065&8 T
B20200 E AR ARBIGABEE L
BOARBE1IABET BFIR7.3% ° 2021
FOAEBBEREAALIER -

BEXREEREGNER

BEARERE

B E2021F12A31 0 » AN & B & RN & I
THE AT K2020F12A8318 & A& E
THEARB10BE L TRARK1.08
T PR18100.0% °
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Intra-group liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Company provided guarantee for
an aggregate of RMB1,460.0 million of borrowings from specific
institutions to subsidiaries of the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s outstanding guarantee
balance of the credit guarantee business was assumed by Hanhua
Guarantee, a subsidiary of the Group with financing guarantee
qualification, and its branches and subsidiaries. For information of
the credit guarantee business, please refer to pages 21 to 37 of this
report.

As none of our credit guarantee subsidiaries has capital contribution
from any other legal entity of the Group and all such subsidiaries are
limited liability companies under the law of the PRC, the Company
is liable for the debts of only one of such subsidiaries (to the extent
of the capital contribution of the Group). Should any of our credit
guarantee subsidiaries fail to pay any contingent liability under
outstanding guarantee, the Group’s liability under such outstanding
guarantee will not have negative impact on the business and
performance of other entities of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding balance of guarantees
provided by our credit guarantee subsidiaries for certain small loans
extended by our micro-credit subsidiaries was RMB155.6 million (31
December 2020: RMB311.6 million). Such small loans have been
included in the loans and advances to customers in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, and the aforesaid amount was
not included in the balance of credit guarantee of the Group to avoid
duplicate computation and overestimation of credit risk assumed
by the Group. Should any of such credit guarantee subsidiaries
be liquidated or bankrupt, these loans will not be guaranteed and
our relevant micro-credit subsidiaries would be exposed to higher
credit risk. As loans guaranteed by credit guarantee subsidiaries are
individually insignificant and widely distributed, the Group believes
any of these small loans ceasing to be guaranteed by credit
guarantee subsidiaries will not have material impact on the business
and performance of other subsidiaries.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2021, our share capital was RMB4,600.0 million
comprising 3,430,000,000 domestic shares and 1,170,000,000 H
shares, each with a face value of RMB1.00.

Liquidity and capital resources

We have funded our working capital and other capital requirements
principally with capital contributions from shareholders, bank
borrowings, bond issue, cash inflow from operating activities and
proceeds from IPO. Our liquidity and other capital requirements
are primarily related to micro and small loans and entrusted loans,
default payments, restricted bank deposits, and other working
capital needs.

As at 31 December 2021, we had cash and cash equivalents of
RMB795.0 million (31 December 2020: RMB1,505.2 million). For
the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not use any
financial instrument for hedging purpose.
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Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2021, we had a total of RMB3,204.7 million
(81 December 2020: RMB5,263.9 million) interest-bearing debts
outstanding, of which RMB3,204.7 million (31 December 2020:
RMB5,263.9 million) had fixed interest rates. The due dates
fall between 7 January 2021 and 3 December 2032. As at 31
December 2021, we had been paying the principal and interest of
all debts on time.

Off-balance sheet arrangements

We are a party to contracts with off-balance sheet risks in the
ordinary course of business. The contractual amount reflects
our involvement in credit guarantee and our maximum exposure
to credit loss. As at 31 December 2021, we had outstanding
credit guarantee of RMB32,452.1 million (31 December 2020:
RMB34,162.0 million).

We have no off-balance sheet arrangement other than those
disclosed above.

Foreign exchange risk exposure

The Group is free from material foreign exchange risk as most of its
transactions are settled in Renminbi.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group had no significant investment.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

In 2021, the Group had no material acquisition and disposal.
PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s buildings with an aggregate

book value of RMB796.3 million (31 December 2020: RMB346.4
million) were pledged to secured bank loans.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent liability as at 31 December
2021 other than the off-balance sheet arrangements disclosed on
page 66.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Upholding the principle of integrating information technology
with business strategies, the Company continued to formulate
the informatization plan of the Group, optimize its information
technology governance structure, and promote the construction
of information technology infrastructure and important information
systems based on the Company’s business strategies, thereby
ensuring the stable operation of its information systems and
providing strong support for strengthening the management and
business innovation of the Group.

Information Technology Governance

An information construction leading group has been set up at the
management level with the president as the core member to play
the role of major decision-making, important project establishment,
coordination and supervision, thus forming a regular decision-
making mechanism for information construction.

Information Planning

Focusing on its strategic goal of creating a Chinese sample of
inclusive finance and on the basis of the existing information
planning, the Company pushed forward the dynamic formulation
of an information plan, and made clear that the priority for 2021-
2022 is to optimize and upgrade business systems and manage
data assets, so as to support the implementation of the Company’s
strategies and enhance its management and operating efficiency.

The Company effectively defined system boundaries and positioning
by creating an integrated operation and maintenance process and
improving relevant functions, and introduced new technologies to
gradually realize automatic replacement of the whole process of
core business system products, while leveraging modularization
and cloud services to meet the market demand for rapid iteration
of products, with a view to building an integrated business platform
based on financial technology (fintech).
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On the basis of the existing data warehouse, data mart and in-
memory Bl analysis tools, the Company built capabilities in internal
and external data collection, unstructured data analysis and data
tag creation. The Company acquired a full range of data assets,
created complete connections among business objects, further
protected and improved the value of data assets, in an effort to
avoid the sinking of data assets.

Information System Construction

According to the Group’s management, business development and
innovation needs, the Company accelerated the construction of
various information systems.

In order to optimize human resources management and services,
the Company improved the recording of organizational and
personnel information in all aspects to form a complete set of
personal data on employees, while providing mobile self-service
functions to serve employees, setting annual performance targets
and conducting performance appraisal through performance
management functions, and improving employees’ self-learning
results through an online learning platform. The Company provided
an approval process platform and mobile modeling platform with
flexible configuration, and established and adjusted online approval
procedures processes that can change rapidly in tandem with
business development. A mature financial system is in place to
handle all revenues and expenses and accounting procedures of
the Company and provide employees with an online reimbursement
mechanism. A stable knowledge management platform has been
set up to manage and store various electronic files of the Company
in a centralized manner and enhance the security of digital assets
through encryption and watermarking functions. A number of
communication and collaboration mechanisms including an email
system, an instant messaging platform, a video conferencing
platform, and an online conferencing platform, are employed to
facilitate efficient collaboration among employees.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
RESERPERAH

EEANBEBERE HEMTERUARAE
ABIDH T RERE - BRI ED IR
REED  FFREBCBURRBITRE N  BUR
BEBEE N - ROBERSBEENH
BEE BRETEBNEXBHERBABHEE:
E—FSERUBBEEEENREME
B RBBREENIL -

FERESKER

ARAREBEEEER XBHERMEIFH
FE NIREESEERSNERTE-

SBICHRARANERNEEMRS
EETHBRASEENEZTHLK:
AT ZENEIBARREE AR
REBHEDMERBNET BIBAE
BMEENEKEERFEEMEERERE
TRBEREEYRREABIBHES
BONRR-BEHEILENERLRREF
EMBBREETE REFZLHAER
FAREXHERMREZEMCHNZERLE
HRE - EBMRARNM R TR A E
PREMBRXRIRBRE S8 TRMH:
PR LEREEEES -EERTHAH
ERFE SHEENERAASESE
FXHE BB INE ROKEN B T 8L F
BEMRE2M-EBEH RS ARER
e BEGHTE BReETe%Es
BEBHIERS  %B)E TEIRS MW
e



Management Discussion and Analysis

In respect of partnership finance, the Company insisted on
“‘embracing the opportunities from industrial Internet, developing
the supply chain finance and leveraging on financial technology”,
identified industry pain points and bridged industrial scenarios
by going deep in the industrial chain, and focused on target
customers, thereby continuously improving its digital operation
and service capability. The management firmly promoted the
digital transformation of the Company, vigorously implemented
the “customer centric” concept, developed a series of digital
systems based on the objectives such as customer perceptions,
contacts, transactions and services, and carried out continuous
and iterative upgrade for such systems. Meanwhile, through
continually optimizing the online service platform “Hanhua Cloud
Chain”, the Company provided a unified customer-oriented portal,
offering customers with comprehensive consultation, products,
care and services. With iterative optimization of e-bonding system,
the Company fully upgraded the micro-service system architecture
to enhance system resilience and business support flexibility while
safeguarding its business need. Through continually building up the
system’s middle-office capabilities, and upgrading the membership
center, clearing and settlement center, cashier and other
subsystems, the Company improved the construction of sharing
capabilities and promoted access to upper-level applications. The
customer relationship management system (CRM) was upgraded
to further improve and enhance the standardization during the
sales process, build all-around profiles of customers, and enable
the account managers to make precision marketing and services.
In an effort to improve the standardization and efficiency of internal
management, the Company promoted the iterative upgrade of
core business systems, optimized its electronic seal management
system, performance accounting system, data warehouse and Bl
analysis platform, and incorporated the value chain of business
management into the information system to fully realize digital
management, thus strengthening the standardization of business
procedures, improving the risk control capabilities and enhancing
the efficiency of internal collaboration.
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In response to the Company’s comprehensive digital transformation,
the credit business optimized the structure of its former information
construction team and made an adjustment to the department while
maintaining its stable operation. The new team, while ensuring the
continuation of traditional credit business, optimized and reinforced
the credit-related business systems, continuously included new
channels and funding providers into the systems in line with
the business development, enhancing the flexibility of business
channels. A new partner management system was developed to
provide new tools for the front-end business partners, effectively
improving the communication efficiency among the front, middle
and back office and enhancing the Company’s ability to manage
its partners. In order to strengthen risk control decisions, the
Company established a new risk control index platform to improve
the automatic approval capability and reduce the failure risk of
the existing system. In addition to supporting traditional business
lines, the Company also initiated the construction of “Smart” series
products, built a new procurement, sales and storage cloud system,
and enabled access to payment channel services, thus achieving
the integrated management of procurement, sales and finance
for customers in the fast-moving consumer goods industry chain.
Meanwhile, it broke the boundaries between the “Smart” series and
traditional credit business, provided one-stop financial services to
customers and effectively served the industry, laying a foundation
for the Company to pursue higher business goals.

The Company advanced the construction of APl gateways based
on its enterprise data bus (EDB) to ensure the standardization and
security of internal system APIs and save costs. The Company
optimized and upgraded the existing communication and
collaboration platform to eliminate the incompatibility problems
at the user end, allowing employees to use it more smoothly and
improving their office efficiency.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Construction of Information Technology Infrastructure

Hanhua’s private cloud was extended in depth. On the basis of
the previous compression and integration of physical servers of the
data center into a virtualization platform and with an aim to reduce
costs and improve backup efficiency, the Company completed the
design and implementation of a construction project of a disaster
recovery platform based on its IT construction needs, thus realizing
the shift from a decentralized manual backup model to a centralized
and automatic backup platform that supports remote disaster
recovery. Through the construction of a new unified monitoring
platform, the Company conducted sampling analysis on all kinds
of equipment and applications (e.g. hosts, network equipment,
databases, and applications) and monitoring and processing of the
massive data generated by the managed objects in a centralized
manner, enabling rapid locating, analysis and handling of faults
and risks. Based on the previous upgrade of the data center host
to virtualization architecture, the Company deployed an anti-virus
system in a virtualized environment by incorporating all server
security functions into an integrated flexible platform which is
integrated with the virtualization platform, so as to protect the
virtual machine from viruses, spyware, Trojans and other malicious
software attacks. The Company has completed the deployment of a
vulnerability scanning platform which can scan vulnerabilities in the
entire network and collect and analyze relevant information, so that
the operation and maintenance personnel can keep track of the
overall network security and timely secure equipment or systems
with potential security risks.
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The Company strengthened the standardization of edge network
system in branches. Through a unified management platform, the
Company performs equipment and network security monitoring,
centralized management and strategic management on all firewalls
of branches nationwide to realize rapid distribution of strategies
and unified early warning, and regularly submits and analyzes HSM
management reports, so as to prevent network security incidents,
protect its data assets and ensure the security of employees’
working environment. The security control of the intranet has been
strengthened and a Group-wide network access system has been
implemented. Accordingly, non-intranet users’ private connections
to the intranet can be detected, pinpointed and effectively blocked.

Information Technology Management Capabilities

In order to further standardize the management process of IT
projects and improve the inter-departmental collaboration in
information system development, the Company established an
effective process supervision system, adjusted and optimized its
demand management measures, test management measures,
launch process and version management methods, ensuring the
integrity and traceability of demands while improving the progress
and quality of information system development projects. In an
effort to strengthen user account management, enhance the
compliance of production-related operations, prevent unauthorized
operations, and improve the security of the production environment,
the Company conducted an overhaul of account security in
the production environment, strictly separated read and write
permissions based on the operation requirements, cleaned up some
non-compliant accounts, and traced and rectified illegal operations
in the production environment through bastion host and video
surveillance, thereby ensuring the safe and stable operation of the
information system and preventing and reducing system or data
access risks caused by illegal or improper operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

HUMAN RESOURCES

“Talents” represent one of the most valuable assets of Hanhua
Financial and are carefully nurtured. The Company has always
been committed to building a high-standard professional
team with “kindness, diligence, integrity, self-discipline and
responsibility”. As at 31 December 2021, the total number
of employees of the Group was 1,125, all of whom served in
Mainland China and Hong Kong.

The Company attaches great importance to organizational
culture building and employee care, promotes cultural
cohesion through employee care, and incorporates corporate
values and social responsibility into organizational culture.
In 2021, the Company implemented and demonstrated
employee care activities in many aspects: sending employees’
“Joining Anniversary” blessings through the Company’s online
platform; launching a special event “Love in Chongyang” in
conjunction with the labor union to thank employees’ families;
building an internal communication platform, in which themed
columns were launched to deepen the emotional connection
between employees and their families, employees and
employees, and employees and the Company during festivals
such as the Double Ninth Festival and the Spring Festival,
through communication and sharing activities, and enhanced
employees’ sense of identity and belonging to the Company.

In terms of the construction of the honor system, the
Company continues to carry out the five-year and tenth-
anniversary recognition of employee service, and issue
honorary certificates, thank-you letters and customized
exclusive souvenirs to award-winning employees every year,
in recognition of employees’ dedication and inheritance of
corporate culture. In addition, the Company also recognizes
outstanding employees, outstanding teams, and outstanding
work cases of the year through the annual evaluation work,
establishes a model of behavior, and stimulates a sense of
honor and enthusiasm for work.
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In terms of organizational management, in the fourth quarter
of 2021, with the comprehensive advancement of the
Company’s digital transformation, in order to realize the
focus on digital business strategy, the Company quickly
restructured the organizational form, successively completed
the organizational structure adjustment and personnel
optimization, and started to sort the system of job positions
and match the salaries of the job positions. So far, the
Company has gradually transformed into an investment
management platform, delegating more authority to lower-
level management, shortening the decision-making chain,
breaking information barriers, and at the same time improving
the operational autonomy and flexibility of business units.

In terms of employee development, the Company has
realized the continuous and stable operation of the digital
management function, and the Company’s training data has
also been effectively controlled. The Company organizes
a variety of learning activities, such as financial literacy
competitions, time and listening online learning activities, etc.
The Company’s digital learning platform breaks the time and
space constraints and efficiently meets the needs of localized
learning development.

In terms of the remuneration and incentive system, the
Company has formulated targeted remuneration, assessment
and incentive measures based on business development
diversity and individualized trends, and actively explored
market-based distribution and incentive mechanisms such as
business partnership and project partnership to create value
together and the concept of benefit sharing and risk sharing
to promote the continuous improvement of organizational
efficiency. At the same time, the Company has optimized
its welfare system, managed and cared about the general
health of employees, and adopted multiple measures in
social insurance, health examination, commercial insurance
and other aspects to provide employees with comprehensive
and practical protection. Using digital platform construction
to create cross-functional and cross-system information
transmission channels, implement automatic connection
and calculation of multiple links such as report statistics,
performance assessment and salary issuance, and greatly
improve data accuracy and operational efficiency. In addition,
in combination with organizational operations and employee
needs, the Company initiated discussions on flexible welfare
plans, mid-and long-term incentive systems and other
individual plans to boost business development with the
upgrade of the compensation and welfare system.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In terms of human resources digitization, the development
blueprint is systematically drawn and the implementation is
actively promoted. The introduction of RPA (Robot Process
Automation) has realized the centralized and automated
operation of human resources transactional work. It has been
successfully operated in salary calculation and individual tax
declaration links, which has reduced costs and increased
efficiency in human resources management. The internal
social collaboration platform has achieved initial results, and
the employee communication and service Q&A robot “Hanhua
Xiao H” has been launched to answer common questions
such as salary, social insurance, housing provident fund,
personal income tax, and attendance for employees. Since its
launch, Hanhua Xiao H has been used on an average of tens
of thousands times per month, gradually covering various
human resources service scenarios and becoming a good
assistant for serving employees; human resources electronic
signatures have made groundbreaking progress, and it has
been successfully used in the recruitment groundbreaking
investigation, salary confirmation and other scenarios, which
has greatly improved the convenience and work efficiency
of users. In 2021, Hanhua’'’s “My HR” human resources
digitization case participated in the “2021 China Digital
Transformation and Innovation Selection” and won the “Digital
Service Model” case award.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
55 ESkEfEEE

DIRECTORS B=

As at the date of this report, the members of the board of directors RAFEBRH EFXEHIWOT:
(the “Board”) are as follows:

Executive Directors: HITESE:
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang (Chairman) REHLE (EER)
Mr. Cui Weilan EHRRLE
Non-executive Directors: FHITES:
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang 2B+
Ms. Liu Tingrong Bl s+
Ms. Wang Fangfei FEELXL
Mr. Feng Yongxiang KT HE
Mr. Liu Bolin BIER LS
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFHITES:
Mr. Bai Qinxian Sk/$ s
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu Gl
Mr. Qian Shizheng BT A
Mr. Ng Leung Sing REBERE
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin R EAE
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang, aged 57, has been the chairman of the
Board and an executive Director of the Company since March 2013.
He participated in the establishment of the Group in August 2004
and he has been the president of the Group from August 2004 to
March 2016. He has been the chairman of the board of directors
of Chongging Fumin Bank Co., Ltd. (EEERRTRMDARA
A)) since August 2016. In addition to his position in the Group, Mr.
Zhang has been a member of the Third, the Fourth and the Fifth
Sessions of the Chongging Municipal People’s Political Consultative
Conference (FRIARBGAHEEEREEME -8 FHERSE
AfEZ E€) since December 2017. Since 2017, he has become
a member of the Standing Committee of Chongging Federation
of Industry and Commerce (EET IRMEZENEEMERD
&), and the vice chairman of Chongging General Chamber of
Commerce (EEM#EE) . Since October 2020, Mr. Zhang has
been appointed as an adjunct Professor and master’s supervisor at
the School of Economics and Management, Southwest University
(MR ASKEEIEER). In December 2021, Mr. Zhang
was appointed as Vice Chairman of the Chinese Entrepreneur
Commerce Club (R &P RIELEE)

Mr. Zhang obtained his college diploma in finance from Shenyang
Television University &G EZEERAE) in July 1992 and his
EMBA degree from the Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business
in September 2011.

Mr. Cui Weilan, aged 50, has been the executive president of
the Company since March 2016, and an executive Director of the
Company since May 2015. He joined the Group in June 2006
and successively served at various positions including the chief
legal officer, vice president, secretary to the Board and executive
president.

Mr. Cui obtained his bachelor’s degree in law from the department
of political of Southwest Normal University (currently known as
Southwest University (FEE K& )) in June 1995. He is also
accredited as a practicing solicitor by the Ministry of Justice of the
PRC and as an associate professor in law by Hebei Title Reform
Leadership Committee Bureau (JAIdLBifB ok £ 488 /N 4H) . He
completed the postgraduate program in economic law from Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences in September 2003 and obtained his
MBA degree from China Europe International Business School ( #
BIEE PR TR 20t ) in September 2012.
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Non-executive Directors

Ms. Liu Jiaoyang, aged 43, has been a non-executive Director of
the Company since March 2013. She joined the Group in August
2009 and was a director of Hanhua Guarantee from August 2009 to
April 2015. She has been the director of Fumin Bank since August
2016.

Ms. Liu obtained her bachelor’s degree in economics from Saint
Petersburg State Polytechnical University in Russia in December
2003, and obtained a master’s degree in business administration
from Tsinghua University in June 2017. She is currently studying
doctor of business administration (DBA) in West Business School of
Southwestern University of Financial and Economics.

Ms. Liu Tingrong, aged 47, has been a non-executive Director of
the Company since March 2013. She joined the Group in March
2011 and served as a director of Hanhua Guarantee from March
2011 to April 2015.

Ms. Wang Fangfei, aged 35, has been a non-executive Director of
the Company since March 2013. She joined the Group in November
2010 and held various positions, the project manager and chief
reviewing managers of business management section and general
management section of Hanhua Guarantee to October 2013, and
served as a director of Hanhua Guarantee from March 2011 to April
2015.

Ms. Wang obtained her master’s degree from Sheffield Hallam
University in October 2009, majoring in international business and
management. She obtained her junior college degree in business
administration from Chongaing University ( E B X 2) in July 2006.

Mr. Feng Yongxiang, aged 51, has been a non-executive Director
of the Company since March 2013. He joined the Group in August
2009 and was a non-executive director of Hanhua Guarantee from
August 2009 to April 2015.

Mr. Feng worked for Chongging Yayu Business and Commerce
Development Co. Ltd. (EEHIEHEER AR A A]) as a deputy
general manager from May 2005 to January 2010. He worked as
the senior relationship manager of the Chongqging branch of China
Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd. (FBIR A RITROHBER AR EEH
77) from July 2003 to May 2005.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Liu Bolin, aged 37, has been a non-executive Director of the
Company since June 2013. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu has
been the general manager and the executive director of Sichuan
Hongrun Trading Co., Ltd. (EH)IIBAEEE AR A A]), one of the
minority shareholders of the Company since March 2013.

Mr. Liu obtained his bachelor’s degree in business administration
from Shenzhen University in June 2006 and obtained his master’s
degree in accounting from the State University of New York at
Binghamton in December 2008.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bai Qinxian, aged 81, has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since March 2013. He joined the Group in
August 2009 and served as an independent non-executive director
of Hanhua Guarantee.

Mr. Bai has served in various domestic committees and societies,
including the member of the applied economics discipline appraisal
group of the Fourth and the Fifth Sessions of Academic Degree
Commission of the State Council, the permanent member of
China Society for Finance and Banking ((FE & &£ € ) | and the
permanent member of China International Finance Society (&
B £7E2e), and an independent non-executive director of
Sinvo Capital Group Co., Ltd. (¥ AEAREBMABRAF) . He had
been the director of the International Finance Institute of Liaoning
University (Z 2 KEZ B S g L FT) , the professor and the
doctoral supervisor in finance and policy finance of Liaoning
University (2 X&)

Mr. Bai was accredited as an academic leader of applied economics
at the first level and an expert who is eligible to enjoy the special
allowance of the State Council.

Mr. Deng Zhaoyu, aged 75, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since March 2013. He joined the
Group in August 2009 and has been an independent non-executive
director of Hanhua Guarantee.

Mr. Deng held various positions at People’s Insurance Company
(Group) of China Limited ( # BJ A fRIZEAZ A R]) (currently known as
the People’s Insurance Company (Group) of China Limited ( 7 B A
RRBREBRMHARAR)), including the deputy general manager
during the period from December 2001 to August 2006. Mr. Deng
also served as the chairman of the board of supervisors of PICC
Property and Casualty Co., Ltd. from July 2003 to October 2006.
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Mr. Qian Shizheng, aged 69, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since June 2013. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Qian served as the Professor of the Accounting
Department of Fudan University.

He has also been an independent non-executive director of Lonking
Holdings Limited (B3 T1EA% BPR 2 7)) and independent non-
executive director of Jingrui Holdings Limited (R Im1Z A% B R A
Al) , an independent non-executive director of Red Star Macalline
Group Corporation Ltd. (A2 EREEBRHER DA,
an independent director of Spring Airlines Co. Ltd. ( FR 22 A% 17
BMRRAA]), He resigned as an independent director of Shanghai
Lujiazui Finance & Trade Zone Development Co., Ltd. ( F/BFER ¥
cREFHERFAERNBMRAA) in April 2021.

Mr. Qian obtained his bachelor’'s degree in accountancy from
Shanghai Institute of Finance and Economics ( /& Bf B 4% 7 £ )
(currently known as Shanghai University of Finance and Economics
( E/BEFEKE)) in July 1983 and doctor’s degree in management
science and engineering from Fudan University in July 2001.

Mr. Ng Leung Sing, aged 72, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since June 2013.

Mr. Ng is currently a director of Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Trustees Limited, the director of the BOCHK Charitable Foundation,
an independent non-executive director of Grand Brilliance Group
Holdings Limited, an independent non-executive director of
Smartone Telecommunications Holdings Limited and Nine Dragons
Paper (Holdings) Limited.

Mr. Ng is previously a member to various boards and committees,
including the Hong Kong Deputy to the 10th, 11th, 12th National
People’s Congress of the PRC, He also served as the member of
the Hong Kong Area of the 13th National People’s Congress, the
member of the 5th Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, the chairperson of the Banking Industry
Training Advisory Committee of the Education Bureau, the honorary
president of Chinese Bankers Club, Hong Kong, the honorary
advisor of the Hong Kong Chi Tung Association Ltd..
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Yuan Xiaobin, aged 52, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since June 2013.

He also has been a part-time professor at Southwest University of
Politics and Law since December 2006 and the director and the
chairman of the Board of Zhonghao Law Group (currently known as
Zhonghao Law Firm) since 1997, the deputy director of Finance and
Securities and Insurance Special Committee of All China Lawyers
Association (FE 2B ZMBeeRESF;:RBREEXZEE), an
arbitrator of Shanghai International Trade Arbitration Centre. He also
serves as an independent director of Changan Automobile Finance
Co., Ltd. (R RE2BBERAF), and Chongqging Pingwei
Automotive Technology Co., Ltd. (EEFE/AERERDERAR])
and Bank of Chongging Co., Ltd. (EERITRMHERAF]) .

Mr. Yuan obtained his bachelor’s degree in law from Southwest
College of Politics and Law (FEEIEBUEZFT ) (currently known as
Southwest University of Politics and Law ( FEEIBUEAER) ) in June
1991, and his EMBA degree from Chongaing University ( & X
) in June 2013. Mr. Yuan was accredited as a Class A lawyer by
Chongging Judicial Bureau in January 2010.

SUPERVISORS

As at the date of this report, the members of the board of
supervisors (the “Supervisor(s)”) (the “Board of Supervisors”) are
as follows:

Mr. Li Ruping (Chairman of the Board of Supervisors)
Ms. Qin Yong
Mr. Chen Zhonghua (Employee Representative Supervisor)

Mr. Li Ruping, aged 65, has been the chairman of the Board of
Supervisors of the Company since March 2013. He joined the
Group in August 2004 and served in various positions, including
vice president, president and director. He has been the chairman of
the Board of Supervisors of Hanhua Guarantee since August 2009.

Mr. Li obtained his junior college diploma in industrial accountancy
from Sichuan Radio and TV University (P9)I| EEERAE) in July
1986. Mr. Li is accredited as a senior accountant by Chongqging
Municipal People’s Government.
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Ms. Qin Yong, aged 51, has been a supervisor of the Company
since March 2016. She joined the Group in September 2004. She is
the deputy general manager of the finance department of the Group
and the manager of the finance department of Chongging Huitai
Investment Co., Ltd. (EEZHRIKEFRAF]) .

Ms. Qin graduated from Sichuan Institute of Light Industry ( 79)l|
8L T2 ) in July 1991, majoring in finance management. She
obtained the Certificate of National Accountants in March 1999.

Mr. Chen Zhonghua, aged 47, has been a supervisor of the
Company since March 2013. He joined the Group in January 2005
and held various positions, including the deputy general manager
of the strategy development department, general manager of the
information and technology department and marketing officer
of Hanhua Credit. In addition, he was a supervisor of Hanhua
Guarantee from August 2009 to April 2015, and the standing
deputy general manager of Sichuan Micro-credit and deputy general
manager of Sichuan Hanhua from January 2013 to January 2015.
He was elected as the employee representative supervisor in the
2019 staff meeting.

Mr. Chen obtained his junior college degree in finance from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics ( 78/ B 48 K
2)in June 1995. He graduated from Chongging Technology and
Business University (EE T K 2)in June 2005, majoring in
accounting.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at the date of this report, the members of senior management
are as follows:

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang
Mr. Cui Weilan
Mr. Zhou Xiaochuan
Mr. Luo Xiaobo
Mr. Yuan Guoli
Mr. Ren Weidong
Mr. Cheng Xiaogin
(resigned by the Company on 5 January 2022)
Mr. Li Xuan (Resigned on 10 December 2021)

Details about Mr. Zhang Guoxiang and Mr. Cui Weilan biographies
are set out on page 77 of this report.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Zhou Xiaochuan, aged 47, has been the executive president
of the Company since March 2018, and he has been appointed
as the co-chief executive of the Company with effect from January
2022, responsible for the Development of Digital financial services,
and for managing the Guarantee Group. and has been the
chairman of the board of directors and the president of Hanhua
Guarantee and also the director of Liaoning Fuan Financial Asset
Management Co., Ltd.. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in March 2008
and successively served as the chief financial officer and vice
president of the Group. In addition to his position in the Group, he
also served as the chairman of Chongging Financing Guarantee
Industry Association (EEMRMEEZREHE

Mr. Zhou obtained his junior college degree in accounting from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics ( 78 &g 81 4%
KE)in June 1995. He obtained a master’s degree in business
administration from Peking University in July 2018.

Mr. Luo Xiaobo, aged 42, has been a vice president of the
Company since March 2013. He joined the Group in November
2004 and successively served as the general manager of Chongging
Hanhua Company, the general manager of risk management
department, and the operation director.

Mr. Luo obtained his bachelor’s degree in mechanical design
and manufacturing and business administration from Southwest
Agricultural University (78 5 & 2 KX 2) (currently known as
Southwest University (FaFIAKE) ) in July 2002. He is currently
studying an EMBA degree at School of Economics and
Management of Tsinghua University.

Mr. Yuan Guoli, aged 52, has been a vice president of the
Company since 2016. He is currently the chairman of Fuan Financial
Asset Management Company. He joined the Group in October 2006
and successively serves as the deputy general manager, general
manager and group marketing director of Liaoning Hanhua and the
president of Fuan Financial Asset Management.

Mr. Yuan obtained his bachelor's degree in industrial economics
from the Department of Industrial Management of Liaoning
University in July 1991, and EMBA degree from Liaoning University
in June 2015. He is currently studying an EMBA degree at
Guanghua School of Management of Peking University.

ES EEREAREEE

AN %% 4755 B2018F3A R AR
NAIMITHAE  B2022F1 B REZT A
ARRBEAS BEAEEHE TS
MEBER DEEREE HITHER
BEERBDERAGDESR B EF
ERSHMEAEEEERAAES MR
2008F3AMAREH LEEEXTEEY
BHRE BB -BRAEEBRKI M
ETEETRELEREBESER -

BAEEMRI9Fe AR KERES
STEXHER W R2018F7 A KB IL R
ANETgEBE T BAL o

ENBEE 4258 B2013F3AR AR
N AR BB - b 2004511 A hn A K
EE LRETHESELAELE -E

RERMAKLE ELRETHE-

BHENR2002F7TAEARMAEXKRE (R
BMARMAS)MMETEAYEEFENT
AMEBBELTEA HARBEERBLEE
I8 Z T EMBARLEE ©

REIFILE 525 B2016F R AAEX R
AMBEAY BITEEESLIREEE
BEERAREER -MMN2006F10A
AREER  ERETESHERBLE -
RIEBREBMBRE EXeREE
EENRBRERNA-

REAEMRIOIF7TAREBSEE KRBT ¥
EBRIERBHZEE L BN TR
2015F6HERSEERESAERASR
ITHEEBBLIEM - BRIERKENE
&2 EREMBARLE °

Annual Report 2021
B -FFR

83



84

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES EEKEAREEE

Mr. Ren Weidong, aged 44, has been the vice president of the
Company since March 2018, has been the secretary of the Board
since September 2015 and he also served as the sole company
secretary and authorized representative since September 2018.
He is in charge for managing the Company’s Financial Audit
Department, Investor relations, administration office, etc.. He joined
the Group in February 2009 and successively served as the general
manager of the financial department of the Group, the chief financial
officer, etc.. In addition to his positions in the Group, he is also
the director of Chongging Technical Elements Exchange Center
Company Limited (EERHEXRXZ P LAERAF]), the director
of Shandong Financial Asset Exchange Co., Ltd. (IIER & gt & &E
RHHNLABEMRAT), Chongaging port industrial and Financial Big
Data Development Co., Ltd. (EEORERABRBEEXZEEEAR
A F]), the vice president of Chongging International Tax Research
Association (EE M EIBE MW E &), and the president of
Chongaing liangjiang New Area Tax Society ( & B m )L #7 = F5 75 2

g)
=) .

Mr. Ren obtained his bachelor’'s degree in auditing from Hangzhou
Institute of Electronics and Engineering (#1/1 & F I ¥ £z )
(currently known as Hangzhou Dianzi University (#1 & F &%
KE)) in July 1999. He obtained an EMBA degree in Guanghua
School of Management of Peking University in July 2018.

Mr. Cheng Xiaoqin, aged 45, joined the Group in December
2004 and was appointed as the Vice President of the Company at
the ninth meeting of the second session of the Board of Directors
in 2018, mainly responsible for the western industry and finance
investment business. According to market conditions and business
adjustments, the Company no longer actually operated the Finance
and Investment Business Department of Western Industry in
December 2021. The Company removed Mr. Cheng Xiaogin from
the position of Vice President, which took effect on 5 January 2022.

Mr. Li Xuan, aged 48, has been a vice-president of the Company
since June 2017, He Has been resigned as a vice-president of the
Company from 10 December 2021.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the Reporting Period, the Company has strictly complied
with relevant laws and regulations, such as the Company Law
of the PRC and the Articles of Association, and performed its
rights and obligations in accordance with responsibilities granted
by the the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the Corporate
Governance Code (as amended from time to time) promulgated by
the regulatory authorities. The Company’s internal control system is
sound and effective, and the information disclosed is true, accurate
and complete. There was no breach of the laws and regulations
during the Reporting Period.

The Board has adopted the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) of
the Corporate Governance Code (“Corporate Governance Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the Company has complied with the Code
Provisions.

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and will continue to strengthen its own
corporate governance standards to ensure compliance with
corporate governance codes and meet the expectations of
shareholders and potential investors.

SHAREHOLDERS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

During the Reporting Period, the Company held one general
meeting, namely the 2020 annual general meeting dated 29 June
2021. The procedures of giving meeting notices, calling for the
meetings, convening the meetings and voting at the meetings
were in compliance with the provisions of the Company Law of the
PRC and the Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles
of Association”). Please refer to the relevant announcements
published by the Company on the websites of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and the Company dated 28 May 2021.
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CEERRE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, according
to the Articles of Association, when an extraordinary general
meeting is requested in writing by a shareholder individually or
shareholders collectively holding at least 10% (inclusive of 10%)
of the outstanding shares with voting rights of the Company, the
Board shall convene an extraordinary general meeting within two
months; when the Company is to hold an annual general meeting,
shareholder(s) holding at least 3% (inclusive of 3%) of the shares of
the Company with voting rights shall have the right to put forward
temporary proposals in writing to the Company, and the Company
shall list the issues in the temporary proposal that fall within the
scope of responsibility of the general meeting in the meeting
agenda.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
in a timely manner after each general meeting.

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries
about the Company to the Board can email their enquiries to
pengying@hanhua.com or mail their written enquiries to the
Company’s headquarter at 6-9, Building 2, 11 East Honghu Road,
Yubei District, Chongqging, PRC.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, overseeing the Group’s strategic decisions, business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the
Group to the senior management of the Group. To oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the second session of
the Board has established four Board committees, including the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the nomination and
remuneration committee (the “Nomination and Remuneration
Committee”), the strategic investment committee (the “Strategic
Investment Committee”) and the risk management committee
(the “Risk Management Committee”) (collectively referred to as
the “Third Session of the Board Committees”). The Board has
delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in
their respective terms of reference.
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Corporate Governance Report

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and they
have carried out duties in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of two executive
Directors, five non-executive Directors and five independent non-
executive Directors.

Details of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this report.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors, with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board. Each
of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers each of them to be independent.

All Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are
invited to serve on the Audit Committee and the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no other financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship among the
members of the Board.
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EERBE

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

A summary of training received by the Directors for the year ended

31 December 2021 is as follows:

Name of Directors

EEgs

ABEEHEEXRZRE

FrEEERNEE2021F12A31HILEE
BEREINERNAT

Contents of Training

EZRIRE

Executive Directors:
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang (Chairman)
Mr. Cui Weilan

Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang

Ms. Liu Tingrong

Ms. Wang Fandfei

Mr. Feng Yongxiang

Mr. Liu Bolin

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Bai Qinxian
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu
Mr. Qian Shizheng
Mr. Ng Leung Sing
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin

Notes:

BITEE:
REHEELE (EFR)
ERELLE

HHTEE:
ElL g pogun
FERR L
EFELE
B KFE SR
FERELE

BUHHITEE:
A#ERE
WERLE
BB A
RRELLE
RN SELE

A:  Attending training, seminars, forums and conferences on topics such
as economics, finance and corporate management;

B:  Perusing materials related to requirements on corporate governance,
directors’ duties and internal control and risk management, etc.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the year ended 31 December 2021, Mr.
Zhang Guoxiang has been the chairman of the third session of the
Board and Mr. Cui Weilan has been the president of the Company.
Mr. Zhang and Mr. Cui lead by example, perform their duties,
commit to maintain the high standards of corporate governance for
the Company.

Appointment, Change and Re-Election of Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Directors shall
be elected at the general meetings for a term of no more than three
years, and may be re-elected and re-appointed upon the expiry of
such term. The Company has implemented an effective mechanism
regarding the appointment of a new Director. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee will first discuss the matters in relation to
the appointment of new Director, and then present proposals to the
Board, which will be subject to the approval at the general meeting.

Director Nomination Policy

This Director Nomination Policy (the “Policy”) aims to: set out
the criteria and process in the nomination and appointment of
directors of the Company; ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate for the
Company’s business needs; and ensure continuity of the Board and
appropriate leadership at Board level.
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EEREE

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
following criteria should be considered by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and/or the Board: character and integrity,
qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience that are relevant to the Company’s business and
strategy, and the potential contribution to the Board from the
diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy, any measurable
objectives adopted for achieving diversity on the Board, willingness
and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
member of the Board and Board committee(s) of the Company.
Meanwhile, in order to meet the Board Diversity Policy, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and/or the Board may
also conduct a wide search for candidates who are in the interests
of the Company.

Nomination Process of the Appointment of New Director

1. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and/or the
Board should, upon receipt of the proposal on appointment
of new director and the biographical information (or relevant
details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate based
on the criteria as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.

2. If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and/or the Board
should rank them by order of preference based on the needs
of the Company and reference check of each candidate (where
applicable).

3.  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee should then
recommend to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate
for directorship (where applicable).

4. For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for election
as a director at the general meeting of the Company, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and/or the Board
should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set
out above and, where appropriate, make recommendation to
shareholders in respect of the proposed election of director at
the general meeting.
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The Company has entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment with each of the Directors (including non-executive
Directors) and the Supervisors. The service contracts and the letters
of appointment are for a term of three years.

Regular Board Meetings

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Board should
hold no less than four regular meetings annually, to be convened by
the chairman of the Board. Notices of not less than fourteen days
will be given for all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors
with the opportunities to attend and include matters in the agenda
for a regular meeting.

For other committee meetings, the meeting notices, the agenda
and accompanying Board papers are dispatched to the Directors
or committee members within reasonable timeframe to ensure that
they have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately
prepared for the meetings.

Board meetings shall be held only if more than half of the Directors
are present, except for when the Board is considering the matters
of connected transaction as provided for under the Articles of
Association.

Minutes of the Board meetings and the committee meetings will
be recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the
Board and the committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and committee meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable timeframe after the date on which
the meeting is held.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, 4 Board meetings were
held to review various matters within the scope of duties of the
Board, such as annual results, interim results, financial reports, and
the attendance of the individual Directors at these meetings is set
out in the table below:

Name of Directors

HE2021F12A31H It FEHE E=
SRR NESCSRUEZTEE
BoRHEE MERESEEZTSRER
BERERE EHNEEEEZEEZNE
MER TR

Attendance/Number of
Board Meeting Held

EEpE HE CRTZESEEERK
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang R B FESLAE 4/4
Mr. Cui Weilan ERRERTE 4/4
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang RIEm T 4/4
Ms. Liu Tingrong PlE e+ 4/4
Ms. Wang Fangfei FRFELT 4/4
Mr. Feng Yongxiang RS AE SR 4/4
Mr. Liu Bolin ZIER L 4/4
Mr. Bai Qinxian ARk RE 3/4
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu BRI E 4/4
Mr. Qian Shizheng BB E 4/4
Mr. Ng Leung Sing REBEE 4/4
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin RIMWEE 3/4
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, 1 general meeting of the
Company was held and the attendance of the individual Directors at
the meeting is set out in the table below:

Name of Directors

CHERBE

HE2021E12A31B I EEHE A A

AERTIRBRRRE - BEREEHEK

RRENBEREN TR

Attendance/Number of
General Meeting Held

EENE HE BETZBRRAERE
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang SR BIRE S 4 1/1
Mr. Cui Weilan ERESLE 1/1
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang 2B H Lt 1/1
Ms. Liu Tingrong BT+ 1/1
Ms. Wang Fangfei R FELLT 1/1
Mr. Feng Yongxiang RS FESE A 1/1
Mr. Liu Bolin BlER L 1/1
Mr. Bai Qinxian Bk L E 1/1
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu BB ELE 1/1
Mr. Qian Shizheng BB E 1/1
Mr. Ng Leung Sing REE%RE 11
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin RIMESEAE 11

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of practice
for carrying out securities transactions by the Company’s Directors
and supervisors. Having made specific enquiry with all the Directors
and Supervisors, they have confirmed their compliance with the
relevant standards stipulated in the Model Code for the year ended
31 December 2021.
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Duties performed by the Board and management

The Board shall report to the general meeting and exercise the
following powers, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Company’s expense and are
encouraged to access and to consult with the Company’s senior
management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group
are delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions
and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the management.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

1.  To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

2. To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

3. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements;

4. To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to the employees and Directors;
and

5.  To review the Company’s compliance with the Code Provisions
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure
for formulating policies on remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Group. Details of the remuneration of each of
the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in
note 7 to the financial statements.

The details of the senior management are disclosed in the section
headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” in this

report.

Remuneration paid to the senior management (including two
Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2021 is as follows:

Remuneration Range (RMB)
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Number of People

FMER (AR AH
2,000,000 or above 2,000,0007T } A 4
1,000,000 to 1,999,999 1,000,0007T £1,999,9997T 4

DIRECTORS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance in respect of
legal action against the Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee
comprises three Directors, namely Mr. Qian Shizheng (independent
non-executive Director), Ms. Liu Jiaoyang (non-executive Director)
and Mr. Yuan Xiaobin (independent non-executive Director). Mr.
Qian Shizheng is currently the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The main responsibility of the Audit Committee is to facilitate the
communication, supervision and verification in respect of the
Company’s internal and external auditing. Its main functions and
powers are, proposing the appointment or replacement of the
external auditors, overseeing the Company’s internal audit system
and its implementation, and reviewing the Group’s financial and
accounting policies and practices; auditing the financial information
of the Company and its disclosure; reviewing the Company’s
internal monitoring and risk management systems, examining the
Letter of Audit Description provided by the external auditors to the
management, whistle-blowing policies and systems formulated by
the auditors based on accounting records, etc..

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the
Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, 2 meetings of the Audit
Committee were held to review various matters within the scope of
duties, such as annual results and interim reports.

The attendance of the Audit Committee members is set out in the
table below:
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HE2021F12A31H L EE 4™ E5t
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F ERTHREARSTREREARNS

SEHEERAELHERHOMRERN
TR

Attendance/Audit

Name Committee meetings held

HE BETZ
HA EEEEERNRY
Mr. Qian Shizheng B AE 4/4
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang 2@/ H L+ 4/4
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin RIS AE 4/4
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee comprises three Directors, namely Mr.
Deng Zhaoyu (independent non-executive Director), Mr. Zhang
Guoxiang (Chairman and executive Director) and Mr. Bai Qinxian
(independent non-executive Director). Mr. Deng Zhaoyu is currently
the chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
the Company.

The main responsibility of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is to assist the Board to formulate the recruitment
procedures and assessment standards for Directors and senior
management of the Company and conduct preliminary assessment
on the qualifications and conditions of candidates to be appointed
within its area of competence; study and formulate the remuneration
plans, performance appraisal systems and incentive schemes of
Directors, supervisors and senior management of the Company,
make suggestions to the Board and supervise the implementation
of plans or systems.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, 1 meeting of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held to review
various matters within the scope of duties, such as the appointment
of the member of Strategic Investment Committee of the Company.

The attendance of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
members is set out in the table below:
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company believes that the diversification of the Board
is beneficial for enhancing the performance of the Company.
Therefore, the Company has established the “Policy on
Diversification of Members of the Board” to ensure that when
determining the composition of the Board, the Company will
consider the diversification of members of the Board from various
aspects, including but not limited to age, gender, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. When appointing new Directors, the Company will
fully consider the gender ratio of existing Directors, and strive to
appoint new directors on the basis of ensuring a balanced ratio.
The current gender ratio of the is 1:3. All appointments to the
Board shall follow the principle of meritocracy, taking into account
objectively the benefits of diversification of members of the Board
when considering the candidates. The candidates of the Board are
selected based on a range of diversified perspectives, including but
not limited to age, gender, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will disclose the
composition of the Board annually in the “Corporate Governance
Report” and monitor the implementation of the policy. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee will review the policy
when appropriate to ensure the effectiveness of the policy.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will discuss any
amendment that may need to make and make recommendations to
the Board for approval.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Strategic Investment Committee

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Strategic Investment
Committee comprises three Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Guoxiang
(Chairman and executive Director), Mr. Cui Weilan (executive
Director) and Mr. Deng Zhaoyu (independent Non-executive
Director). Currently, Mr. Zhang is the chairman of the Strategic
Investment Committee.

The primary responsibilities of the Strategic Investment Committee
are to examine and advise the Board on our long-term development
strategies and major investment decisions.

The written terms of reference of the Strategic Investment
Committee are available on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, 1 meeting of the Strategic
Investment Committee was held to review various matters within
the scope of duties, such as deliberation on the consent to credit
group’s reasonable use of Internet licensed resources and other
matters within its scope of duties.

The attendance of the Strategic Investment Committee members is
set out in the table below:
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Name Committee meetings held

HE BETERREZES
A SRXE
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang RS A 1/1
Mr. Cui Weilan EHETE 1/1
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu BRI k£ 1/1
Risk Management Committee BREEZES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Risk Management
Committee comprises three Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Guoxiang
(Chairman and executive Director), Mr. Cui Weilan (Executive
Director) and Ms. Liu Tingrong (Non-executive Director). Currently,
Mr. Zhang is the chairman of the Risk Management Committee.
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According to the “Rules of Procedures of the Risk Management
Committee of Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.”, the primary
responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee are to
provide professional advice to the Board or making decisions on
professional matters according to the authority of the Board in
relation to the risk management.

The written terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee
are available on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, 1 meeting of the Risk
Management Committee was held to review various matters within
the scope of duties under the internal control evaluation report.

The attendance record of the Risk Management Committee
members is set out in the table below:
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Attendance/Number of
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Name Committee meetings held

HEBET
A EREEZESEER LY
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang RS A 1/1
Mr. Cui Weilan ERETE 1/1
Ms. Liu Tingrong Bl w+ 1/1

DIVIDEND POLICY OF THE COMPANY

The dividend policy was adopted pursuant to the resolution passed
by the Board of the Company on 12 December 2019.

Principle of profit distribution

The Company shall attach importance to the reasonable returns to
investors and adopt consistent and stable profit distribution policy.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board will take into account the Group’s
earnings performance, financial position, investment requirements
and future prospects.

On the premise of meeting the day to day capital requirements,
predictable important investment plan or significant cash
expenditures, the Board can, in accordance with the operating profit
and cash flow of the current period, advise whether to distribute
dividend and the specific scheme shall be submitted to the general
meeting of the Company for approval after being reviewed by the
Board.

The Company adopts a combination of cash, shares or cash and
shares for profit distribution and gives priority to profit distribution
in cash. The Company will handle relevant matters on withholding
and payment of tax when distributing dividends in accordance with
relevant laws and regulations for the time being in force and relevant
requirements on taxation in the PRC.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021 which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the
Company and the Group and of the Group’s results.

The senior management has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable the Board
to carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval. The Company
provides all members of the Board with monthly updates on the
Company’s performance, positions and prospects.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 149 to 165 of this report.
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CHANGES OF MEMBERS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Xuan has been a vice-president of the Company since June
2017, He Has resigned as a vice-president of the Company on
10 December 2021.

Mr. Cheng Xiaogin has been a vice president of the Company since
March 2018. The Company removed Mr. Cheng Xiaogin from the
position of Vice president, which took effect on 5 January 2022.

As at the date of this report, details of the Senior Management
are set out under the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” of this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognizes its responsibilities in relation to monitoring
the risk management and internal control system of the Company.
It also performs supervision and inspection on the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system through the Risk
Management Committee and the Audit Committee on an annual
basis. Risk management and internal control system are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has set up the Risk Management Committee, which is
responsible for providing professional advice on risk management
to the Board and making decisions on professional matters in
relation to risk management under the authorization of the Board.
The Risk Management Committee categorizes and streamlines the
strategic risks, financial risks, operational risks and legal risks which
potentially arise from operation of the Company, and assigns the
duties of monitoring, initial assessment, formulating risk response
strategy, implementation of strategy and alert of risk to different
functions and departments. These functions and departments will
then carry out initial risk information collection and risk assessment,
while the internal control and audit department and the senior
management of the Company will supervise and improve the risk
management, and report to the Risk Management Committee as
necessary.
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Based on the business nature of the Company, the Company
established the risk management special committee at its subsidiary
level, which focused on the management of business risks such
as operational risks under the supervision of the Risk Management
Committee of the Board. The risk management special committee
has three tiers and six regional risk review centres, which
substantially optimize and reform the control procedures of credit
risks, operational risks and legal compliance risks according to
the principles of separation of front, middle and back offices
and effective supervision and control. The risk management
special committee also formulates regulatory documents such as
the standard operating procedure and measures for managing
operational risks, with a view to establishing an internal control and
risk management system covering our whole business process. The
business department collects raw information on risk and conducts
risk assessment; the risk management department formulates
business risk strategy and raise business risk resolutions; and the
internal control and audit department and the senior management
of the Company are responsible for relevant supervision and
improvement work, and, where necessary, report to the Risk
Management Committee.

The Group carries out communication in a timely manner regarding
the identified major internal control flaws and prudently assesses
potential risks. The responsible department shall propose relevant
corrective actions and obtain approval from the senior management
prior to the implementation. The senior management and the
internal control and audit department monitor the implementation
status and ensure timely and proper remediation of relevant
monitoring flaws.

The Group has formulated the policies and procedures for handling
and disclosing inside information, which are set out in the section
headed “Management of Inside Information and Insiders of the
Administrative Rules for Information Disclosure of Hanhua Financial
Holding Co., Ltd.” ( (B E S RN AR R FMERBKEERME) ).
The information and date to be disclosed shall be properly reviewed
and approved by the Board to ensure its timeliness, accuracy,
sufficiency and effectiveness, and shall be closely monitored after
disclosure.
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The Board has set up the Audit Committee, which is responsible
for reviewing the Company’s internal control, ensuring that the
management has fulfilled its duties to establish an effective
internal control system, and proactively or, as delegated by the
Board, conducting analysis of key investigation findings and the
management’s response in relation to relevant internal control
issues.

The Risk Management Committee and the Audit Committee,
in collaboration with the Company’s internal control and audit
department, have carried out a comprehensive assessment and
review on the system building and implementation particulars of
the Company’s internal control and the effectiveness of its risk
management system for 2021. The Board considers that those
systems are effective and adequate. Such review shall be performed
at least once per year and shall cover relevant year(s).

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the total remuneration paid
or payable to the Company’s auditors, KPMG and other accounting
firms, for audit and audit related services amounted to a total of
RMB8.28 million, totaling RMB8.28 million.

An analysis on the remuneration paid or payable to KPMG, and
the remuneration paid or payable to other accounting firms for the
provision of annual auditing services to the Company’s subsidiaries
is as follows:

Services by the Auditors
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Amount (RMB)

R REER SH(ARE)
Auditing service: ZE AR

Annual auditing services FEZERS 8,280,000.00
Total @t 8,280,000.00
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company are responsible for advising
the Board on corporate governance matters and ensuring that the
Board policies and procedures, and the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed. Mr. Ren Weidong has been appointed as
the company secretary of our Company in September 2018.

Mr. Ren has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules for the year ended 31 December 2021.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
STAKEHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders and stakeholders are essential for enhancing investor
relations and understanding of the Group’s business, performance
and strategies. The general meeting of shareholders provides an
opportunity for shareholders to communicate directly with Directors
and senior management of the Company. The chairman of the
Board, chairman of the Board committees and certain senior
management of the Company will attend the general meetings to
answer shareholders’ questions. The Company has also issued
notices, announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports
to keep shareholders informed of the latest development of the
Company.

The Company has formulated the Shareholder Communication
Policy to maintain close contact with the investors. During the
reporting period, the Company strengthened the communication
between investors and potential investors by holding Shareholders’
meetings, accepting investors’ visits and research, telephone
conference exchanges by one-to-one or one-to-many, accepting
inquiries or email replies to improve investors’ understanding and
recognition of the Company and improve corporate governance to
maximize the Company’s overall interests and protect the legitimate
rights and interests of investors. During the Reporting Period, the
Company effectively implemented the Shareholder Communication
Policy.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEREE

The Company publishes the Company’s address, investor relations
phone number and email address in detail on the Company website
and regular reports, and also arranges a special person to answer
investors’ calls, respond to investor emails, and report to Company
leaders in a timely manner.

The Company has maintained continuous close relationship with
stakeholders, including customers, employees, suppliers, regulatory
authorities and the public. The Company devoted to balance the
opinions and interests of the stakeholders through constructive
communication, so as to set the long-term development direction
for the Company and the regions where our business operates.

Taking Haier Electronics, the major strategic cooperation customer
of the Company’s supply chain financial business, as an example.
Established in 1984, Haier Group is one of the world’s largest
manufactures of household electronic appliances and has a large
number of distributors in China. Since 2012, Haier Finance Co.,
Ltd. has established business relationship with Hanhua Guarantee,
a subsidiary of the Company, for the provision of supply chain
financial services to distributors of the distribution channel of Haier
Group, and has maintained such business cooperation for over
nine years. Despite the close relationship with Haier Group, Shell
QOil and other major customers, the Company holds a firm position
on adopting the same credit requirements as other customers and
makes provision according to industry regulations. The Company
is aware that the risks in cooperating with major customers mainly
arise from their operating risks, hence it does not fully rely on the
credit of the major customers, rather, it applies strict screening on
SME borrowers through credit rating system so as to diversify the
operating risks of its major clients.

The latest version of the Company’s Articles of Association has
been published on our Company’s website (www.hanhua.com) and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange website, respectively.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

REPORTING SCOPE

This is an annual report prepared by the Company, together with its
subsidiaries to fulfil the requirements of the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide contained in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules. This report covers the financial year from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Period”), and aims to
provide investors with an overview of the environmental, social and
governance work of the Group (covering Chongaging headquarters
region, excluding other branches in Mainland China and institutions
in Hong Kong region).

The Company strictly complies with applicable laws and regulations
including the Company Law of the PRC and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. It is committed to maintaining high-level
corporate governance. It makes decisions and plans through
professional committees under the Board and relevant professional
committees and special work teams under the management
of the Company. It has also established rules and systems
regarding human resources management, financial resources
management, technological resource management, information
resource management, corporate culture building and risk control
and management, so as to form a common code of conduct for
employees, provide guidelines for daily work, and ensure that the
Company’s operation meets the requirements of safety, efficiency,
green and harmony in terms of systems, resources and personnel.
Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report in the 2021
Annual Report for details of corporate governance of the Company.

VISION AND STRATEGY OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

As an enterprise dedicated to offering comprehensive financial
services, our vision in environmental, social and governance is to be
a model for the inclusive financial industry in China.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RS HERERKRE

In terms of social responsibility, we are committed to providing
inclusive finance and serving SMEs and individuals, and constantly
expanding the scale and scope of our services. In terms of
environmental practice, we strive to implement office “digitalization”,
advocate environmental protection and reduce environmental
costs. In terms of corporate governance, we actively improve our
corporate rules and systems and strengthen risk management and
compliance management. We integrate corporate environmental
and social responsibility considerations into business decisions.
In realizing our vision and making business decisions, we adhere
to the principles of credibility and sustainability, and balance the
benefits of all parties involved.

The Company will continue to improve its strategies in respect
of environmental, social and governance in the future. We have
established regular communication mechanism with our major
stakeholders to timely understand their expectations and allow
them to provide feedback to us so as to improve the Group’s
management of environmental, social and governance.

Major stakeholder Communication channel

EHEEETEERRESZR BEMR
B R R AMEA I B RS RS
REMEE ERFEHNHEHIEE 8T
bl Ex 2ERERRK  BERTKA
EAXERTEERTERNEEHE -
RIEEREE ARERE - ARBARBLEE
BRE HeEIRR2EMARBRE
EERBRR REXBRRE  RARKT
ERRA AIHERERFR A EIEEH
B e

ARARBEB B ERBERIRE 4L
GRERTHNKR -HMEFZH
MEEZL T EHBBRS - REEE
IR e WEMPIARMARERE
UHEEBAERE HEMRETHD
B o

FTENBHEBERL BERR
Regulators Respond to the nation’s call and implement regulatory policy
BEE R ZEBARTA BEEEIR
Enhance operational and management performance
RITKEEBBER
Support the development of real economy
XREBKERR
Implement the requirements of regulators
REEEMBENX
Regular report
TEHAE R T 1
Investors Annual/interim results presentations on a regular basis
REE THENFE HPHEERME

General meeting to update investors on our operation

BRARRAES EFNREEH QA RELNEE

Website maintenance to ensure investors’ timely access

to the latest information of the Company
HERQNFRY REREERKFEDNARRRKHELS
Routine research, interaction and visit

HEARRBFAW EEBED

1 08 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Major stakeholder
FTERFEEBA

RS HERERKRE

Communication channel

BERE

Employees

]

T

\
A

Customers
s

Community

ol

Industry peers

BES: 25

Partners

BIERH

Induction training to encourage exchange between
new recruits and department heads
FRETIAREI EPHMEIHRZHLFIEEARR
Establishment of the online learning platform
“Hanhua Inclusive Finance E-Academy”
BREEREETR [BEEELRERE]
Conclusion meeting and annual spring meeting on a regular basis
EHRMRIERESENLETS
Attend meetings, seminars and training sessions organized by external parties
SDHEMTSRBERNSE  BX F
Performance management evaluation
PEE AT

Website, official WeChat account and other online channels
WIE MEARTEEHARS

Customer visit and site visit

EHEF #ETHEER

Seminar, conference and appreciation meeting
BkE g Eale

Promoting financial literacy
FREMHE

Active donation

TE 1R 2 B 4R R

Assistance to the disadvantaged groups
EZNCIEEE icd: ]

Participation in voluntary service

i & 75 R AR 75

Attendance to trade associations and industry forums
MATTERS 2 MITERE

Study visit to industry peers

IRERRFD ER

Centralized procurement in an open, transparent and fair manner
NHCER - R EHERIRE
Procurement management system combining online and offline channels

ER - RTHEENRBEERSR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HEKRE

A E

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS BRENERE
Performance indicator Amount Unit
BRER CH¥E B
Economic responsibility Total assets 12,3571 RMB’ million
RBERME BEER AREBET
Net profit 112.3 RMB’ million
b AN ARBBEETT
Owner’s Equity 8,037.3 RMB’ million
PEEER ARBAET
Effective tax 186.5 RMB’ million
BRI AREBET
Environmental responsibility Vehicle emission 164,583.52 g
RRAEML MERHERE =)
Total greenhouse gas emission 68,213.4 kg
mERBHRAS Fr
Power consumption 774,536.48 KWh
EEE FHRE
Water consumption 6,763.2 m3
k= SJTOK
Paper consumption 1.9 tons
e Mg
Social responsibility Total number of employees 1,125 people
HeiME EERAH A
Percentage of female employees 50 %
ZHEELL %
Percentage of employees
with a bachelor’s degree or above 83 %
BRI EREEL %
Training hours of employees 13,700.4 hours
EEHEIIRE INEF
Satisfaction of training 100 %
EBEEIREE %
For various issues of environmental, social and governance, ARARHERB LS RERNSEZ

the Company ranked the issues of importance to the business
and the importance to investors, and identified the following 15
materials issues in this assessment, which have been stated
in this report: vehicle emission, total greenhouse gas emission,
power consumption, water consumption, paper consumption,
employment, health and safety, development and training, labor
practices, supply chain management, product responsibility, anti-
corruption, community, internal control, risk management.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
RESERPERAH

BOREBXBENEBENEREED
EEUETHF B EEMMNIGRE
EHFEE YRARANRERN  TEAH
ME BRERBYNMEE REE FK
EREE ER E2FRER2 BRHE
B S TER HERERE ERAMT
RE®R /MR- AERES - RREE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

In compliance with the provisions under the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC, the Securities and Futures and
Companies Legislation (Uncertificated Securities Market
Amendment) Ordinance 2015 and other applicable laws and
regulations, the Company actively adopts measures to improve
environmental management and encourages staff to reduce
pollution and waste during work to minimize the environmental
impact of the Company’s business as well as its products
and services, with a view to protecting and improving the
environment, reducing pollutant emissions and promoting
ecological civilization.

As most of the Company’s operation is office-based, the
Company is committed to minimizing the impact of office
impact on the environment by means of green office initiatives,
including:

For the construction of weak current systems in branch
offices, the Company widely adopted environmentally-
friendly materials to maximize the utilization of materials and
reduce material waste and loss. We adopted low-energy and
information-based office devices, and ensured compliance
with operational specifications to extend their service life. New
integrated computer rooms, smart office platforms and other
new products are used to achieve energy saving and emission
reduction in the office area.

We further increased office automation and established
collaborative office platforms and various office systems
such as business management system, human resources
management system, financial management system, capital
management system, reimbursement system and knowledge
management system, with a focus on improving the credit
and standard finance business platform, partnership finance
business platform, data analysis and management platform
and private cloud infrastructure platform, so as to establish
standard management procedures to boost operational
efficiency.

RS HERERKRE
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The Company has designated the Canteen Management
System and Office Equipment Management System to
actively respond to the national green and low-carbon policy,
vigorously advocate green office, set the goal of low-carbon
operation, and create a green and environmentally friendly
working environment.

We promote paperless office practices through introduction
of company-wide office automation. We encourage double-
sided printing to reduce paper consumption and the use of
durable items and recyclable and reusable items instead of
disposable office items, and recommend our employees to
use video and telephone conferencing for offsite meetings to
reduce accommodation and travel resulting from employees’
participation in the meetings. The cooling and heating systems
at the our offices are required to be set at a minimum of 26
degree Celsius and maximum of 22 degree Celsius for different
seasons. We promote environmentally-friendly habits such as
turning off lightings when not in use, saving water, and turning
off air conditioners after meetings or office hours. We call for
promoting thrift and stopping food waste, and ban the supply
of luxurious dishes and the consumption of protected wild
animals, thereby encouraging our employees to cherish food
and develop good dining habits.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s key environmental
data (covering Chongqing Headquarters region, excluding
other branches in Mainland China and institutions in Hong

#H E2021F12A318 AR AR IE
BEgE (REEEFETHE T8
FEhREAMEMS X HEE LTS

Kong region) are as follows: EEE)MT:

Name Unit 2020 2021
=% B 20204 20215
Greenhouse Gas Emissions and

Intensity From the Headquarters !
BRERERBHEHREREE
Vehicle emission tons 75.49 69.2
HEHEK M8
Canteen natural gas emission tons 0.08 0.08
RERARIEN U
Emission from electricity consumption tons 523.32 542.15
B {ERBER A
Total greenhouse gas emission tons 598.89 611.43
HAERBHYNRE 7
Total greenhouse gas emission intensity tons/m? of office area 0.06 0.06
ERAERBHNEER Mg, KA
Air Pollutant Emissions of the Official

Vehicles from the Headquarters 2
BEBMARERR SRR E?
NOx kg 163.42 149.8
AAL(INOY T
SOx kg 0.47 0.43
HEAL¥(SO,) Fr
CcO kg 346.81 317.91
— & {bHx(CO) T
PM kg 15.66 14.36
SRR T
Resources Consumption and

Intensity from the Headquarters 2
MRERHEERERE
Total power consumption thousand kWh 74.76 87.45
ME#E BE
Total power consumption intensity KWh/m?® of office area 77.86 80.34
RERERE B/ FHARELEE
Total water consumption thousand ton 0.53 0.68
RKEE =i
Total water consumption intensity tons/m’ of office area 0.55 0.71
RKEERE Mg, HORKEREEE
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Name Unit 2020 2021
=1 B 2020%F 20214
Total natural gas consumption 10 thousand m?® 0.35 0.28
RARHELEE B K
Total natural gas consumption intensity m3/m? of office area 0.36 0.29
ARARRERBEERE SLHOR R OKEEEE
Total gasoline consumption (Vehicles) 10 thousand liters 3.2 2.93
FURHRERE (JRF) Bt
Total gasoline consumption intensity (Vehicles) liter/vehicle 2,666.67 2,441.67
REFRERERE (7E) B
Paper consumption tons 2.22 1.9
FaHE A
Non-hazardous Waste Generation and

Intensity from the Headquarters
BRBEEBRREYELEEREE
Kitchen waste generation liter 34,020 33,169
BEENIRELAE 7t
Intensity of kitchen waste generation liter/person 68.04 66.07
BEENREATRE FADIN

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Due to the business nature of the Company, the emission of
greenhouse gases mainly comprises the emission as a result
of fuel combustion from mobile sources, i.e., greenhouse gas
emission of vehicles.

Due to the business nature of the Company, exhaust emission
mainly comprises vehicle emission.

In 2021, total mileage of vehicles was approximately 169,264.33
km and gasoline consumption was 29,317.79 liters.

All the Company’s vehicles are light vehicles running on gasoline.
The emission factors of nitrogen oxides (NOX), sulfur oxides (SOX)
and particulates are 0.885g/km, 0.0147g/liter and 0.0848g/km
respectively.

The Company’ s vehicles are powered by unleaded gasoline.
Emission factors of carbon dioxide (COZ2), methane (CH4) and
nitrous oxide (N20) are 2.36 kg/liter, 0.000253 kg/liter and
0.001105 kg/liter.

As part of the real properties at the Chongqing headquarters of the
Company were leased to other parties as places of business, there
are difficulties in calculating the intensity of resources consumption
for each building (including water consumption intensity).

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Given that the Company is engaged in the financial business which
is office-based with low energy consumption and low pollution, the
environmental impact of the Company’s operation is mainly caused
by greenhouse gas emission from vehicles and indirect greenhouse
gas emission from electricity and water consumption. The Company
is not aware of any significant generation of hazardous waste, and
product packaging materials as a result of its operation activities. It
did not encounter any problems in sourcing water.

Based on years of historical experience over the years, there will not
be any major climate change in the place where the Company is
located and material climate-related issues will not have any impact
on the Company’s daily operations.

In 2021, the Company reduced the use of cars, reducing car
emissions by 6,290 kg. Affected by the epidemic in 2020, the
number of employees working from home and outsourcing
services increased, resulting in an increase in water and electricity
consumption in 2021 compared with 2020. Water consumption
increased by 1,500.13 cubic meters compared to last year, and
electricity consumption increased by 126,900 kWh compared to last
year. The Company will continue to implement the above measures
on energy saving, waste recycling and reuse as well as office
automation, while proactively conducting studies on implementing
other environmental protection measures.

B. SOCIAL

The Company values talents and is devoted to recruiting
and retaining high-caliber employees for its own sustainable
growth. The Company values and treats the employees as
equals, safeguards their rights and offers them opportunities of
training and development, thus enabling employees to perform
to the best of their ability.
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1.

Employment and Labor Practices:

(1) Employment:

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had a total
of 1,125 employees (Full-time) in Mainland China and
Hong Kong. In terms of education background, 930
employees (83%) have bachelor’s degree or above,
and 195 employees (17%) have received post-
secondary education and below. In terms of lines
of work, 513 employees (46%) are front-office staff,
and 612 employees (54%) are middle-office and
back-office supporting staff. In terms of age, 122
employees (11%) are aged 20-30; 694 employees
(62%) are aged 31-40; 158 employees (20%) are
aged 41-50; and 87 employees (7%) are aged 51
and above.

In strict compliance with applicable laws and
regulations including the Labor Law of the PRC, the
Labor Contract Law of the PRC, the Implementation
Regulation of the Labor Contract Law of the PRC,
the Law on Safeguarding Women's Interests and
Rights of the PRC and the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance, the Company upholds the principle
of gender equality. As at 31 December 2021, the
Company had 574 male employees and 551 female
employees, with a gender ratio of 5:5.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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In the course of recruitment, the Company treats job
applicants equally and does not discriminate them
on the grounds of national origin, race, nationality,
gender, religion, age, sexual orientation, political
affiliation, marital status and other social identity. It
establishes employment relations based on legal,
fair and equal negotiation. In the course of day-to-
day management, the Company does not take into
consideration their national origin, race, nationality,
religion, age, sexual orientation, political affiliation,
marital status and other social identity in their
welfare, treatment and promotion.

In 2021, the employee dismissal/resignation rate
was 28%, covering employees who resigned
themselves and those dismissed by the Company
based on performance and competence. By gender,
the dismissal/resignation rates are 30% for male
employees and 26% for female employees.

By age group, the dismissal/resignation rates are
41% for employees aged 20-30, 30% for employees
aged 31-40, 16% for employees aged 41-50 and
15% for employees aged 51 and above.

The Company maintains strict compliance with
relevant national and regional requirements
for termination of employment relations. As to
employees’ voluntary resignation, the Company
negotiates with employees on an equal footing
and respects their decisions. Termination of labor
contracts, termination negotiation, dismissal and
other procedures are conducted in accordance
with laws. For dismissal due to employees’ violation
of laws, regulations and rules, the Company will
proceed as permitted by laws and regulations and
with reference to the Company’s “Employee Manual”.
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(2) Health and Safety:

The Company has always attached importance
to employees’ occupational health and safety. It
complies with applicable laws and regulations,
including the Labor Law of the PRC, the Labor
Contract Law of the PRC and the Implementation
Regulations of the Labor Contract Law of the PRC
in establishing and maintaining a safe, healthy and
people-oriented office environment to guarantee
employees’ interests and rights. From 2019 to 2021,
there was no case of work-related death or serious
injury.

According to the legal requirements of national and
regional governments, the Company practices a
working hour system of no more than 8 working
hours a day and no more than 40 hours a week.
Meanwhile, in the interest of staff’'s work-life balance,
we safeguard their rights to reasonable leave and
provide them with various kinds of leave, e.g., public
holiday leave, statutory holidays, annual leave, marital
leave, maternity leave and paternity leave, nursing
leave, funeral leave, sick leave, absence leave and
work-related injury leave.

The Company attaches great importance to
organizational culture building and employee care,
promotes cultural cohesion through employee
care, and incorporates corporate values and social
responsibility into organizational culture. In 2021,
the Company enhanced employees’ wellbeing
through various ways and optimized channels of
communication with employees, including work
anniversary wishes for employees; the “Love for the
Elderly” event at Chongyang Festival to pay tribute
to parents of our employees, activated our internal
communication platform and set up a “Super Topics”
space on “My HR” employee service platform, on
which “Taste of Spring Festival” and other thematic
columns were launched for employees to share their
work and life stories and insights, thereby deepening
the emotional connections between our employees
and their families and between our employees and
the Company, and enhancing our employees' sense
of identity and belonging.
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In terms of honors and commendations, the
Company held the “Employee Service Awards”
event and presented honorary certificates, letters of
appreciation and gifts to award-winning employees,
as a way of thanking employees for their dedication
and promoting our corporate culture. Besides, the
Company also held the “Employee of the Year”
and “Team of the Year” award event to reward and
commend teams and individuals with outstanding
performance, thereby setting up role model to
stimulate employees’ sense of honor and their
enthusiasm for work.

Organizational Development and Training:

In the fourth quarter of 2021, along with its
ongoing comprehensive digital transformation, the
Company swiftly reconstructed its organizational
structure through organizational restructuring and
personnel optimization and proceeded to improve
its staffing system and job-based pay system so as
to implement its strategy of focusing on digitally-
enabled operations. Since then, Hanhua Financial
has been gradually transforming into an investment
management platform, with more authority delegated
to lower-level management and decision-making
process streamlined to break down information
barriers while increasing the operational autonomy
and flexibility of each business units. On the other
hand, the operation teams at all levels gave full
play to their localized advantages, customized and
promoted the localization model of talents fostering
system in line with local actual conditions, reflecting
the flexibility and innovation of the overall system.
In addition, the Company continued to deepen the
previous programs, focused on the continuity and
consistency of talents development, and ensured
talents development to effectively serve business
development, thereby further building Hanhua's elite
team.
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In terms of staff development, the digitalized
management functions operated steadily. The
training data of the Company is kept under effective
control and management, and the training records
and training agreements are regularly updated to
ensure the training data is complete and effective.
The digital learning platform, E-Learning School,
has been in operation, organizing rich and diverse
learning activities, such as financial knowledge
competitions and e-Lectures. The digital learning
platform allows users to learn anytime and anywhere,
efficiently satisfying the training needs of each
enterprise wherever it locates. As at 31 December
2021, our employees completed a total of 13,700.4
hours of learning, with 12.66 hours per capita.

The percentage of employees received trainings in
2021 by gender: 50% male and 50% female; by
employee category: 71.1% general staff/supervisors,
19.4% department heads, and 69.5% general
managers or above.

The average training hours per employee by gender:
12.86 hours for male and 12.45 hours for female; by
employee category: 14.06 hours for general staff/
supervisors, 12.07 hours for department heads and
6.39 hours for general managers or above.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
RESERPERAH

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE - HERERHRS

A - EETEREH @ &
BYFLLEBNERTER
TEZ NaFJl&ER
HEE - BREBEEE
A0 8% « 555 175 o AT 85 BE
REBINEIER TEIL B -
BFEEZHTLEEF
E-—E2% AHLE%
ENEBEREZETY U
BAEOKNE BT
BE-BMFBFERIT
WEEMEMES &%
MEBtBEERRENR
HE2021F12A310 A
A B T4 81513,700.42
B A EH12.6657 K ©

2021 XIEEB D LLIE
SRR D B
50% ' 15 EE50% : % 1R
EfEpEY BT £
WAL EL71.1%  BBRF(L L
19.4% @ BB H KA L
15 E69.5% °

FREEEKZIMNFEY
BREBER ZMERE S :
BEMAE12868K Lt A
12,4585 kg B 38 5 &
D BI/EEH AH14.06
B G BEHKAEI12.072
B RAIB A N A FR6.39

B



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

(4) Performance and remuneration and

benefits:

In terms of performance incentives, we cleared
transmission barriers among our business units
through developing a digital platform and thus
effectuated the automatic alignment in respect of
data statistics, performance assessment and bonus
determination and payment, which has greatly
improved data accuracy and management efficiency.
In addition, each business segment has formulated
targeted evaluation and incentive schemes based
on its own characteristics and development
status and with reference to internal and external
management practices, and actively explored
market-based distribution and incentive mechanisms
such as partnerships to maximize value co-creation
and benefit and risk sharing, thereby driving the
continuous improvement of organizational efficiency.

In terms of remuneration and benefits, we reasonably
applied the principle of cost-effectiveness and
maintained effective payroll control. We optimized
our welfare system through flexible item settings
and concrete services, prioritized employees’ health
management and provided such benefits as social
insurance, health checks and commercial insurance
to give our employees more comprehensive and
practical protection. In addition, we proceeded to
outsource the administration and management of
our employee benefits in respect of social insurance
and housing provident fund contributions (“SIRHPF”),
and have formulated a step-by-step implementation
strategy after careful research on local policies
and operational methods of the places where our
operations are located. Currently, we have completed
the connection with the SI&HPF service provider’s
system and the SI&HPF transfer procedures for
employees at our headquarters and some of our
local business units, and will step by step complete
the outsourcing of SI&HPF administration and
management of all our employee SI&HPF in the
future.

We cleared transmission barriers among our
business units through developing a digital platform
and thus effectuated the automatic alignment in
respect of data statistics, performance assessment
and bonus determination and payment, which has
greatly improved data accuracy and management
efficiency.
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(5) Labor Standards:

The Company strictly complies with the Labor Law
of the PRC, the Labor Contract Law of the PRC, the
Law on Safeguarding Women’s Interests and Rights
of the PRC, the Law on the Protection of Minors
of the PRC, the Special Rules on Labor Protection
of Female Employees of the PRC, the Employment
Promotion Law of the PRC and other applicable laws
and regulations, as well as the local labor standards
where employees are located. In terms of personnel
recruitment, the Group complies with national and
local regulations and treats all employees equally
and fairly without discriminatory policies. In terms of
employee management, working hours and salary
and benefits are implemented in accordance with
relevant laws and regulations, and relevant reward
and punishment and daily management policies and
systems are clearly defined and communicated to
the employees. Employees are encouraged to have
friendly communication with the Company. Prior to
the establishment of employment relations, it carries
out strict identity screening and has never hired
minors. The relationship between the Company and
employees is fair and equal. The employment of the
Company'’s staff is subject to laws and their consent.

OPERATION PRACTICES:

(1) Supply Chain Management:

The Company is committed to building a responsible
supply chain, based on the principles of “seeking
truth from facts, supervising according to law”,
“openness, fairness and justice”, and “combining
supervision with work effectiveness” to build mutual
trust and win-win cooperation relationship with
suppliers.
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In the process of evaluating suppliers, the Company
adheres to the combination of offline and online
methods, strictly controls the process, adopts
multiple comparison principles, and selects the
best suppliers. At the same time, the Company
attaches great importance to the social and
environmental responsibilities assumed by suppliers
and their performances. Under the same conditions,
priority is given to purchasing energy-saving and
environmentally-friendly products that have passed
environmental labeling product certification, energy-
saving product certification, or other certifications
recognized by the state.

In terms of banking, the Company has cooperated
with more than 50 banks to obtain credit lines for
credit guarantee business of more than RMB40
billion. The five largest cooperative banks of the
Group each provided 32% of the bank financing
guaranteed by us, and the largest cooperative bank
provided 14% of the total financing guaranteed by
the Group.

In 2021, the Company is not aware of any major
actual and potential negative impacts caused by
any suppliers due to business ethics, environmental
protection and improper labor measures.

For office network, we selected China Unicom as
service provider. China Unicom has established
a “three-in-one” green management system,
including green concept, green practice and
green performance. It continued to implement
the Special Plan for Energy Conservation
and Emission Reduction for 2017-2020, and
formulated and implemented the “Special Action
for Cost Reduction and Efficiency Reduction” and
the “Special Implementation Plan for Pollution
Prevention and Control”. Meanwhile, it strived to
improve environmental management capabilities,
reduce greenhouse gas emissions, improve refined
management level, and established a long-term
mechanism for green development, contributing to
the prevention and control of pollution.

RS HERERKRE

EFEHERNBRES
ARRBFHEBETMAE
MEBEWN TR BBE
mRE ERNZHRLEBR
A -BEBER BER AR
AmEERHRERAEN
HEeEF RREEERHE
KB ERFHRETESL
RERBREBSTERR
ERMEEMRIELER
R A B0 H i 57 78 O BD Rk
RREmM -

FHRITTE ARAREHE
50 RW|ITETHIE &
BB ARE400ETTH
ERAEREBREEE -
REBHWAKXKEERTD
AR AR R MEROERT
BB L32%, &% K& 1ER
TREAEEERNOBE
BEEAEEE14% o

2021 B AR A WA
EEAMEEEERESE
ERIRERERS THEE
“EEKTNERER R
BENBAEZE-

PN E A B
TEBBRELTEREZE
B BOEE HBEM
ERAMI=—8ga%
BRZX HEEH (2017-
2020F £ gL R HE H 1E 48
Y HEWLEE[EAR
R BEIBETH] - [TH5
RIFABBREBEHE S
R BHARAREEER
HeomABEREHER 2
FrREMILERKE &7
GEeBRANRBEL B
NI w5 AP e BB o

Annual Report 2021
B -FFR

123



124

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HE8REAR

()

wE

For office stationery, we selected Deli brand. As the
largest conglomerate specializing in office and school
supplies in China, Deli has engaged environmental
management experts as its environmental protection
consultants to inspect and rectify the environmental
protection treatment equipment, production process,
operation process, production materials and
emission standards at each business unit, after that
the aforesaid aspects will be monitored and tested
by its environmental officers all the time; the Group’s
production safety management office conducts
environmental hygiene supervision and inspection
on all units and records relevant information in the
standing books.

In 2021, the Company was not aware of any actual
or potential significant negative influence due
to misconduct of suppliers in business ethnics,
environmental protection and labor measures.

Product Responsibility:

The Company is committed to providing outstanding
customer experience and ensuring that the provision
of products and services is legal, effective and safe.

The Company possesses a substantial amount of
information of corporate and individual customers
due to its business nature. Thus, it attaches great
importance to protecting customer information in
compliance with the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of
the PRC and other applicable laws and regulations
relating to health and safely, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters of products and services and
the redress method. It also adopted the following
protective measures:
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RS HERERKRE

Enhance customers’ self-protection awareness
and avoid information leakage from the source. In
the course of business promotion and processing,
we properly conduct warning of information
security so that customers are able to develop
clear understanding of the danger of information
security breach, learn how to strengthen information
protection and identify the authenticity of suggestive
information, and know about information theft and
how to deal with information leakage, etc.

Strengthen internal management to formulate a long-
lasting mechanism. On one hand, the Company
has optimized customer information management
mechanism, formulated standards for collection,
utilization and storage management of customers’
information and set limitation on operators’
access to information and contents according to
authorization and roles in the business system. The
Company keeps customers’ personal data properly
and forbids access by unrelated personnel. For
the personal credit system in particular, it also sets
up special position of credit search for designated
personnel. It keeps borrowing records with regard
to the borrowing authorization and scope strictly in
compliance with file access requirements.

Enhance position management. We strictly identify
positions handling customer information and
confidential materials and forbid unrelated personnel
to have access to confidential information. We strictly
regulate resigned staff's hand-over of files involving
customer information and request them to sign the
“Resigned Staff Confidentiality Undertaking”.

Enhance monitoring and accountability. We conduct
irregular review on the standardization of customer
file keeping and access as well as detect and rectify
hazards and loopholes in customer information
management work in a timely manner. We effectively
eliminate the non-compliance with regulations and
misconduct so as to block loopholes of leakage of
confidential information by means of establishing
supervisory and accountability.
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(3)

Strengthen customer information security and
confidentiality management with technological
approach. We have established the internal network,
external network and non-military region segregation
on the business system network level by means
of security devices so as to realize secured and
controllable visit of the Internet. We have also set
up intrusion inspection, loophole screening and log
auditing on the application level to ensure stable
operation of each system and avoid the loss and
tampering of customer information, while establishing
the comprehensive information security system to
ensure that daily customer behavior is secured and
compliant. We have established the data warehouse
for data centralization, as well as data analysis
and presentation through BI, which prevents data
leakage.

Anti-corruption:

In line with the attitude of being responsible
to shareholders, investors and employees, the
Company attaches great importance to anti-
corruption and governance. The Company has an
internal control and audit department to conduct
regular compliance reviews on its business and
management.

The Company adopts a zero-tolerance principle
in the fight against corruption and related non-
compliances. Upholding business ethics, it
formulated the “Employee Manual” and other
relevant rules. The manual clearly states that
employees should work with high professional ethics,
conduct with integrity, act with good faith, and that
any employee who is found to be involved in any
act of corruption, bribery or embezzlement will be
considered as having committed a serious violation
of discipline and will be dismissed by the Company
according to laws and regulations and without
any economic compensation. All employees have
signed the “Integrity Building Undertaking Letter”,
undertaking that they will not engage in any act in
violation of Company’s rules or regulations, work
ethics and the requirements set out in the letter
during their employment, otherwise they shall bear
all responsibilities and consequences (including
but not limited to civil compensation and criminal
responsibility).

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
RESERPERAH

3)

BAMRFRBILEPE
ER2REEE -HMO
EBEARPBEELABL
EREBELTAM IS
FREEHREH BERE
ML 2R ESRE ER
BEZTAR®EA KR
W& ASES BRE
AR EET LT
FEREXR HEX RARE
VTRENEELEHE
BREBEAPITANLE
BR-RMNERBERE "
ERBEET BEIMN
MERBBAELE T -
MR THABENRE -

RES:

NEEREERR REH
RETREWMEE ER
RRZZERMEBE - AR A
REANEZEEFHIT 8F
B EBE R ERETIEET
ABRER-

RAHBES R BRELTT
REBZERBRA ER
BEBRER BIET (B
TFf) SHEMRE: (B
TFf) AERE-BT
BENRREBREBESR
BITE MITEE BTH
BEER B3 WXHE.
THIBBARETRE
RBEEELTR RAA
BRBERER T IABER -
A F A E T B {E o
2REINHEER (KK
BRABE)  EREBR
HEERIREEMERA
ARERE BERERNA
RAEAZENTA BAK
AEZHEE(EHEESD
RRRERERME ME
BE)-



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

In addition, the Company carries out educational
campaigns on anti-corruption on a regular basis, using
real cases to raise employees’ awareness against
corruption.

During the Reporting Period, the Company was not
involved in any corruption litigation against the Company
or its staff.

COMMUNITY:

The senior management of the Company is committed to
social responsibility. In 2021, due to the continued impact
of the COVID-19 epidemic, most industry associations
and summit forums suspended and reduced their offline
events or switched to online events. Following the
requirements of epidemic prevention and control, the
management of the Company adopted diversified ways
to participate in public activities to spread the concept of
inclusive finance and fulfilled and social responsibility of
the Company as an inclusive financial service provider.

In October 2021, Mr. Zhang Guo Xiang, Chairman of
the Board, attended the 2nd Summit on Cooperation
of the Chambers of Commerce of the Chengdu-
Chongging Economic Circle jointly organized by the
United Front Work Department of Sichuan Provincial
Party Committee, the United Front Work Department
of Chongging Municipal Party Committee, Sichuan
Federation of Industry and Commerce and Chongging
Federation of Industry and Commerce, and delivered
a speech on opportunities and challenges arising from
jointly developing the Chengdu-Chongging Economic
Circle at the summit. In December 2021, Mr. Zhang
Guo Xiang attended the 9th Annual Conference of
Chinese Entrepreneurs where and was appointed as Vice
Chairman of the Chinese Entrepreneur Commerce Club,
while the Company was admitted as a corporate member
of the Listed Companies Club of Chinese Entrepreneur
Commerce. At the symposium on “specialization,
refinement, differentiation and innovation & sci-tech self-
reliance and self-strengthening”, Mr. Zhang Guo Xiang
delivered a speech on how to cultivate SMEs with
advantages of specialization, refinement, differentiation
and innovation to break the “bottlenecks” and realize self-
reliance and self-strengthening in science and technology,
and on enterprises how to develop towards specialization,
refinement, differentiation and innovation.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated in the PRC on 13 March 2013 as
a company with limited liability. Details are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Information” in this Report.

The scope of business of the Company as reflected on the business
license includes investment business, investment management and
investment advisory.

The Group mainly offers diversified and comprehensive financial
services to serve the financing and business needs of SMEs
and microenterprises under several business lines such as credit
guarantee, internet finance, financial factoring, capital management
and financing leases in China.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss on page 166
of this report.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
RESERPERAH

ExERE

EECEHABRRREAEEEE2021
FI2A31B L FEREURCEZYH
WK

RAERRITEXR

ARG RN2013FE3 A 13H £ 7 H 5% it
MBI HDBER AR FMEREHRAK
RETARER] —55-

ARRZXPR I EZHE/NERE
X REBEHERRERLN-

AEETEEBERER THESHE-
THRE - BEAEELMEHEEFER
FERFEIR/TENPNMIERERST
iR e e mRE ARB P I
MBENEBEE-

FEXRE

AREFEHE2021FE12A31HILEEHNE
EHNANREF166EMNAS IR R



Report of the Board of Directors

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development are set out in the paragraphs headed “Business
Overview” and “Prospects” under the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this report respectively. Descriptions of
possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are
provided in this Report of the Board of Directors on pages 133 to
134. Particulars of important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the financial year ended 31 December
2021 can be found in this Report of the Board of Directors on
pages 136. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year using financial key performance indicators is provided in the
Financial Highlights on pages 13 to 20 of this report. In addition,
discussions on the Group'’s environmental policies and performance,
important relationships with its stakeholders and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations are contained and available in this
Report of the Environmental, Social and Governance on page 107
to page 127, respectively. The above discussions constitute part of
this Report of the Board of Directors.

In view of the comprehensive impact of the market environment,
regulatory policies and other aspects on the microfinance business,
in order to optimize resources and improve asset efficiency, the
Company decided to scale down the microfinance business, and
also decide to cancel Nanning, Tianjin and Shenyang Hanhua Small
Loan Co., Ltd.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the
last five financial years are set out on page 8 of this report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR BANKING PARTNERS/SUPPLIERS

The five major banking partners of the Group each provided 32%
of the bank financing we guaranteed. The largest banking partner
accounted for 14% of the total financing the Group guaranteed.

Due to the Group’s business nature, the Group does not have
major suppliers.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Our customers primarily include SMEs, micro-enterprises and
individuals. For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue derived
from our five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of our
total net fee and interest income.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (who, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interests in the Group’s five largest customers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out on pages 171 to
172 of the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” in the
financial statements in this report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out on pages 171 to 172 in the
“Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” of this report and in
note 32 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

According to actual conditions of the Company and its needs
arising from its coordinated sustainable development in the future,
the Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and
the Group as at 31 December 2021 are set out in note 25 to the
financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company did not enter
into any equity-linked agreements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INDEMNITIES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to
the date of this report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity
provision being in force for the benefit of any of the directors and
the supervisors of the Company (whether made by the Company
or otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the Company).
The Company has arranged appropriate directors’, supervisors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors, supervisors
and officers of the Group.

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME

On 27 May 2015, the 2014 annual general meeting of the Company
considered and approved the proposal on the grant of bonus in the
form of shares in open market to the senior and middle to senior
management of the Company under the share incentive scheme
(the “Scheme”), a medium and long-term incentive scheme to
increase in share by the senior and middle to senior management
with incentive fund base of the portion of year-end performance-
related remuneration of the participants. In 2015, the Scheme was
gradually implemented in accordance with the relevant procedures.
5,738,623 H shares of the Company were acquired from the open
market. As of the date of this report, all of the above 5,738,623
H shares were unlocked and vested to individuals. There were
currently H Shares remaining due to the factors such as resignation
of the members of senior management.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Our risk management committee is the highest decision-making
organisation on risk management, fully responsible for risk
management of the Group. Our internal control departments
including risk management and internal control and audit as well as
other departments and business department form a system of pre-,
during and post-incident risk management and internal control.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has identified
our actual risks including credit risk, market risk, operational risk,
liquidity risk, of which credit risk is our major risk. Besides, this
report does not constitute a recommendation or an advice for
anyone to invest in the securities of the Company and investors
are advised to make their own judgment or consult their own
investment advisors before making any investment in the securities
of the Company.

Credit Risk Management

In the light of the characteristics of credit risk, the Company
shifted gradually the way of risk assessment from single business
project to that on product and business model, and formulated
admission criteria, investigation standard, credit standard, operation
procedure, post-loan management and method of payment call for
each product. The Company made amendment and improvement
to policies and operation standard on admission and investigation
of guarantee, loan, factoring and leasing, specific operation
requirements and management requirement of post-guarantee and
loan to ensure the suitability and feasibility of the policies during the
year.
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Market Risk Management

Based on its exposure to the specific market risks, the Company
established stringent industrial and regional credit policy. In respect
of the industrial credit policy, it conformed to the national industrial
policies and industry development trends, selected the best
sectors and made dynamic adjustment. In respect of the regional
credit policy, it has taken into account of the local credit market
conditions, regional risk level, competition level to control the scale
and use of the credit facility. Coupled with differentiated pricing
administrative measures based on customer classification, scale of
single transaction, and income-to-cost ratio, this enabled “better
than average management, preventive system and revenue covering
cost”.

Operational Risk Management

The Company prevented the operational risk from the origin
through strict management of authorization and implementation
of installation of two persons, dual position and double duties
for key positions, and established a system of normalized check
and reporting and feedback and improvement mechanism of risk
incident, which effectively prevented the operational risk.

Liquidity Risk Management

“Liquidity safety” is the first management objective for our Planned
Finance Department, which is responsible for overall management
of our liquidity risk. Each subsidiary is required to compile a daily
sheet of monetary liquidity to submit to the Planned Finance
Department. Our Planned Finance Department flexibly adjusts
the size and structure of the balance sheet by monitoring various
liquidity risk limits and cash flow. This is to ensure to maintain
sufficient cash reserve to meet liquidity needs in the short and long
term and guarantee our liquidity safety.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The third session of the Board was elected in the extraordinary
general meeting held on 28 May 2019. The appointment of the third
session of the Board became effective on 28 May 2019.

The third session of the Board comprised a total of 12 Directors,
including two executive Directors, five non-executive Directors and
five independent non-executive Directors.

Details of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and as of the date of this report are
set out in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” of this report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has received the annual confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors in respect of their independence, and
considered all of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors of the third session of the
Board renewed his/her service contract with the Company on 28
May 2019, for a term of three years from 28 May 2019.

Each of the Supervisors of the third session of the board of the
Supervisors renewed his/her service contract on 28 May 2019, the
term of which is consistent with that of the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS, TRANSACTIONS OR
ARRANGEMENTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors or the supervisors or any entity connected
with them has any material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract, transaction or arrangement of significance to
the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its holding
companies, any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries was a party
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Except as disclosed in this report, during the year ended 31
December 2021, none of the Directors and their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had an interest in a
business which causes or may cause any significant competition
with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of interest
which any such person has or may have with the Group.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Under the remuneration policy of the Group, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee will consider factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, tenure, commitment, responsibilities and
performance (as the case may be) of our Directors, supervisors and
the senior management, in assessing the amount of remuneration
payable to our Directors, supervisors and the senior management.

PENSION SCHEME

The Group is required to participate in Contributions to retirement
schemes organised by the respective municipal governments of
the PRC whereby the Group is required to pay annual contributions
to retirement for the PRC based employees at certain rate of
the standard wages determined by the relevant authorities in the
PRC during the year. The Group has no other material obligation
for payment of retirement benefits to employees beyond the
contributions to retirement described above.
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Report of the Board of Directors

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, supervisors and the
five highest paid individuals are set out in note 7 and note 8 to the
financial statements.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Management” in this report, there was no change to
any of the information required to be disclosed in relation to any
Directors and supervisors pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g)
of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules since 1 January 2021.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) which were required, (a)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be notified to
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as
follows:
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(i) Interests in the Company (i) RAEQAMHES

Approximate Approximate

percentage  percentage in

No. of in relevant total share

Name of Shareholder Position Class of share Nature of interests shares held  class of share capital

EEBROERN  GRAEHZ

BRRE® Bifr BB ER BEtE BERGEE 2BHEIHO  BREAHL

(Shares) (1) (%) (%)

Zhang Guoxiang"! Director Domestic Share Beneficial owner/Interests of 453,185,762 13.21 9.85
REFO £ NER controlled corporation (Long position)
EnlEE A/ REEERER (#8)

H Share Beneficial owner 585,971 0.05 0.01
HE& EREAA (Long position)
(#2)

\Wang Fangfei? Director Domestic Share Interests of controlled corporation 231,532,653 6.75 5.03
IxgEe Ex NEK REEEER (Long position)
(#2)

Cui Weilan Director Domestic Share Beneficial owner 2,058,742 0.06 0.04
ERE £ NER EREAA (Long position)
(#2)

H Share Beneficial owner 648,006 0.06 0.01
HE& EREAA (Long position)
(#2)

Liu Jiaoyang Director Domestic Share Beneficial owner 441,159 0.01 0.01
2%t £ NER EREAA (Long position)
(#8)

Li Ruping Supervisor Domestic Share Beneficial owner 2,352,848 0.06 0.05
E3URs £ NER EREAA (Long position)
(#8)

Chen Zhonghua Supervisor Domestic Share Beneficial owner 441,159 0.01 0.01
B i £ NER EREAA (Long position)
(#8)

Qin Yong Supervisor Domestic Share Beneficial owner 588,212 0.02 0.01
7B Ex NEK EREEA (Long position)
(#2)

1 38 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Zhang Guoxiang directly holds approximately 66.4% of
the equity interest of Huitai, which directly holds 450,416,901
Domestic Shares of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Zhang
Guoxiang is deemed to be interested in the 450,416,901
Domestic Shares held by Huitai. Mr. Zhang Guoxiang also directly
holds 2,768,861 Domestic Shares of the Company.

Ms. Wang Fangfei directly holds 55% of the equity interest
of Chongging Jiulong Investment Co., Ltd. (“Chongqing
Jiulong”), which directly holds 231,532,653 Domestic shares
of the Company. Accordingly, Ms. Wang Fangfei is deemed
to be interested in the 231,632,653 Domestic Shares held by
Chongqing Jiulong.

As at 31 December 2021, the issued Domestic Shares and
the H Shares of the Company were 3,430,000,000 Shares and
1,170,000,000 Shares.

As at 31 December 2021, there were 4,600,000,000 Shares of
the Company in issue.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none
of the Directors, supervisors or the chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO)
which are required (i) to be recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or (ii) to be notified to
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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(ii) Interests in associated corporations

None of the Directors, supervisors or the chief executives of
the Company had any interests or short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

None of the Directors or supervisors or any of their respective
associates was granted by the Company or its subsidiaries any
right to acquire shares or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate, or had exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the persons (not being a Director,
supervisor or chief executive of the Company) or corporations
having interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO and recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO and who were directly and/or indirectly deemed to
be interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of the Company are listed as follows:
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Approximate Approximate
percentage percentage in
No. of in relevant total share
Name of Shareholder Class of share Nature of interests shares held class of share capital
LEBRGERZ Nt
BRRER B8R BEME FEROHUE BREDH BREDH
(share) (1) (%) (%) ©
Huitai Domestic Share Beneficial owner 450,416,901 13.13 9.79
2% W& K BEREBA (Long position)
(#%8)
Loncin Holdings"® Domestic Share Beneficial owner 432,188,780 12.60 9.40
BEEROe NE R EXBBEA (Long position)
(#%8)
Loncin Group®® Domestic Share Interests of controlled corporation 432,188,780 12.60 9.40
EEEE WE K REEREL (Long position)
(#%8)
Shenzhen Jinling Huaruan ~ Domestic Share Beneficial owner 280,000,000 8.16 6.09
Xintai Investment WE Bk BEREBA (Long position)
Partnership (Limited (178)
Partnership)
RIeEERBRRESE
rE(EREH)
Beijing Daoyang Zhengde Domestic Share Beneficial owner 270,000,000 7.87 5.87
Information Consulting NER BEREBA (Long position)
Co., Ltd. (#8)
TREHERESEA
BRAE
Wang Mingyue Domestic Share Beneficial owner 269,824,593 7.87 5.87
A NE R EXBEA (Long position)
(#%8)
Chongging Qianbaitai Domestic Share Beneficial owner 249,136,926 7.26 542
Management Co., Ltd W& Kk BREBA (Long position)
ERTEALEERERAA (#%8)
Chongging Jiulon Domestic Share Beneficial owner 231,532,663 6.75 5.03
BENE NE R ERBEA (Long position)
(#%8)
Max Wisdom International H Share Beneficial owner 75,000,000 6.41 1.63
Industrial Limited Hi% BREBA (Long position)
BREREXERAR (#%8)
Golden Sapientia Investment H Share Beneficial owner 63,000,000 5.38 1.37
Limited Hi% BREBA (Long position)
SEREFRAA (#%8)
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

Notes:

1. Loncin Holdings directly holds 432,188,780 Domestic Shares of the
Company.

2. Loncin Group directly holds 98% of the equity interest of Loncin
Holdings, which directly holds 432,188,780 Domestic Shares of the
Company. Accordingly, under the SFO, Loncin Group is deemed to
be interested in the 432,188,780 Domestic Shares held by Loncin
Holdings.

3. The 432,188,780 Shares held by Loncin Group and Loncin Holdings
are of the same interest and duplicated each other.

4. As at 31 December 2021, the issued Domestic Shares and
the H Shares of the Company were 3,430,000,000 Shares and
1,170,000,000 Shares.

5. As at 31 December 2021, there were 4,600,000,000 Shares of the
Company in issue.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no purchase,
sale or redemption of any listed securities of the Company by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the relevant
laws or the Articles of Association of the PRC that would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Report of the Board of Directors

COMPANY’S ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE RESPONSIBILITY
AND PERFORMANCE

The Group strives for the long-term sustainable development of
our business and the regions where our businesses are located.
The Group has been actively performing our environmental, social
and governance responsibilities and conducting our business
in a socially-responsible way while creating monetary value
for our Shareholders. The Company strictly complies with the
requirements of Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guides issued by the Stock Exchange, whereby the Company is
committed to incorporating the sustainable development principle
into our corporate development strategies and daily operation and
management and acting as a responsible corporate citizen. In
2021, the Company provided our staff with a premium development
platform and safe working environment. We protect the
environment, treasure the natural resources and spare no efforts in
reducing the impact of our operation on the environment. We value
our customers and suppliers, and provide premium product and
service and continuously optimize the management of our suppliers.

Pursuant to Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules, the Company
prepared the Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which
is set out from page 107 to page 127 of this report.

COMPANY’S COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is able to comply with relevant requirements of laws,
regulations, rules and provisions of the Companies Ordinance,
the Listing Rules and SFO in Hong Kong, the Company Law of
the PRC, the Basic Norms of Enterprise Internal Control, Interim
Measures for the Administration of Financing Guarantee Companies,
Guiding Opinions of China Banking Regulatory Commission and
People’s Bank of China on Pilot Projects of Small Loan Companies,
Guidance on Promoting the Healthy Development of Internet
Finance in the PRC etc., including information disclosure, corporate
governance and standard industry operation, etc.. The Group has
also adopted the Model Code in Hong Kong.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

All material related party transactions as disclosed in note 37 to
the financial statements did not constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are required to comply with
any of the reporting, announcements, independent shareholders’
approval or annual reporting requirements under the Listing Rules.
In particular, transactions under category (a) were provided under
services contract of the relevant management, transactions under
category (b) on other revenue and guarantee income are either
transactions with persons connected with insignificant subsidiaries
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, or transactions
where all applicable percentage ratios (other than profit ratio) were
less than 0.1%, and the remaining transactions under category (b)
do not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed together with the management
and external auditors the accounting principles and policies adopted
by the Group and the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and has steered its development and
protected the interests of its Shareholders in an enlightened and
open manner. As at the date of this report, the Board has adopted
the Code Provisions as its corporate governance code.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report,
the Directors confirmed that the Company has maintained the
required public float under the Listing Rules.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Report of the Board of Directors

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 have been audited by KPMG.

KPMG shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the selection
of auditors for 2022 of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board of

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.*
Zhang Guoxiang

Chairman of the Board

30 March 2022

*  For identification purpose only
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ESEHRE

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

In 2021, pursuant to the requirements set out in the Company Law
of the PRC and the Articles of Association, the Board of Supervisors
of the Company has attentively performed its duties and proactively
carried out supervision on the financial activities, internal control,
risk management, lawful operation as well as the performance of
duties by the Board and senior management of the Company, thus
effectively contributing to the optimization of governance of the
Company and to the healthy and sustainable development of the
Company.

PARTICULARS OF THE MAJOR WORKS OF THE
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

The Board of Supervisors convened meetings of the Board
of Supervisors pursuant to laws and regulations. In 2021, the
Board of Supervisors convened two regular meetings in which the
Board of Supervisors summarized its work throughout the year and
reviewed the interim report, and attended one general meeting and
four Board meetings. The Board of Supervisors has supervised the
general meeting and Board meetings with regard to the legality,
compliance and the procedure of voting thereof. The Board of
Supervisors has also supervised the performance of duties by the
Board and senior management.

The Board of Supervisors endeavored in conducting proper
finance supervision. By focusing on the compilation, verification
and disclosure of regular reports, the Board of Supervisors
communicated with external auditors and auditors on a regular
basis, strengthened the analysis of major issues that may affect
the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the financial
reports, timely followed up and gained knowledge of the changes
of regulatory requirements, and provided opinions and suggestions.
In accordance with relevant requirements, the Board of Supervisors
conducted supervision on the selection and appointment of external
auditors and auditors, and oversaw capital management of the
Company, and the management of insiders of inside information.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
RESERPERAH

e

20214 - $@ﬂ&$AE%¢I<QE
E) MERNBE REBTERE BE
FREE T WAQARMBKEE AP
2H RBRER- -AFELE BEZTEANS
BEEENEREESBRET TAX
EE AREARNRREMEERRESR
REETIER-

EEEFTETHEER

REREREHESEERE 20215
HEREETHEI 2R LEFEES
STHEBR BERPHBE JNERRK
BIRIFEEEFGLIRN HRRAGNE

FRMAEARM BERREFET
B HEFE SREREOERSER
BITEE -

DEMFUBEE - UEHRENRER -
B WERAER HEINEDE T AD A AZ B
B EHIBE MY EMBRE
BEEM EEE TEENEREFENSD
i RESHRERREEZRNEL R
BEREZ - RRAUER EEINBE
EMZBET M ER T BARFERN
EE ABHEMBABTEBREET

1=
EE-



Report of the Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors substantially participated in internal
control supervision. The Board of Supervisors regularly debriefed
special reports on the work of internal control and compliance, key
findings and rectification in internal audit and prevention and control
over non-compliance cases, and strengthened supervision on the
internal control formulation and assessment work.

The Board of Supervisors strengthened risk management
supervision. It paid attention to the major risks faced by the
industry and debriefed special reports with regard to the work of
risk management and liquidity risk management and provided timely
opinions and suggestions.

INDEPENDENT OPINIONS OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS ON RELEVANT MATTERS

Lawful Operation of the Company. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the business activities of the Company complied
with the PRC Company Law and the Articles of Association, the
internal control system was improved, and the decision-making
procedures were lawful and valid. None of the Directors or senior
management of the Company was found to have violated the
relevant laws, regulations or the Articles of Association or harmed
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders.

Authenticity of Financial Report. The financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 were prepared
in accordance with the HKFRSs and were audited by KPMG in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing. The auditor
issued standard unqualified audit report.

Internal Control. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company continued to strengthen and optimize its internal control,
and the Board of Supervisors lodged no objections to the Report
on Assessment of Internal Control for 2021.
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Report of the Board of Supervisors

ESEHRE

Implementation of resolutions passed at the general
meeting(s). The Board of Supervisors lodged no objections to
the reports and proposals submitted by the Board to the general
meetings in 2021, and having inspected the execution of the
resolutions of general meetings, concluded that the Board had
duly implemented the relevant resolutions passed at the general
meeting(s).

Opinions on Performance Assessment of Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management of the Company. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, all Directors, supervisors and
senior management were diligent in duly carrying out their duties
and were evaluated as qualified in the performance assessment.

By order of the Board of Supervisors
Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.*
Li Ruping

Chairman of the Board of Supervisors

28 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent auditor’s report to
the shareholders of Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hanhua
Financial Holding Co., Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 166 to 316, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the People’s Republic of China, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ETHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS AREETEE
BRESEELSBERMOBZHE.
RMBEBUEENBRRBHBRAEE
m%ﬁ'L%$EMPﬂuﬁMﬁﬁ%
BETEHIFERERASE &M
Ti LEIFIRMHEBNER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Assessing expected credit loss allowance of loans and receivables measured at amortized cost and
provisions for guarantee losses

FEUBBREATENERRERRENREEGNREREEERS

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(k)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements: Credit losses
from financial instruments, contract assets and lease receivables”, “Note 1(k)(iij) to the consolidated
financial statements: Credit losses from financial guarantees issued”, and Notes 14, 15, 16, 17 and 27
to the consolidated financial statements.

FEHEHMBEEHEIKN)EB T A CHEEREREEH BN EERX]  [HE1(Kk)(ii) 3% 1781 515

RERBEEBX | WETBE URMTZE14, 15, 16, 17727 -
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRETSE EETHOAERZEER

Impairments of loans and advances to customers,
trade and other receivables, finance lease receivables
and receivables for factoring business (together as
“loans and receivables measured at amortized
cost”) and provisions for guarantee losses are both
the subjective areas due to the level of judgement
applied by management in determining allowances and
provisions.

ABESAR ARG EM B NE R R BURRER B
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The Group uses the expected credit loss (“ECL”) model
to calculate the loss allowance in accordance with
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (‘HKFRS 9”).

BEEEREBEREMBREENZSReMTAER &
REMEERKL ([ECL ) HAG BB KEHHE -

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of
loans and receivables measured at amortized cost and
provisions for guarantee losses included the following:

B AT iy AR SR K N 51 2 1) B 3R K B UK R TEDRL (B D HE R
BELEASHEBANSEFEAPBEUATER:

® assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key controls over the
approval, recording and monitoring of loans and
receivables measured at amortized cost and
guarantees, the credit grading process and the
measurement of impairment losses and provisions
for guarantee losses.

o BEMAMAEBENEBSRKATENERREKHIA
EEM R BE - DBRRIEBEUALBEERME
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BYETRE

BRRETEE(A)

provisions for guarantee losses (Continued)

Assessing expected credit loss allowance of loans and receivables measured at amortized cost and

AEUBSEATENERRERRENBREEGNEREEHERS (A)

to the consolidated financial statements.

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(k)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements: Credit losses
from financial instruments, contract assets and lease receivables”, “Note 1(k)(iii) to the consolidated
financial statements: Credit losses from financial guarantees issued”, and Notes 14, 15, 16, 17 and 27

EEHEHHBEREHFIKNiNEB LA CHEEREKEES BN S EE X [HEE1(k)(ii)Z T &
RERPIEEE K. | BB ZE URKIF14, 15, 16, 17F]27 -

The Key Audit Matter
BRESEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESPNAEHZER

The determination of loss allowances using the
expected credit loss model is subject to a number
of key parameters and assumptions, including the
identification of loss stages, estimates of probability
of default, loss given default, exposures at default
and discount rate, adjustments for forward-looking
information and other adjustment factors. Management
judgment is involved in the selection of those
parameters and the application of the assumptions.
ERRBCERBERERAREEBESNBRER I RIE
THARZ2BNEBRNER BEELEERARENMRER
o BOME BOBEARX BHORREERE HRX
EZ2Y T ARZEEAMELERABRREMAREAES
EEULEZ2HNEDNNBRNERBEFTIRRENE
2 g I -

® assessing the reliability of the expected credit
loss model used by management in determining
loss allowances, including assessing the
appropriateness of the key parameters and
assumptions in the expected credit loss model,
including the identification of loss stages,
probability of default, loss given default, exposure
at default, discount rate, adjustments for forward-
looking information and other management
adjustments.

s HEEEEMOBEEGRMANEREREKL
BEAMS2HHAET SEIEEEEARED
FEREID  BHOMEX BHBLE BORRREE-
FHRX AEULAERRERERNES LAEH

RATE R EAREEEAEBRSERE:

Annual Report 2021
—E-—FFR

151



152

Independent Auditor’s Report

BYETRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BRRETEE(A)

guarantee losses

USSR ENER R ERE

Assessing impairment of loans and receivables measured at amortized cost and provisions for

SENBEEFNERBEEEFS

to the consolidated financial statements.

REXEEREIHE

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(k)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements: Credit losses
from financial instruments, contract assets and lease receivables”, “Note 1(k)(iiij) to the consolidated
financial statements: Credit losses from financial guarantees issued”, and Notes 14, 15, 16, 17 and 27

EEHAHHEREHZIKND)ERTE CHEEREKBEES BN EERK ] [HF1(k)(ii)% 175 % 1&
FTEFE U RKEE14, 15, 16, 17127 -

The Key Audit Matter
BRESEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESPNAEHZER

In particular, the determination of the loss allowances
and provisions for guarantee losses is heavily
dependent on the external macro environment and the
Group’s internal credit risk management strategy. The
expected credit losses and provisions for guarantee
losses are derived from estimates including the Group’s
historical losses, internal and external credit grading
and other adjustment factors.

HINEREBRIRIBEME S E W*M*ﬂ%}—h B & 7 5K B 1 T8 A
EH Taéﬂi’*” MIEEERANTE T HBAR2H

MRZE  EEEHRER M EWFIRREERRE
R EE 1a+1%$}5ﬁ%%ﬁ’9§@%ﬁﬁﬂéi%$ CAEE

TR INBIERATRREMARRERE -

Management also exercises judgement in determining
the quantum of loss given default based on a range of
factors. These include available remedies for recovery,
the financial situation of the borrower, the recoverable
amount of collateral, the seniority of the claim and
the existence and cooperativeness of other creditors.
The enforceability, timing and means of realisation of
collateral can also have an impact on the recoverable
amount of collateral and, therefore, the amount of
impairment losses and provisions for guarantee losses
as at the end of the reporting period.
EERAEREENBAER ERERZRZER
HoELAZREAKESE ERANMBAR B
Wyl EeE EREXEIRY EEFEHEMEREA
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® assessing the completeness and accuracy of
data used for the key parameters in the expected
credit loss model. For key parameters derived
from internal data relating to original loan or
guarantee agreements, we compared the total
balances of the loan list and guarantee list to
assess the accuracy of compilation of the list,
which contain information used by management
to assess impairment losses and provisions
for guarantee losses, with the general ledger
and compared individual loan and guarantee
information, on a sample basis, with the underlying
loan and guarantee agreements and other related
documentation to assess the presentation of the
information in the loan list and in the guarantee list.
For key parameters derived from external data, we
selected samples to inspect the accuracy of such
data by comparing them with public resources.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BYETRE

BRRETEE(A)

Assessing expected credit loss allowance of loans and receivables measured at amortized cost and

provisions for guarantee losses

USSR ENERRERRENREEANREREHERS

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(k)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements: Credit losses
from financial instruments, contract assets and lease receivables”, “Note 1(k)(iii) to the consolidated
financial statements: Credit losses from financial guarantees issued”, and Notes 14, 15, 16, 17 and 27

to the consolidated financial statements.

EEHEHHBERE M FIKNNEB LA SHEEREKHEES BN S EE K] [HE1(k)(ii)Z T &
RERPIEEE K. | HEEZE URKIF14, 15, 16, 17F]27 -

The Key Audit Matter
BRESEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESPNAEHZER

We identified assessing expected credit loss allowance
of loans and receivables measured at amortized
cost and provisions for guarantee losses as a key
audit matter because of the inherent uncertainty and
management judgement involved and because of their
significance to the financial results of the Group.

FR R ABE SR K R 51 8 1) B 51 K B W SR IE HY R (B 2E A0
ERECEGENBEFERES THEEMNA RS KE
EREHE REHEAEESENKENRGELEE
T B BPIEANBERK AT ENE R R ERFIEN
BEEBNMERBEELEGSNBEIAARESS
I8 o

e for key parameters involving judgement, critically
assessing input parameters by seeking evidence
from external sources and comparing to the Group’s
internal records including historical loss experience
and type of collateral. As part of these procedures,
we challenged the reasons or modifications to
estimates and model parameters, considered
the consistency of management judgments. We
compared the economic factors used in the models
with market information to assess whether they were
aligned with market and economic development.
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KRBEERIAZAMLHE - ER LRENXN—
B HMAEAFETEEBEHARRINBAZ
HHRBENARFMAZRNIES WEREREMN
ERNABRD — B -HMABLER R EANL
BEEEEMSAL HERESEMS N REH
ERIBENMER -

e for key parameters used in the expected credit
loss model which were derived from system-
generated internal data, assessing the accuracy
of input data by comparing the input data with
original documents on a sample basis. In addition,
we involved our IT specialists to assess the logics
and compilation of the overdue information of
loans for selected samples.

e HHUFTHAREEEKRNBARADER  HME
BPERAGRGRMABHNZHERIGERAFER
B A BRI e EEE - dE s R BB AP E R
MERNITIE EEIERAOER AR T EX
B EMNREEE-
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B ETHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) BRETEE (&)

Assessing expected credit loss allowance of loans and receivables measured at amortized cost and
provisions for guarantee losses (Continued)

AEUBSEATENERRERRENREEGNEREEERS (A)

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(k)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements: Credit losses
from financial instruments, contract assets and lease receivables”, “Note 1(k)(iii) to the consolidated
financial statements: Credit losses from financial guarantees issued”, and Notes 14, 15, 16, 17 and 27
to the consolidated financial statements.

BEHEHUMBREHZIKNi)EBTAE SHEERERHEEN AN EERB X [H1(k)(i) %175 515
RERBIEEBL | HETBE  URM 14, 15, 16, 177127 -

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

HREETER EESPNAEHZER

e evaluating the validity of management’s
assessment on whether the credit risk of loans
and receivables measured at amortized cost and
guarantees has, or has not, increased significantly
since initial recognition and whether loans and
receivables measured at amortized cost and
guarantees are credit-impaired on a sample basis.
We analysed the portfolio by industry sector to
select samples in industries more vulnerable to the
current economic situation with reference to other
borrowers with potential increased credit risk. We
checked the overdue information, making enquiries
of the credit managers about the borrowers’
business operations, checking borrowers’ financial
information and researching market information
about borrowers’ businesses.

e HETEEFHNBENUNESRKATENERR
EWFIEMERNERRREVEEREESEE
I e FIE A = S B3 A {E FURUE Y H BT 89
SR - EBREARESEEEEEERARENRE
REDERNESEM -KRMRBITED Y AE
RN ARGt M B R R EUCRIBEF ERET DT
BEXBRIKERREYERANTEARAEMERE
VB TE = F R B A 18 B R R UK o R PIE B R
BANWER FEFHBEENBHREA BEEE
FAERARRMR  MEELERBEERANL
ERN BEEBRANMBEAARESZEBE
RAEBHTHAEE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Independent Auditor’s Report

BYETRE

BRRETEE(A)

Assessing expected credit loss allowance of loans and receivables measured at amortized cost and

provisions for guarantee losses (Continued)

AEUBSEATENERRERRENREEGNEREEERS (A)

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(k)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements: Credit losses
from financial instruments, contract assets and lease receivables”, “Note 1(k)(iii) to the consolidated
financial statements: Credit losses from financial guarantees issued”, and Notes 14, 15, 16, 17 and 27

to the consolidated financial statements.

EEHEHHBERE M FIKNiNEB LA CHEEREKHEES BN S EE K] [HE1(k)(ii)Z T8 B E
RERPIEEE K. | BB ZE URKIF14, 15, 16, 17F]27 -

The Key Audit Matter
BRESEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESPNAEHZER

for selected samples of loans and receivables
measured at amortized cost and guarantees that
are credit-impaired, evaluating management’s
assessment of the value of any property collateral
held by comparison with market prices based on
the location and use of the property and the prices
of neighbouring properties. We also evaluated
the timing and means of realization of collateral,
evaluated the forecast cash flows, challenged
the viability of the Group’s recovery plans and
evaluated other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contract terms.
BMEEREANER - FEEEEEARE
LSRR ENER R ERFIBENERELD
BRAXNEEM-HERHBRT #EEEFAEN
FPEERYNEREGMERERNFEEMLE A&
NMEBEENTHERETHER RIAEERERE
WEERSRE HFMENE T ERYEHRNK
MEAA FAEEBAATKERER HEEE
WEIRAENAELETEE WEEERER
TE B EL At 38 FORR ©

recalculating the amount of impairment and
provisions for 12 month and life time credit losses
using the expected credit loss model based on the
above parameters and assumptions for a sample
of loans and receivables measured at amortized
cost and guarantee losses where the credit risk of
the loan and guarantee has not, or has, increased
significantly since initial recognition, respectively.
ERERTE RABREERNBEHERESLX
REIBZ T LA SRR N5 2 00 B AR B R IE Y
BEEENEREEEGSNTEERE!T-
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ETHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) BRETEE (&)

Assessing expected credit loss allowance of loans and receivables measured at amortized cost and
provisions for guarantee losses (Continued)

AEUBSEATENERRERRENREEGNEREEERS (A)

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(k)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements: Credit losses
from financial instruments, contract assets and lease receivables”, “Note 1(k)(iii) to the consolidated
financial statements: Credit losses from financial guarantees issued”, and Notes 14, 15, 16, 17 and 27
to the consolidated financial statements.

FEHEHYBHEEXMEIKNNEB TR SHEERERBEEN BN EERKL]  [HZ1(k)(iii) %1781 1% &

RERPIEEE K. | EEZE URKIF14, 15, 16, 17F]27 -

The Key Audit Matter
BRESEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESPNAEHZER

e evaluating whether the disclosures on impairment
of loans and receivables measured at amortized
cost and provisions for guarantee losses meet
the disclosure requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.

o FT{ELABEERAKN ARG 2 8 B 5% B W IE /R (B 48
BMEREEEFESHBNMBERRENARER
BRERITEERNREZ K-

Assessing the fair value of financial instruments

FEEMIARNAAEE

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(k)(iv) to the consolidated financial statements: Fair value
measurement” and Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

FEHE K BEE[HE1KIV)A AL EEE | HETBEURME9 -

The Key Audit Matter
ERESE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EFEFHNAESEZER

The Group’s financial instruments measured at fair
value through profit or loss at 31 December 2021
comprised non-performing asset, equity instruments
held for trading, debt instruments held for trading,
private funds and wealth management products.
EREN2021F12 A3 BN AR BEFEHEE 5T
AERERNCREERREITREER  EWMIEL
TMOESNERTAE MEESMIBEMER-

Our audit procedures to assess the fair value of
financial instruments included the following:
HAEeMIAN AR EBE HENEFEXNPERE
BT

® assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of management’s key
internal controls over the valuation, independent
price verification, front office/back office
reconciliations and valuation model approval for
financial instruments.

e EBMMIEESEEEGE BYUBRRE AIE
EHRNSRTIAGMERVUEHEERNEREAN
B SIE R ET R R
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BYETRE

BRRETEE(A)

Assessing the fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

FEEMIBENAAEE (&)

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(k)(iv) to the consolidated financial statements: Fair value
measurement” and Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

FEHEHHBEZ 1K) i) L L EETE] S BRURME9 -

The Key Audit Matter
BRESEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESPNAEHZER

At 31 December 2021, the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments was RMB1,807.8 million, of
which RMB55.8 million and RMB1,752.0 million were
classified under the fair value hierarchy as level 1 and 3
financial instruments respectively.

2021 12A31H E5BeMIANARBERA
R¥18078B &L HF DHEAE - EBANE=ZE
RARBEFENSRIAENAREBESNAARK
55.8A BT MARE1, 752088 Te

The valuations of the Group’s financial instruments use
market data where available. Where such observable
data is not readily available, as in the case of level 3
financial instruments, estimates need to be developed
using valuation models and valuation reports, if any,
issued by an independent licensed valuer, which can
involve significant management judgment.
EEENARBEFENSRIANGEERATES
TS ER - E AR A EEER] EREIE B1FE
“ERAABEFENESRIANBET AFER
REEERFAE Y EEE N GEMEHANEERS
(WBE)ETHE EETSSRERBHNERA -

® assessing the fair values of level 1 financial
instruments, on sample basis, by comparing the
fair values applied by the Group with publicly
available market data.

e EREARN BEXEBEEERKANAABERER
FRRAIERNTSER FEE-—BRAAEBER
ENERITAENGE:

® engaging our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the valuation results from
the valuation models used by the Group and the
reports issued by an independent licensed valuer
to value certain level 3 financial instruments and
to perform, on a sample basis, independent
valuations of level 3 financial instruments and
compare these valuations with the Group’s
valuations and the independent licensed valuer’'s
reports. This included comparing the Group’s
and the independent licensed valuer’'s valuation
models with our knowledge of current and
emerging practice, testing inputs to the fair value
calculations and establishing our own parallel
valuation models to perform revaluations.

s FMAAMBEEZERNIE FEEEERHEES
WBLEEENMEMBRENE=ZBRXAAE
B8N IAMERNFEERL R &
BER HARBEEBRE=ZBRAAEBHETE
NeERMTAETEIGE THERMNGEESER
HEEEIAEFNBLBEENTHENGE
RRETHER - BZMONEABRESESRERIAE
BB A B R (B AT A (4 (B R A B PR R
WATERITHERTEETHER ARGENEA
BEARE FATHEREEITER
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYETRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BRRETEE(A)

FEEMIBENAAEE (&)

Assessing the fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(k)(iv) to the consolidated financial statements: Fair value
measurement” and Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

FEHEEHHBEE 1)L EETE ]S BRURME9 -

The Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESPNAEHZER

The Group has developed its own models to value
certain level 3 financial instruments, which also involves
significant management judgment.

o EEEEHBFENE=ER A BHEFAENS
MTARBETEAMGERE EhePREEENE
R HIHF -

We have identified assessing the fair value of financial
instruments as a key audit matter because of the
degree of complexity involved in valuing certain financial
instruments and because of the degree of judgment
exercised by management in determining the inputs
used in the valuation models.
HRERITARARBENNGS RERNRIE AKX
EREMEERGEANEBABRIREREEAGNRE
B HZABEER T AR BENTEZIRBERSE
FTEIE

® assessing whether the financial statement
disclosures appropriately reflected the Group’s
exposure to financial instrument valuation risk with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.

s HEVBHmXNBEBRERSNAEESIER
WEBER @ERUTEEEN SR IAMGKE
EN
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BYETRE

BRRETEE(A)

Consolidation of structured entities
EOtEBLER

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(d) to the consolidated financial statements: Subsidiaries
and non-controlling interests” and Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

FEME G BEHE B 1()H B L AR FFEF M LS | B985 B LU R B at41 -

The Key Audit Matter
BRESEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESPNAEHZER

Structured entities are generally created to achieve
a narrow and well defined objective with restrictions
around their ongoing activities. The Group may acquire
or retain an ownership interest in, or act as a sponsor
to, a structured entity through issuing trust plans and
initiating partnerships.

EEECTIREATRAERARMMAREN B MR
BB WERENSEANREERS EE - EEEAT 6
BBBTEEXHRES GRS NRIABEEMN
RHAREIREEGNEZTHIAELEBLEIRBRTESR

e

.
WETS ©

In determining whether a structured entity is required
to be consolidated by the Group, management is
required to consider the power the Group is able to
exercise over the activities of the entity and the Group’s
exposure to and ability to influence its own returns from
the entity.

B EEERTRZEEBLEIBAAEEESO
HERN EREEFTEERESBYWAREIRBARE
BHAENREN UReESABERAEB(EENE
N BER #EHAIEE -

The factors which management needs to consider
when determining whether a structured entity should
be consolidated or not are not purely quantitative and
need to be considered collectively.
BEHEERRERZAEBLCIEBRMASHBEITAA
EHEER EREFTEERNAEZNIRTEAE
ety FREAER-

As at 31 December 2021, the amount of consolidated
structured entities which the Group had consolidated
was RMB1,772.5 million.

2021 12H31H MAERESHEEN GBI E
B ENEERERARK177T25B&E T

Our audit procedures to assess the consolidation of
structured entities included the following:
HABaEBcIR HRNEFEATBEAT

* making enquiries of management and inspecting
documents relating to the judgment process over
whether a structured entity is consolidated or not
to assess whether the Group has a robust process
in this regard.

e BENHEREMRTHEREEHABICIRE
BEMELMAEBIZEANESR UFEES
Bt RINRIESEEE

* selecting significant structured entities of each
key product type and performing the following
procedures for each structured entity selected:

e EERBIZEMBNPEENGEBLEIRBILY
H#IT N oIEAER
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYETRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BRRETEE(A)

Consolidation of structured entities (Continued)
EOtEBLEE (F)

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(d) to the consolidated financial statements: Subsidiaries
and non-controlling interests” and Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

FEME I BEHE [ HZ1()H B L AR HFFEFIM L | B8 7 BR LR B iE41 -

The Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESPNAEHZER

We identified the consolidation of structured entities
as a key audit matter because it involves significant
management judgment to determine whether a
structured entity is required to be consolidated by the
Group or not and because the impact of consolidating
a structured entity on the consolidated statement of
financial position could be significant.
HREEREBLtEIBMASEENEGHBEIRE
CHMEREAGARBRE AR EEBHIMBRE
M Bt REAN FTARME &GO EBICEEH
RlAAERESEE

— inspecting the related contracts, internal
establishment documents and information
disclosed to the investors to understand
the purpose of the establishment of the
structured entity and the involvement the
Group has with the structured entity and
to assess management’s judgment over
whether the Group has the ability to exercise
power over the structured entity;

- RENHEBEAR ABRIBRARFAKREE
BENEN NEREBLEEBNRYA S
NEREEEHEBICEBN2EER AT
BEEEEUNESEHARBLIBRESHSR
HE 7 B ) B

— inspecting the risk and reward structure of
the structured entity including any capital
or return guarantee, provision of liquidity
support, commission paid and distribution
of the returns to assess management’s
judgment as to exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from the Group’s involvement
in such entity;

- kEEBLCIRYRRERMOEERT
PREABICIBTEENEMERNSEH
WEHELHER RERBEENHZEE
MeNXNMKREN DS UFEEERE
REEEFADEEE( B EEE S Mm%
EREAEBLCERBORRBO & kY
72 0] B 0 VIR E PR R # T
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Independent Auditor’s Report

BYETRE

BRRETEE(A)

Consolidation of structured entities (Continued)

aOfEBIL TR (&)

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1(d) to the consolidated financial statements: Subsidiaries
and non-controlling interests” and Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

FEME G BEE B 1()H B L AR FFEF M LS | B9 7 B LU R B aE41 -

The Key Audit Matter
BRESEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESPNAEHZER

inspecting management’s analyses of
the structured entity including qualitative
analyses and calculations of the magnitude
and variability associated with the Group’s
economic interests in the structured entity
to assess management’s judgment over the
Group’s ability to influence its own returns
from the structured entity;
BREEREBHEBLERENIT BEER
AN UREEEHZAEABLELEIBNLE
Mam L EMA BN E  UFEER
ERREEEFZEHEREEBL TR E
R E BE 1 H

assessing management’s judgment over
whether the structured entity should be
consolidated or not.
HEEEERZTAMEBCERAEDY
e

e considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in relation to structured
entities with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.

s ERUBHmAPHUEEBICIBNEERERES
HeEREgERNERES K.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ETHRE

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
reports, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
RESERPERAH
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

BYETRE
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B ETHRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and,
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Siu Tung.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
EptER R

For the year ended 31 December 2021  # Z2021F12 318 L F &
(Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB”)’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B EREFIEIN HTZRUARE T T R)

2021 2020
20215 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Kt AREFT ARETT

Guarantee and consulting fee income &R K& 5 & U A 569,231 565,019
Guarantee handling expenses BERFEEIL (92,232) (35,250)
Re-guarantee expenses BERER = (1,743)
Net guarantee and consulting fee EREEREFRA 476,999 528,026

income
Interest and handling fee income FERFEBIRA 585,655 923,200
Interest and commission expenses FERFEEL T (354,567) (495,077)
Net interest and handling fee income MERFEEFRA 231,088 428,123
Net fee and interest income BFEEBERFEWA 2 708,087 956,149
Net trading gain R 5 F W= 76,126 72,107
Net foreign exchange losses ME 5 F 18 (298) (120)
Other operating income, net Hfth 38 & F A 3 74,322 125,885
Operating income EEIWA 858,237 1,154,021
Share of profits of associates HE AP EERNIEE Ra 110,619 57,900
Reversal for guarantee losses EOEREEEHS 27 36,495 12,535
Impairment losses BERBEBK 4 (194,765) (197,953)
Operating expenses BIE S 5(a) (633,366) (674,160)
Other net losses N = D 5(b) (13,080) (48,943)
Profit before taxation B A0 7 164,140 303,400
Income tax Frig i 6 (51,798) (95,415)
Profit for the year AR EFE 112,342 207,985
Attributable to: BER:

Shareholders of the Company ZNNEE S 76,722 151,096

Non-controlling interests JEIEHI M AE 35,620 56,889
Profit for the year R F) 112,342 207,985
Earnings per share R =

Basic and diluted (RMB) EARRIWE 11 0.02 0.03

(eREENASARETT)

The notes on pages 175 to 316 form part of these financial #1758 £316E AT M 517 B A B 75 3
statements. HH—F o e
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ABtEEREMGSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 o & FE2021E12A31 A I EE

(Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB”)’000 unless otherwise indicated)

(RXEBERAMIEN BERRARETTIR)

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
bt AR T AR FT
Profit for the year N R 112,342 207,985
Other comprehensive income REHAMERE W R
for the year (after tax and (BRBERIEHES
reclassification adjustments) DERAER)
ltem that may be reclassified AR HE S EEEREN
subsequently to profit or loss HH
Exchange differences on translation B N B A A 10 3,595 1,075
of financial statements of B TS HRER A IE T
overseas subsidiaries =%
Total comprehensive income for KEZFBWEET 115,937 209,060
the year
Attributable to: SEN:
Shareholders of the Company ZiN/NE LSS 80,317 152,171
Non-controlling interests FE T2 ) 1 R 2 35,620 56,889
Total comprehensive income for KEZEWEEF 115,937 209,060

the year

The notes on pages 175 to 316 form part of these financial

statements.

HEE =B

F1758 =316 8 F7 & M 51 18 Ak A B 75 =R
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BRI BRI R

At 31 December 2021 o 74202112 A31H
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated)

(RXEBRAMEN BERAARETTIR)

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
20214 20204
12A31H 12H31H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B it AR¥FTT AR T
Assets BE
Cash and cash equivalents EEEe 12 795,039 1,505,187
Time and restricted bank deposits HRFES N A LW EBER 13 1,753,578 2,210,591
T HRAE S
Trade and other receivables JFE L Tz L At & W 3R I8 14 2,067,173 1,868,753
Receivables for factoring business FE UL AR IR SR IE 15 1,112,142 1,308,466
Loans and advances to customers BEWEREBR 16 1,311,542 2,213,553
Finance lease receivables FEY FEHE R 17 91,665 108,212
Financial assets measured NARBEFEEEEY 19 1,807,759 2,135,825
at fair value through profit or loss STAEHEZNEREE
Repossessed assets HKEEE 297,300 219,912
Investment property and property, REMEERMERE R 20 1,074,019 1,140,330
plant and equipment B
Intangible assets B EE 21 92,359 98,888
Interest in associates REIRERE - B 22 1,505,151 1,558,844
Interest in joint ventures REBRERE -a&80% 23 - -
Goodwill EES 24 9,720 9,720
Deferred tax assets BEMEHEE 31(b) 439,658 485,324
Total assets BEEHAT 12,357,105 14,863,605

The notes on pages 175 to 316 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SO BMRR R

At 31 December 2021 ¢ 22021412 431 H
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (BXE BB FTEN HERIUAREFTIIR)

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
20214 20204

128318 12 A31H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

HiiE ARETT AEETT

Liabilities aE
Interest-bearing borrowings FFEER 25 3,177,905 5,162,753
Financial assets sold under EHEEcREE 26 90,264 165,847
repurchase agreement
Deferred income REHETEES 234,482 370,969
Provisions for guarantee losses PEIREE f EHEE 27 322,129 358,624
Customer pledged deposits FARES 28 42,401 65,220
Accruals and other payables FE T N H A FE S BOE 29 335,129 441,349
Current tax liabilities EHFEHAE 31(a) 93,366 168,427
Lease liabilities HEaE 30 24,144 33,478
Total liabilites ~ &f&& 4,319,820 | 6,766,667
NET ASSETS REE 8,037,285 8,096,938
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E 32
Share capital & A 4,600,000 4,600,000
Reserves & 2,736,115 2,793,326
Total equity attributable KA B R REA 7,336,115 7,393,326

to shareholders of the Company B A48 55

Non-controlling interests FEEEHI MRS 33 701,170 703,612
TOTAL EQUITY EEE 8,037,285 8,096,938

The notes on pages 175 to 316 form part of these financial 1758 £316 8 AT & M 71 18 B R BF 7% 5
statements. EHER)—EBH o

Annual Report 2021
S ey 169



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BRI BRI R

At 31 December 2021 ¢ 22021512 H31H
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R AR HEBUARE T ILIIR)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 KEE eI E R RENR202243H30H

March 2022. FZ o

Name: Zhang Guoxiang Name: Ren Weidong (Company stamp)
Position: Chairman of the Board Position: Chief Financial Officer

KRB EHR REHE
EFeFE BEEABE

The notes on pages 175 to 316 form part of these financial #1758 £316 8 AT M 51 7 B AR 81 75 ¥
statements. EHEH)—EH o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EOtRRERSE R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 o & FE2021E12A31 A I EE
(BXEZBFEIN GEBAARETTIIR)

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KRAREREAER
Non-
Share Share Capital  Exchange Surplus General Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Subtotal interests  Total equity
PEER —-RER FEHM  RRER
Bx  RGEE ERDR FEZE  BHOR b3 B S ) Nt [ $: &it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBFL ABETR ARBFL ARETT AREFL  ARETT  AREFZ  ARETT  AREFZ  AREFZ
Note 32)  Note 32f)  Note 320 Note 2y Note 2fii)  Note S2) Note 33
Hitsge)  MEsen) - WEN  Hdsady K Mgy Hiitss
Balance at December 31,2020  }42020F12A318 4 4,600,000 1,270,924 464,008 1,479 179,097 348,578 529,240 7,393,326 703,612 8,096,938
and January 1, 2021 202151 B1RMBE
Changes in equity for 2021: 01 FREZH:
Profit for the year i) - - - - - - 76,722 76,722 35,620 112,342
Other comprehensive income EtAlE - - - 3,595 - - - 3,595 - 3,595
Total comprehensive income GAREA - - - 3,595 - - 76,722 80,317 35,620 115,937
Purchase equity interest from AR ERT 2 - - 472 - - - - 472 (5,472) (5,000)
non-controlling interests REE
Appropriation to surplus reserve  RRUB#ATE - - - - 28,124 - (28,124) - - -
Appropriation to general reserve  REI— KB R ER - - - - - 22,068 (22,068) - -
Capital injection in subsidiaries from  FE 12 5|t 7 F A AR - - - - - - - - 6,000 6,000
non-controling interests RAER
Dividends declared in respect of ~ HFTEER AR - - - - - - (138,000) (138,000) (38,590) (176,590)
the current year
Balance at 31 December 2021 202112531 A &8 4,600,000 1,270,924 464,480 5,074 207,221 370,646 47,770 7,336,115 701,170 8,037,285

The notes on pages 175 to 316 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EOtRRERBE K

For the year ended 31 December 2021 o & ZE2021E12 A31 A I EE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R A FTIEIN BT BUARE T ILIIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARAREREARS

Non-

Share Share Capital Exchange Surplus General Retained controling
capital premium resenve reserve reserve reserve earnings Subtotal interests  Total equity
MERR —RER FEIEGIE RRER
e R EE BARE WEEE  RHDE R RPEFE gt 5 Ch
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETr ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETr ARETT ARETz ARETT ARETR

Note 526)  Note 32())  Note 52} Note 3206)y)  Note 3200 Note 3200y Note 33

Hitsge)  Msen)  WECN  Hidsagy Kl Hzsadiy) W33
Balance at December 31,2019 }2019512A318 7 4,600,000 1,270,924 459,493 404 135,194 303,034 467,591 7,236,640 675,964 7,912,604

and January 1, 2020 202051 B1R MEE
Changes in equity for 2020: 020F#EZ8:
Profit for the year SR - - - - - - 151,096 151,096 56,889 207,985
Other comprehensive income AtsAlE - - - 1,075 - - - 1,075 - 1,075
Total comprehensive income Sekmat - - - 1,075 - - 151,096 152,111 56,889 209,060
Equity-settled share-based payment b# s £ 8 Ky 7 % fi - - 4,515 - - - - 4,515 - 4515
Appropriation to surplus reserve RENRHATE - - - - 43,903 - (43,903) - - -
Appropriation to general reserve 1R —RER £ - - - - - 45,544 (45,544) = = =
Cash dividends paid to ezl $53pa - - - - - - - - (29,241) (29,041)
non-controlling interests BeRE

Balance at 31 December 2020 200051231 A EE 4,600,000 1,270,924 464,008 1,479 179,097 348,578 529,240 7,393,326 703,612 8,096,938

The notes on pages 175 to 316 form part of these financial

statements.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 o & FE2021E12A31 A I EE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated)

(RXEBERAMIEN BERRARETTIR)

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
bt AR¥FT AR T
Operating activities RESEE
Cash generated from operations LEEHEEANE S 12(b) 1,436,764 2,877,960
PRC income tax paid ST AT BRI (81,193) (99,792)
Net cash generated from RETHELHSEHE 1,355,571 2,778,168
operating activities
Investing activities REEH
Proceeds from sale of property, Wl - S K 782 734
plant and equipment Fri8 58
Proceeds from sale of investments W Bl 3% & FT 15 3R 616,019 436,011
Dividends received from financial assets Ut | E 38 & 5 4L 24,005 15,427
measured at fair value
Payments for the purchase of property, Sf{IBEEZEWE  HE K& (14,048) (15,142)
plant and equipment and other R R EMIEREEE
non-current assets B FRIE
Purchase of equity interests of B F #2811 e e S Y B (5,000) -
subsidiaries from non-controlling NGIE ¢ SRR 0F O
interests
Payments on other investments ST EMIRE B FRIE (151,926) (405,203)
Net cash generated from BRETHELERSTEEHE 469,832 31,827

investing activities

The notes on pages 175 to 316 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021  # Z2021F12 318 L F &
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R A FTIEIN BT BUARE T ILIIR)

2021 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt i AR¥T T AR¥TFT
Financing activities EETH
Proceeds from capital injection of MR AE R 6,000 =
non-controlling holders
Proceeds from interest-bearing WS B ERKEIMER 12(c) 1,506,833 2,616,994
borrowings
Repayment of interest-bearing EEFBEREAESIAN 12(c) (3,500,871) (3,465,028)
borrowings RE
Repayment of debt securities EEEFIIHNRS 12(c) - (1,427,167)
Repurchase of assets with repurchase  [B1 88 & H B 38 & &= & H &Y 12(c) (72,000) (164,197)
agreement B
Interest paid EHEEZNEZNNERS 12(c) (277,270) (444,920)
Capital element of lease rentals paid TN AERSHAE /i\ %) 12(c) (18,170) (25,390)
Interest element of lease rentals paid SN AEHESHF B 12(c) (3,185) (1,802)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders Fﬂﬂiﬁﬁjﬁﬁiﬁﬂ’ﬂﬂx@ (138,000)
of the Company
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests [a] 3E 122 il 1 4 %5 % 1 B9 A% (38,590) (29,241)
Net cash used in financing activities & F8FHNWR L FE (2,535,253) (2,940,751)
Net decrease in cash and ERESRDFE (709,850) (130,756)
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents 11 RERBE LS 1,505,187 1,636,063
at 1 January B
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNEERSEHTE (298) (120)
changes
Cash and cash equivalents 12831 ReRREEEY 12(a) 795,039 1,505,187

at 31 December

The notes on pages 175 to 316 form part of these financial F1758 =316 8 F7 & M 57 18 Ak 74X Bt 7% =R

statements. LR —ZD o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group’s interest in associates and a joint venture.

The financial statements are presented in RMB, rounded
to the nearest thousand. It is prepared on the historical
cost basis except for financial instrument classified as
fair value through profit or loss (see Note 1(k)(i)) that are
stated at their fair value and liabilities from guarantees (see
Note 1(r)(i))-

B 75 ¥R R B o

1 BEXREFEER

(a)

(b)

aREH
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AR 4R B9 P A 8 R O (8 B BB B S
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SHRAIRE S R RGO R E R
E-AMBHRRNMTEERHE
RPMERRARES EHRAE
S8 R RS o N B T ER A Y
ERSFTHRER T X

BEGMASEEMZERAE
Bt 75 ¥ 3% B FR) A A sk R LASR AT R
VTR RIERT BB RS
ER-MFEICRH THEXEE
RIE R E e R T B BN R B
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SRR ENEM

Bt 35 R 2% 9 A 6 B %
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BRal(ARIAEE]) ARAE
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o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 39.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group:

o Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-related rent
concessions beyond 30 June 2021

° Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest rate benchmark
reform — phase 2

None of these developments have had a material effect
on how the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

B 75 ¥R R B o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealized profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealized losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealized
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statements of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity holders/shareholders
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statements of financial position in accordance with Note
1(k) depending on the nature of the liability.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(e)

(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognized.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognized
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognized
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see Note 1(k))
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture (see Note 1(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 1(n)(i), unless the investment
is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Company
and other parties contractually agree to share control of
the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the financial statements under the
equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale). Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating
to the investment (see Notes 1(f) and 1(n)(i)). At each
reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment is impaired. Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

(f)

Unrealized profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealized losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognized in statement of profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence or joint control is lost is recognized at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset (see Note 1(K)).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any noncontrolling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

(9)

Goodwill (#)
Goodwill represents the excess of (Continued)

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognized
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see Note 1(n) (ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see Note 1(j)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use
and property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. Depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of investment properties to its residual value over its
estimated useful life, i.e. 26 years. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in
Note 1(s)(iii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R B o

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EXSTEE(E)
(CONTINUED)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (h)y Et¥E - BERRE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
Note 1(n)(ii).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labor and
borrowing costs.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognized in the
statement of profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

WME - BE MR EER AR R
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AR (LB A()(i)) °
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SERR AR EEATRARE

BEXEEWE BFERREHR
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MR-
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Estimated useful lives FEETE A ER
Buildings held for use 30 - 35 years EEY 30—35%F
Motor vehicles 5 years HEhE 5%
Office and other equipment 5 years /NI NG L 5%
Leasehold improvements 1 -5 years HEMENR X H 1—5%F

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

1)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortization (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see
Note 1(n)(ii). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill
and brands is recognized as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

Amortization of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to the statement of profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortized from the date they are available for use and
their estimated useful lives are as follows:

Estimated useful lives

Software 2 — 10 years
Both the period and method of amortization are reviewed
annually.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where
the customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

() Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease components and
non-lease components, the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts
for each lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component for
all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognized as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognized at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

() Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognized when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see Notes 1(h)
and 1(n)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

() Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in
the lease contract (“lease modification”) that is
not accounted for as a separate lease. In this
case the lease liability is remeasured based on
the revised lease payments and lease term using
a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification. The only exceptions are rent
concessions that occurred as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and met the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In
such cases, the Group has taken advantage of the
practical expedient not to assess whether the rent
concessions are lease modifications, and recognized
the change in consideration as negative variable
lease payments in profit or loss in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities is
determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

() Leased assets (Continued)

(ii) As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified
as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of
an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the
case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognized in accordance
with Note 1(s)(ii).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-
leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease
is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the
exemption described in Note 1(j)(), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments

(i)

Recognition and measurement of financial
assets and liabilities

A financial asset or financial liability is recognized
in the statements of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of a financial instrument. The investments are
initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at fair value through profit or loss for
which transaction costs are recognized directly in
profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group
determines fair value of financial instruments, see
Note 35. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification.

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

o amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method
(see Note 1(s)(ii)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Recognition and measurement of financial
assets and liabilities (Continued)

Investments other than equity investments
(Continued)

fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) - recycling, if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the investment is
held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognized in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or loss
of expected credit losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognized, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if the
investment does not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognized in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Recognition and measurement of financial
assets and liabilities (Continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition
of equity from the issuer’'s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment
is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
is transferred to retained earnings. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether classified
as at FVTPL or FVOCI, are recognized in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Credit losses from financial instruments,

contract assets and lease receivables

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (ECLs) on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
receivables for factoring business, loans and
advances to customers);

— finance lease receivables;
- receivables for default receivables; and

— financial guarantee contracts issued.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including
equity instrument and debt instrument are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R B o

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EXSTEE(E)
(CONTINUED)

(k) ERITE (&)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) EMIE GHNEERE

(ii) Credit losses from financial instruments,

contract assets and lease receivables WHERENEREX
(Continued) (%)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued) ir=E (&)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

—  fixed-rate financial assets, and trade and other
receivables: effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate;

- lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable;

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Credit losses from financial instruments,

contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease
receivables and contract assets are always measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognizes a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R B o

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EXSTEE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(k) ERITE (&)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Credit losses from financial instruments, (i) EMIE GHRNEERE
contract assets and lease receivables WHERENEREX
(Continued) (%)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument (including a loan commitment) has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
financial instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when (i) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in
full, without recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or (i) the financial
asset is 90 days past due. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Credit losses from financial instruments,

contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed
on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognized as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognizes an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account, except
for investments in debt securities that are measured
at FVOCI (recycling), for which the loss allowance
is recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R B o

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EXSHBE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(k) ERITE (&)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) EMIE GHNEERE

(ii) Credit losses from financial instruments,

contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognized in accordance with Note
1(s)(ii) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance)
of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower

will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Credit losses from financial instruments,

contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(Continued)

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognized as a reversal of
impairment in profit or loss in the period in which the
recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R B o

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EXSTEE(E)
(CONTINUED)

(k) ERITE (&)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) RITHBERERNEE

(iii) Credit losses from financial guarantees

issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognized
at fair value, which is determined by reference to
fees charged in an arm’s length transaction for
similar services, when such information is obtainable,
or to interest rate differentials, by comparing the
actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee
is made available with the estimated rates that
lenders would have charged, had the guarantees
not been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognized in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognized in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially
recognized as deferred income is amortized in profit
or loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued (see Note 1(s)(i)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Credit losses from financial guarantees

issued (Continued)

The Group monitors the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract and recognizes a
provision when ECLs on the financial guarantees are
determined to be higher than the carrying amount
in respect of the guarantees (i.e. the amount initially
recognized, less accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes
in the risk of default of the specified debtor since
the issuance of the guarantee. A 12-month ECL is
measured unless the risk that the specified debtor
will default has increased significantly since the
guarantee is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL is
measured. The same definition of default and the
same assessment of significant increase in credit risk
as described in Note 1(K)(ii) apply.

As the Group is required to make payments only
in the event of a default by the specified debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument that
is guaranteed, an ECL is estimated based on the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a
credit loss that it incurs less any amount that the
Group expects to receive from the holder of the
guarantee, the specified debtor or any other party.
The amount is then discounted using the current
risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the cash
flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R B o

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EXSTEE(E)
(CONTINUED)

(k) ERITE (&)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv) 2REETE

(iv) Fair value measurement

If there is an active market for a financial asset
or financial liability, the quoted price in the active
market without adjusting for transaction costs that
may be incurred upon future disposal or settlement
is used to establish the fair value of the financial
asset or financial liability. For a financial asset held
or a financial liability to be assumed, the quoted
price is the current bid price. For a financial asset
to be acquired or a financial liability assumed, it is
the current asking price. The quoted prices from an
active market are prices that are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, broker, industry group
or pricing service agency, and represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis.

If no active market exists for a financial instrument, a
valuation technique is used to establish the fair value.
Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s
length market transactions between knowledgeable,
willing parties; reference to the current fair value of
another instrument that is substantially the same;
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
models. Where discounted cash flow technique is
used, future cash flows are estimated based on
management’s best estimates and the discount
rate used is the prevailing market rate applicable for
instrument with similar terms and conditions at the
end of each reporting period. Where other pricing
models are used, inputs are based on market data at
the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(v)

In estimating the fair value of a financial asset and
financial liability, the Group considers all factors
including, but not limited to, risk-free interest rate,
credit risk, foreign exchange rate and market
volatility, that are likely to affect the fair value of the
financial asset and financial liability.

The Group obtains market data from the same
market where the financial instrument was originated
or purchased.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the
end of the financial year (see Notes 1(K)(ii) and (iii)
and 1(n)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognized in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognized had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

U]

(m)

(n)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognized in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note

().
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECL in accordance with the policy set out in Note 1(k(ii).

Impairment of non-financial assets

(i) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
venture are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more
of the loss events in Note 1(k)(ii). When any such
evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured by
comparing the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance with Note
1(d) and Note 1(e). The impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favorable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with Note 1(n)(ii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognized no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  Property, plant and equipment, including right-
of-use assets;

- Intangible assets; and
- Goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use
and intangible assets that have indefinite useful
lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit). A portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (for example, head
office building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if the allocation can be done
on a reasonable and consistent basis, or to
the smallest group of cash-generating units if
otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognized in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognized in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favorable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognized.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o) Employee benefits

(i)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and
defined contribution the Group makes pursuant to
the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC have
joined defined contributions for the employees,
such as basic pension scheme, housing fund, basic
medical insurance, unemployment insurance, injury
insurance and maternity insurance. The Group makes
contributions to the above mentioned schemes at
the applicable rates based on the amounts stipulated
by the government organization. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss on an
accrual basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(o) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share awards granted to employees
is recognized as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
using the Cox-Ross-Rubinstein Binomial Pricing
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the awards were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the awards, the
total estimated fair value of the awards is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the awards will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
awards that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognized in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of awards that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognized in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognized in share capital for the shares issued)
or the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

(p)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognizes restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilized, are recognized.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credit, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilized.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognized is measured
based on the expected manner of realization or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilized. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognized when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognized.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p) Income tax (Continued)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(g) Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are physical assets or property
rights obtained by the Group from debtors, warrantors
or third parties following the enforcement of its creditor’s
rights. The initial cost of repossessed assets is measured
at the lower of the net carrying amount of loans and
advances and the fair value of the assets less costs to
sell on the acquisition date. Repossessed assets are not
depreciated or amortized. The impairment losses of initial
measurement and subsequent revaluation are charged to
the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i)

(i)

Provisions for guarantee losses

When determining the amounts to be recognized
in respect of liabilities arising from the guarantee
business, management estimates the provisions
based on prior experience and default history of the
business (see Note 1(K)(iii)). It is possible that the
prior experience and default history is not indicative
of future loss on the guarantees issued. Any increase
or decrease in the provisions would affect the
statement of profit or loss in future years.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r) Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where some or all of the expenditure required to
settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed
by another party, a separate asset is recognized
for any expected reimbursement that would be
virtually certain. The amount recognized for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of
the provision.

(s) Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods, the provision of services or
the use by others of the Group’s assets under leases in
the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognized when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognized under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The Group
takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration
for any effects of a significant financing component if the
period of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

() Guarantee and consulting fee income

Guarantee income is recognized when guarantee
contracts have been made whereby the related
guarantee obligation has been accepted, the
economic benefits associated with the guarantee
contracts will probably flow in, and the amount of
revenue associated with guarantee contracts can be
measured reliably. Guarantee income is determined
based on the total agreed fee in the guarantee
contracts and is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss over the period of guarantee. The
Group receives consulting fee income in relation to
guarantee services in full at inception and records it
as unearned income before amortizing it throughout
the period of guarantee.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Interest and handling fee income

Interest income is recognized as it accrues using
the effective interest method. The Group receives
handling fee income from loan services in full at
inception and records it as unearned income before
amortizing it throughout the contractual period of the
loan.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognized in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognized in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognized as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

Insurance broker related service

Commission income from insurance brokerage is
recognized in profit or loss on the transaction dates
when the relevant contract notes are exchanged.

Dividends

— Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognized when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

— Dividend income from listed investments
is recognized when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R B o

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EXREFEEK (#F)
(CONTINUED)
(s) Revenue and other income (Continued) (s) WARR (&)
(vi) Government grants (vi) BRRF B

Government grants are recognized in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for
providing guarantee services to SMEs under certain
criteria are recognized as income in the statement
of profit or loss upon receiving such grants. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the assets
and consequently are effectively recognized in the
statement of profit or loss over the useful life of the
asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.
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(u) Related parties (u) BER
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, @ T EA K EHEERE

is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(0

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
party;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u) Related parties (Continued)

(v)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(viiy The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial statements provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

B 75 ¥R R B o

1 EXSHEE (&)

() BEBRS (&)

(v)

b) MIEXRARSAEED
BT (&)

(vil) E 88 ok H A7 JS & = &
FERAKE QAR ASE
El N SRE N RS a/NE]

REIZEEAER
ﬁ%@

—RATHIREHERZERER
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7 EB R &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

2 NET FEE AND INTEREST INCOME

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of credit
guarantee and related consulting services, loans to customers

RFREERIMBBA

AEENEZXHEEPBEIRAEHR
SERER&ABEARS  BHRER

and agency services in the PRC. Net fee and interest income
represents net guarantee and consulting fee income and

net interest and handling fee income. The amount of each

significant category of net fee and interest income recognized

RRBRE FFEERMNEBKRAR
BRERLBAEFRARTEMFE
EFRA-BTBEHTHETFEE
KA BHAESIT :

is as follows:
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Guarantee and consulting fee income ERRZABRA
Financing guarantee and consulting fee income & & ¥ 1R & 5 30 & Uk A 318,359 391,803
Performance guarantee and consulting BAERKBAERA 250,872 173,216
fee income
569,231 565,019
Guarantee handling expenses BRFEE (92,232) (35,250)
Re-guarantee expenses W BERER - (1,743)
Net guarantee and consulting fee income  ERRBHEZEFRA 476,999 528,026
Interest and handling fee income arising FERFEBRARE:
from:
— Loans and advances to customers - BRERNBK 191,611 420,029
— Factoring business - RIBE 130,943 210,031
— Cash at banks - RITFERK 7,213 12,865
— Credit consulting services commission income - 1= AR A& W A 138,396 194,330
- Finance lease business -BEREER 2,365 5,090
— Time and restricted bank deposits - HiRRAESE A LA R EHA 64,783 42,426
BFERAFHERRES
— Other commission income - HMWFEERA 50,344 38,429
585,655 923,200

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NET FEE AND INTEREST
(CONTINUED)

B 75 ¥R R B o

INCOME 2 BFEERFNEWA (£)

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT

Interest and commission expenses arising FERFHEEZHKEH:
from:
— Debts securities - EREH = (44,154)
— Interest-bearing borrowings - FFEERK (274,861) (340,667)
- Financial assets sold under repurchase -BERRESRMEE (8,016) (19,599)
agreements
— Commission expenses paid in relation to - MEERBEZ T (23,207) (50,822)
SME lending business
— Interest on lease liabilities -HEAENE (3,185) (1,802)
— Other interest and commission expenses -HuF B RFEET L (45,298) (38,033)
(354,567) (495,077)
Net interest and handling fee income FMERFEEFWRA 231,088 428,123
Net fee and interest income FFREERABBA 708,087 956,149
The Group’s customer base is diversified and has no customer REBEBZTIEHNEFER BE
with whom transactions exceeded 10% of the Group’s net 20214 &2020F12A31 B IEFE K
fee and interest income during the years ended 31 December EXGBBRNEEFFEERFEWK
2021 and 2020. Details of concentrations of credit risk are set AMO%HEF -SSR EER BT

out in Note 35(a).

1EE 7R 5E35(a) °

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are BRAEEFEEXEBFFIBEHI N

disclosed in Note 34.

34 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

3 OTHER OPERATING INCOME, NET 3 HiELEWA FH
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FrT AREFT
Commission income of insurance brokerage R &2 NEFUA 27,779 38,870
business
Commission expenses of insurance broker REBELAFEBZH (25,905) (35,726)
business
Net gain on disposal of a subsidiary/associates & & & #1% & F WS 17,045 57,210
Government grants BT 78 B 17,384 37,898
Dividend income from financial assets measured EREA AL BETEN SR 24,005 15,427
at fair value BENKRERA
Rental income from properties YEBE S WA 11,804 11,124
Others Hfth 2,210 1,082
74,322 125,885
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 4 RFEBEX
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FrT AREFT
Trade and other receivables (Note 14(b)) JE LS R L A B MR TR 51,377 201,154
(Htet14m))
Loans and advances to customers (Note 16(f)  ZERE K MBI (KaE16()) 6,395 (43,771)
Receivables for factoring business (Note 15(b))  FEURIRIERR (K7L 15(0b)) 138,346 11,473
Finance lease receivables (Note 17(b)) FEW B ERER (Mt17b)) (1,353) 29,097
194,765 197,953

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R B o

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 BiAlF HE
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: i B0 B E B -
(a) Operating expenses: (a) EEXH
2021 2020
20214 2020%F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFRT ARETT

Staff costs 8 T M

— Salaries, wages, bonuses and -T8 8B 22U NKEMETR 306,217 339,529
other benefits

— Contributions to retirement schemes - EEZRE 51,287 33,886

— Equity-settled share-based payment -UREEEN RN MR - 4,515
expenses

— Termination benefits - BERE T 12,385 3,718

Travelling expenses =R E 16,007 16,852

Depreciation expenses mEEA

— Owned investment property and property, - B AR & EEME B E - 57,411 56,774
plant and equipment MEMEBERELEE

- Right-of-use assets - ERAEEE 23,820 31,887

Amortisation expenses BiHB A 13,589 9,576

Office expenses ERNE = 11,694 12,009

Tax and surcharges e &M o0 15,253 14,081

Auditors’ remuneration Ei B 8,280 8,350

Others HAth 117,423 142,983

633,366 674,160
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 5 FAREE)
(b) Other net losses: (b) HAiFE#E:
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARETFT
Net gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE BEMEEKRE 417) (316)
and equipment
Net loss on disposal of repossessed assets U [E14& £ & & J5 18 %k 12,502 45,002
Others HAth 995 4,257
13,080 48,943
6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 &fHfiEmRPHMAER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (a) GO ERRPHIBIERE:
or loss represents:
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFT
Current tax (Note 31(a)) BB (#i#31(a)
Provision for PRC income tax for the year —~ AGF&HEFTS 6,132 46,970
Deferred tax (Note 31(b)) EIEFTISE (H12231(0))
Origination and reversal of temporary B M 2 S A BE A K [l 45,666 48,445
differences
51,798 95,415

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

B 75 ¥R R B o

BOHBERRPAES (F)

(b) MEBRBRITENAEHEH

accounting profit at applicable tax rates: HENABHAGH K
2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
Profit before taxation 5 A A E 164,140 303,400
Notional tax on profit before taxation LIREER R E TSR 23,873 36,464
calculated at the rates applicable (Kizz)
in the jurisdictions concerned (Note)
Effect of non-deductible expenses AR HA R & 3,516 3,348
Effect of non-taxable income FEEMBANTZE (27,545) (15,775)
Effect of unused tax losses not recognized 7~ a] Fl| B fi 15 18 2k 1) 57 22 67,134 76,388
Usage of previous years’ loss LARTF E BB mE R (15,180) (5,010)
Actual income tax expense TSt EBRAast 51,798 95,415

Note:

Except for Hanhua Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd., Chongqging
Hanhua Assets Management Co., Ltd., Chongging Hanhua
Micro-credit Co., Ltd., Sichuan Hanhua Financing Guarantee
Co., Ltd., Chongging Changjiang Financial Factoring Co., Ltd.,
Guiyang Yunyan District Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd., Beijing
Hanhua Internet Technology Co., Ltd., Sichuan Hanhua Micro-
credit Co., Ltd., and Horgos Huiwei Enterprise Management
Consulting Co., Ltd., the Company and its subsidiaries are
subject to PRC income tax rate of 25%. Huiwei Hong Kong
Holding Co., Ltd., HWA Asset Management Limited and Hanhua
Hong Kong Holdings Co., Ltd. are subject to Hong Kong income
tax rate of 16.5%.

Baz -

BRBERERERROEBRLR EE
WEAEEEARAR BEEMHE
NEEFERETQE - WIBER
ERERAERAR EERIRERR
REEGTERRBENEERE
RAR LR BEMEREBERQ
B ENEERERETRA
ARERRIATEMEEEEELN
BRAFAIN AR MEFREE
PR B PTG Bl R 525% B EE
BERARAR EMEEEEARA
BAARBETEZERARAREM
BB SN R 316.5%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

6

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

Hanhua Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd., Chongging Hanhua
Assets Management Co., Ltd., Chongging Hanhua Micro-credit
Co., Ltd., Sichuan Hanhua Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd.,
Chongging Changjiang Financial Factoring Co., Ltd., Guiyang
Yunyan District Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd., and Sichuan
Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. are qualified enterprises located
in the Western Region and are therefore entitled to preferential
tax rate of 15% during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

Beijing Hanhua Internet Technology Co., Ltd. is a qualified high-
tech enterprise and is therefore entitled to preferential tax rate of
15% during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Horgos Huiwei Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd. is
a qualified enterprise located in Horgos since 26 January 2016,
and is therefore entitled to exempt from PRC income tax in
the first to the fifth years from the first— profitable year, and be
subject to a 50% reduction in PRC income tax for the sixth year
to the tenth year. Such tax exemption and reduction shall be
implemented upon registration and filing with the tax authorities.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
RESERPERAH

6 SHEBRTPHAEHR ()

(b) MEBRBRITENAEHEH

HEEFRAENAGR: (F)

Bt (&)

BEMERRBRDARAR EEH
EEEEEARAR EEMHE/N
HEEXAREEAT W) HEFRE
ERERAF - EERIREERA
A EBTEREHENEERAR
ARERM)IBENBERERA A
ARAETHEBARERKERNTE
i1 7R &, 220214 K% 2020412 A 31
HEFEZEEERE15% o

IIF

ERBERERFERATRE R
AERNEHRENTCE ALEEESE
2021 12A31H K2020t FEFH
15% M BRI R -

EMRTEMEEERFRABRL
Al —KB2016F1A26H R ER
RETI AR EE AL BEES
—EFRFRUATBEMEHR LHES
REEFETFERLEPEAREME
PR 5 1150% © % Bi A AIE » A8 T 75 14 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R B o

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 7 EENEEEHH
REMUNERATION
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) BEEMEEZHMWIZRBREE QD RIEH
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BIMNAKRARR (HEEFF=E
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of KRG E_FHIREAT :
Directors) Regulation are as follows:
2021
20215
Salaries
allowances
and benefits Discretionary Share-based
in kind bonuses Sub-total payment Total
B 2ER IEREER
2R e gt BB % &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFE AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFZ
Chairman IE
Zhang Guoxiang REH 2,508 527 3,035 - 3,035
Executive director BiTES
Cui Weilan ERE 2,256 657 2,913 - 2913
Non-executive directors FHTES
Liu Jiaoyang 255 - - - - -
Liu Tingrong BIER - - - - -
Wang Fangfei 5% - - - - -
Feng Yongxiang Bk - - - - -
Liu Bolin b - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors  BUFHTES
Bai Qinxian A% 166 - 166 - 166
Deng Zhaoyu HR{ 166 - 166 - 166
Qian Shizheng B 166 - 166 - 166
Ng Leung Sing REE 166 - 166 - 166
Yuan Xiaobin RIMY 166 - 166 - 166
Supervisors EX
Li Ruping EJued 390 - 390 - 390
Chen Zhonghua Rz 543 231 774 - 774
Qin Yong 53 279 64 3 - 3
6,806 1,479 8,285 - 8,285
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7 DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 7 EENESHM (&)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

2020
2020%F
Salaries
allowances
Director's  and benefits  Discretionary Share-based
fees in kind bonuses Sub-total payment Total
SM 2R DEREER
CES ] #e It BRf3 5 ff &t

RMBO0O  AMBUOOO  RVBUOO  RMBO0O  AMBOOO  AUBU00
NERTTL  ARETE ARETL ARETT  ARETT ARETX

Chairman T

Zhang Guoxiang REIH - 2,509 960 3,469 3,020 6,489

Vice chairman BER

Wang Dayong TAE - 2,027 1,403 3,430 190 3,620

(Resigned on 23 October 2020) (2020510 A23 B B2 5 )

Executive director HTES

Cui Weilan ERE - 2,257 660 2917 190 3,107

Non-executive directors FHTES

Tu Jianhua BEE - - - - - -

(Resigned on 17 December 2020) (1202012170 B )

Liu Jiaoyang 255 - - - - - -

Liu Tingrong B - - - - - -

Wang Fangfei IFE - - - - - -

Feng Yongxiang Bk - - - - - -

Liu Bolin 285 = = = = = =

Independent non-executive directors ~ BYFHTES

Bai Qinxian B#E - 177 - 177 - 177

Deng Zhaoyu S - 177 - 177 - 177

Qian Shizheng B = 177 = 177 = 177

Ng Leung Sing REE - 177 - 177 = 177

Yuan Xiaobin R - 177 - 177 - 177

Supervisors Bz

Li Ruping My - 949 357 1,306 197 1,503

Chen Zhonghua Bz - 544 239 783 - 783

Qin Yong £ - 278 7 855 - 355
- 9,449 3,696 13,145 3,597 16,742
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2020:
three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 7.

The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three
(2020: two) individuals are as follows:

B 75 ¥R R B o

REHMAL

hAExeHMALF  ERmRE (2020
E=ZZ)AKRRRES KENHE
DR ETHE -

19 = % (20204 : %) {LA K0 5B
BERIIMT -

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AREFT

Salaries and other emoluments T & F0E Ath Zr B 4,755 3,594

Discretionary bonuses Re 1,558 1,320

Equity settled share-based payment expenses A RS 45 & DA AR (D A& EL A - 306
e

6,313 5,220

The emoluments of the three (2020: two) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

= A &= B A £ (20205 : W) B
HomaT

2021 2020
20214 20204
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A# AZ
RMB AR
Nil — 6,000,000 #£— 6,000,000 3 2
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9 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 9 ZARQARREAGEF
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of AARBEREELGRE T BIEREA
the Company includes a profit of RMB259.1 million (2020: R #2501 8 B L(2020F Alm A R
profit of RMB368.8 million) which has been dealt with in the #368.8E & L) M F W= B R A
financial statements of the Company (see Note 32(a)). NaliEEmEPEE (RS2 (@) °
10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 10 Ht&R G W&
Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive H iR & Was & 20 BB 7% 52 &
income
2021 2020
20215 2020F
Before-tax Net-of-tax Before-tax Net-of-tax
amount  Tax expense amount amount Tax benefit amount

BAHE HEER HNRHEHE DL RERE HRHEHR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARMTR AR%TR ARETT ARETT ARETR

Note 31(b)
s
Exchange differences on translation of &G INIER R BHREN 3,505 - 3,505 1,075 - 1075
financial statements of overseas EHES
Subsidiaries
11 EARNING PER SHARE 11 ERKE
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on EXEBRBEBBEATAEEBRA
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the N A E AR AN AR R A S A E R B 31T
Company and the weighted average of ordinary shares in issue TEROMETIEEE
during the year, calculated as follows:
2021 2020
20214 2020%F

RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFrT ARETT

Profit attributable to the equity shareholders 5 B AR 1 ] AR R B % A 76,722 151,096
of the Company (RMB’000) (ANRETFIT)

Weighted average number of ordinary P12A3T BB BITE AR 4,600,000 4,600,000
shares in issue for the purpose of MEFEHHE(ARETT)

basic earnings per share (RMB’000)

Basic earnings per share (RMB) EABRKE (ARET) 0.02 0.03
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11 EARNING PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

() Weighted average number of ordinary shares

B 75 ¥R R B o

11 BRW=E (&)
() ZEEROGMETLHE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January MIATEBEBTEBR 4,600,000 4,600,000

Effect of new issues FETHEE - =

Weighted average number of ordinary M12A31B E@iRe 4,600,000 4,600,000
shares at 31 December hnEF 1 &

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, and therefore,
diluted earnings per share are the same as the basic
earnings per share.

12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

R EE2021F £2020F 12 A31
BIEFE SR EEAMENT
BERC-EL - BESREEES
RER TR S

12 EE S
(a) EELEE:

31 December 31 December
2021 2020

202145 20204
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARB¥FT AREFIT

Cash in hand EFRE 79 86
Cash at banks RIT1ER 794,960 1,505,101
Cash and cash equivalents in the EHBERERNERES 795,039 1,505,187

consolidated cash flow statements

The substantial business operation of the Group is
conducted in RMB in the PRC. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency and the remittance of RMB out of
the PRC is subject to the relevant rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

At 31 December 2021, cash at banks deposited in related
parties amounted to RMB82.6 million (31 December
2020: RMB573.6 million) (see Note 37(c)).

AEEETEKLERTFEHRD
EREEFRRBAAREET-
ARBYIFATAmABNE:
BAREELPEFIIEAZLFH
T 78 4 69 4R BB SN EEE B A1) 4R Bl %
ERFTARR -

R2021F12A318 R 1TF R+
B AR®S82.6H & T (2020512
A31H AR¥S73.6E 8 7T) FM
FRAE A - (R FIFE37(0)) °
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12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash

used in operations:

12 EWES (F)

(b) BATFBEELETDHRIANR
THHAESR:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFIT

Profit before taxation 75t Bl ) 164,140 303,400
Adjustments for: FHE
Impairment losses BERERERX 194,765 197,953
Reversal for guarantee losses HEEREEBEERED (36,495) (12,535)
Depreciation expenses mEER
- Owned investment property and -BRARBEUEHE 57,411 56,774
property, plant and equipment B E - BB M& A
- Right-of-use assets - FRAEEE 23,820 31,887
Amortisation expenses BiHER 13,589 9,576
Gain on sale of property, B EE - K5 TR 1 EY (417) (316)
plant and equipment B B W=
Interest expenses FEEA 282,877 404,420
Interest element of lease rentals paid YANEER ST B 3,185 1,802
Share of profits of associates HE L P ERANRE WA (110,619) (57,900)
Equity-settled share-based payment VARE 2 45 B /I BR 0 S 15 - 4,515
Foreign exchange losses b H 18k 298 120
Dividend income from other investments E &R EWA (24,005) (15,427)
Net gain on disposal of BETAR/HELER (17,045) (57,210)
a subsidiary/associates F e
Net trading gains/(losses) FR G W (1BK) (8,037) 17,088
Changes in working capital LEESBE
Decrease in time and restricted HARR FE31E A LA _E /Y e HITF 3K 457,013 8,931
bank deposits M HERRE SR D
Decrease in loans and advances to BEHE R KRBT 904,142 2,320,837
customers
Decrease in receivables for FE WUAR 3B FRIR R 32,842 411,461
factoring business
Increase in trade and other receivables JRE UG R L A JE L SR IR 3E (220,464) (427,955)
Decrease in customer pledged deposits FARBZRL (22,819) (27,298)
Decrease in accruals and other payables [ 51 & E 4t & {~F 2138 ) > (257,417) (292,163)
Cash generated from operations KEFHELANRD 1,436,764 2,877,960
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12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 12 EES (&)

(CONTINUED)

BERHSIBENAERAGR

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c)

financing activities:

Financial assets

Interest- sold under
bearing repurchase Lease
borrowing agreement liabilities Total
EHEE
TEER SREE HESE a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ANREFT AR¥EFT AEETFT
At 31 December 2020 # 12020128311 5,162,753 165,847 33,478 5,362,078
At 1 January 2021 RH2021E181H 5,162,753 165,847 33,478 5,362,078
Changes from financing cash flow ELETHRLREH
Proceeds from interest-bearing borrowings  BR/S{& Ui B #)3H & 1,506,833 - - 1,506,833
Repayment of interest-bearing borrowings  EEfEHAE X HOHE (3,500,871) - - (3,500,871)
Repurchase of assets with repurchase EEEHREEES L - (72,000) - (72,000)
agreement Be
Capital element of lease rentals paid YAMBEERENAS - - (18,170) (18,170)
BH
Interest paid FEZH (265,671) (11,599) - (277,270)
Interest element of lease rentals paid YRHOHERSHFIS - - (3,185) (3,185)
#5
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ £ EFEE&REEAHE (2,259,709) (83,599) (21,355) (2,364,663)
Other changes: Hitt# 5
Increase in lease liabilities from entering A& ER 734 - - 8,836 8,836
into new leases during the year MEMNEEEE
Interest expenses (Note 2) FSEBR (H#2) 274,861 8,016 3,185 286,062
Totalotherchanges  __ ________  AE®E® 274861 8016 1201 294,898
At 31 December 2021 R2021%F12A31H 3,177,905 90,264 24,144 3,292,313
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12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EWMES (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) EETHSIENEBRAE R

financing activities: (Continued) (#&)
Financial
assets
Interest- Debts sold under
bearing securities repurchase Lease
borrowing issued agreement liabilities Total
B EES
RN B EH BEE HEAE A&t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFr AREFr AREFT AREFT AREFT
At 31 December 2019 #1£2019%12831H 6,006,269 1,471,274 330,955 32,596 7,841,094
At 1 January 2020 A2020%F1 5810 6,006,269 1,471,274 330,955 32,596 7,841,094
Changes from financing cash flow ELETHREREH
Proceeds from interest-bearing borrowings BV £ Uk F| 6935 & 2,616,994 = = - 2,616,994
Repayment of interest-bearing borrowings aﬁﬁm$ii MFEE  (3,465,028) = = - (3,465,028)
Repayment of debt securities BEBASIMNNES - (1,427,167 - - (1,427,167
Repurchase of assets with repurchase BB HEREEEST BN - - (164,197) - (164,197
agreement Be
Capital element of lease rentals paid YANEERENAS - - - (25,390) (25,390)
B2
Interest paid Flax (336,149) (88,261) (20,510) C o (444,920)
Interest element of lease rentals paid YRNBEERSMFIE - - - (1,802) (1,802)
#5
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ HEEFBHETEEAE  (1,184,183)  (1,515,428) (184,707) 27,192)  (2,911,510)
Other changes: Hitt 28
Increase in lease liabiliies from entering ~ AFERFTH 4L - - - 26,272 26,272
into new leases during the year MEMNBEERR
Interest expenses (Note 2) FEBR (K72 340,667 44,154 19,599 1,802 406,222
Totalotherchanges ___________  AREZEE 340,667 . a1sh . 19999 . 28074 432,494
At 31 December 2020 2020128310 5,162,753 - 165,847 33,478 5,362,078

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Total cash outflow for leases:

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases
comprise the following:

B 75 ¥R R B o

12 E¥EL (#E)

(d HERSRHAHE

HERSRERTERENEHE:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT

Within operating cash flows L EIR SR 2,641 8,293

Within financing cash flows ER SR 21,355 27,192

Cash flows of rentals paid on leases HESMNMHESRER 23,996 35,485
These amounts relate to the following: BRI RATHE:

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT

Lease rentals paid THRMEERS

23,996 35,485

13 TIME AND RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

The balance represents the deposits at banks for the credit
guarantees that the Group provides to third parties for their
borrowings from banks and the deposits at banks with
maturities over 3 months.

13 HIRE3MEA U LW EHE XK

NFHERRES

IBEMEZERRITIFRBAEER
HRTERAE=FREESHERT
AR RITH IR FUA R IR E = 1A
AU LM ERFE-
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B IS R R Y T

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

14 EW KR HMEWRRE

31 December 31 December
2021 2020

20214 2020%F
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT AREFIT

Receivables for default payments (Note 14(a)) FEWRER (B at14() 1,327,840 1,327,664
Trade receivables (Note 14(c)) FEUBR SR (MaE14(c)) 31,067 68,615
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (Note 14(b)) & - BEER & (Hat14(b)) (473,152) (449,451)

885,755 946,828
Interest receivables JE U F) B 114,053 56,341
Receivables for assets disposal R E EEEE R 437,851 596,697
Other prepayments, deposits and B IEMNRIE - #HE Kk 629,514 268,887

other receivables H b fE U SR I8

2,067,173 1,868,753

As at 31 December 2021, except for deposits of RMB23.1 MR2021F12A31H BiFe ARE

million (2020: RMB40.9 million), all of the remaining other 2318 & 7t (20205128318 B A

prepayment, deposits and other receivables are expected to R¥4098 8 T) I BB R K&

be recovered or recognized as expense within one year. H b R W SRIBFE T IR — G A UL (2 sk 1
REBR-

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R B o

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 BEW R EAMEWRE (&)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Ageing analysis: (a) BRERDHT:
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the ageing analysis R E £20214F F2020F12 A 31
of receivables for default payments, based on the invoice BEAA BEBEEZH B RNKE
date and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as R RZ B R ERH R
follows: TN

31 December 31 December
2021 2020

20214 2020%F
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ETFT AR¥FT

Within 1 year —F AR 158,750 742,509
Over 1 year but less than 2 years —5= 677,356 130,791
Over 2 years but less than 3 years =E=4 48,870 105,217
Over 3 years but less than 4 years —ENF 103,375 72,948
Over 4 years but less than 5 years MERF 72,826 80,247
Over 5 years AFELLE 266,663 195,952

1,327,840 1,327,664
Less: allowance for doubtful debts AR (473,152) (449,451)

854,688 878,213
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B IS R R Y T

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Impairment of receivables for default payments:

Impairment losses in respect of receivables for default
payments are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off
against receivables for default payments directly (see Note

1K) i))-

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is as
follows:

14 Bk EtEKFRE (&)

(b) FEUAEFRIE :

FEWRERNEEREBXAE
TR BRIEAEBER AU
ERRENRSEN EZBR
T BERBEEBRGEEZLER
REFZE (R K))) °

LATR B #E 220214 2020512
AS1BEFERNZEREHFEE S
(BEMERNRAESEBRIH) :

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
At 1 January ®1A1H 449,451 285,493
Impairment loss recognized in the ReMtEaRkBERNEERE 51,377 201,154
consolidated statement of profit and BR (Wit4)
loss (Note 4)
Recoveries g [3] 2 % 8 13,743 17,810
Write-off RNERZEH (41,419) (55,008)
At 31 December ®12A31H 473,152 449,451

At 31 December 2021, the Group’s receivables
for default payments of RMB1,327.8 million (2020:
RMB1,327.7 million) were individually determined to
be impaired. The individually impaired receivables were
related to customers that were in financial difficulties
and management assessed that only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently,
specific allowances for doubtful debts of RMB473.2
million (2020: RMB449.5 million) were recognized.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
RESERPERAH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R B o

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are

as follows:

14 B R EtEKRE (&)

(c) Rimi{E K FE WK TH

HEERERFT R ARE S FHER
FE M IRR BRI D AT A0 T

31 December

31 December

2021 2020

20215 20204

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT ARETFT

Neither past due nor impaired R HA KRB 31,067 68,615

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was

no recent history of default.

15 RECEIVABLES FOR FACTORING BUSINESS

AR I8 HA AR (B O FE IR TR B — K
SIEARBEZOELNTFHEA-

15 EWHRIER

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
20214 20204

12831H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AREFIT

Receivables for factoring business JE UL AR 12 3R 1,260,051 1,292,893
Add: Interest receivable o FERF B 32,168 57,304
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (Note 15(b) R : ZEER & (f1:215 (b)) (180,077) (41,731)
1,112,142 1,308,466
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

15 RECEIVABLES FOR FACTORING BUSINESS 15
(CONTINUED)

Receivables for factoring business which have been pledged
for the repurchase agreements (see Note 26) amounted to
RMB89.7 million (2020: RMB144.7 million) as at 31 December
2021.

Receivables for factoring business which have been secured
for the bank loans (see Note 25) amounted to RMB393.2
million (2020: RMB461.7 million) as at 31 December 2021.

(a) Receivables for factoring business analysed by
overdue period (exclusive interest receivable)

W RIEFR (&)

H Z22021F12A31H » EUIRE R+
BIEEHOBEAN TERMNERES
AR®89.7AH BT (20206 : AR
14478 &) (RHIFFE26) -

HE2021F12A381H « fE U {RIE R
FEERTEANEAEAARKE
393.2F &t (20204 : A R #461.7
AET) (RMEF25) -

(a) BHRREBRZAMHRD N

31 December 31 December
2021 2020

20214 20204
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FiT ARKEFT

Overdue within 3 months (inclusive) BERE A (&) AR 17,428 679
Overdue more than 3 months to w8 R 1B 31E A =61E A 226,786 269
6 months (inclusive) (&618A8)
Overdue more than 6 months to BHGME B LA FE1E (&) 99,433 36,504
one year (inclusive)
Overdue more than one year BH—F L F 32,309 20,800
375,956 58,252

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R B o

15 RECEIVABLES FOR FACTORING BUSINESS
(CONTINUED)

15 EURRIER (&)

(b) ERRERNEERERK:

(b) Impairment of receivables for factoring
business:

FEWIRIER N E EREBRIAE
EIRFEC &8 BRIEAEBR AW D
ERFENRSEN EZBR
T BERERKGEZLER
RIEBFAZ S (R 1K) o

Impairment losses in respect of receivables for factoring
business are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off
against receivables for factoring business directly (see
Note 1(k(ii)).

At 31 December 2021

R2021512H31R
Lifetime Lifetime
12-month ECL credit ECL credit
ECL not impaired impaired Total
BEFE EEFE
HABEER HAESER
AK12{8 A BAREE  BAER4
BHGEREX ERRE EREE Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBEFT ARETT ARETT AREFR
At 1 January M1A1H 22,983 924 17,824 41,731
Transfer to lifetime ECL BEARAGESERER (658) 658 - -
not credit-impaired BARBEERRE
Transfer to lifetime ECL BARHAGEREHER (5,847) (152) 5,999 -
credit-impaired BREZEEAME
Charge for the year KEFR 7,506 8,639 122,201 138,346
At 31 December #H12A318 23,984 10,069 146,024 180,077
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B IS R R Y T

15 RECEIVABLES FOR FACTORING BUSINESS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment of receivables for factoring

business: (Continued)

15 EWRER (£)

(b) BRFRERNEERERK:

(&)

At 31 December 2020

12020128318
Lifetime Lifetime
12-month ECL credit ECL credit
ECL not impaired impaired Total
BREFE BExE
HANEEER HAEHER
ARI2EAE  BEREE  BAERA
HMEREX ERRE ERRE Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  AREFT AREFT  ARETFT
At 1 January M A1B 19,424 2,263 10,761 32,448
Transfer to lifetime ECL BEARAGESERER (24) 24 = =
not credit-impaired BRREEERME
Transfer to lifetime ECL BARAGENEAEH (788) (115) 903 =
credit-impaired BAEREEANE
Charge/(reversal) for the year KEFHR/ (BE) 4,371 (1,248) 8,350 11,473
Write-off % - - (2,190) (2,190)
At 31 December #W12A318 22,983 924 17,824 41,731
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

(a) Analysed by nature

B 75 ¥R R B o

16 BRERR B

(a) BEEDH

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

20214 20204

128318 12 A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREEFT

SME lending NEEE 679,913 1,656,206
Entrusted loans EHER 698,285 636,089
Gross loans and advances to customers BEWE R LB RAATE 1,378,198 2,292,295
Add: Interest receivable 0 EUE B 86,376 77,850
Less: Allowances for impairment losses B B FORELESE (153,032) (156,592)
Net loans and advances to customers BHERRBIFEE 1,311,542 2,213,553

Loans and advances to customers included loans under
repurchase agreements, amounting to nil (2020: RMB17.0
million) as at 31 December 2021 (See Note 26).

Loans and advances to customers included loans of
RMB92.9 million arising from the consolidation of trust
plans in which the Group hold the subordinated tranches
as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: RMB471.0

million).

MR2021F12A31H  BEHE R KB K
PEREEHRBEANTEHRNER
HIREEEAARE AT (120204
12A31B A ARE17068& L) (R
MizE26) °

R2021F12A318  BEHE R R ER
BERNEERFFARBLOEEE
AWELEMARKERIEE THE R
(2020512 A31H A ARE471.08
Bi) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Analysed by industry sector

31 December 2021

16 BRERRBR (&)

(b) EATEDH

31 December 2020

20215128318 202012 8318
RMB’000 RMB000
ARETFT % AREFT %
Wholesale and retail HBEMTEE 322,871 23.43% 221,963 9.68%
Real estate R E 130,942 9.50% 183,350 8.00%
Manufacturing BlE % 61,028 4.43% 65,458 2.87%
Leasing and commercial services ~ B EMBEERBEE 57,200 4.15% 182,352 7.95%
Construction BEx 38,783 2.81% 55,939 2.44%
Others Hit 125,180 9.08% 101,187 4.41%
Micro-lending IMEABEER 736,004 53.40% 810,249 35.35%
Retail loans BAEH 642,194 46.60% 1,482,046 64.65%
Gross loans and advances to BRERNB T ALE 1,378,198 100.00% 2,292,295 100.00%
customers
Add: Interest receivable mn: U S 86,376 77,850
Less: Allowances for impairment & : BB EEE (153,032) (156,592)
losses
Net loans and advances to BRERRBRFE 1,311,542 2,213,553

customers

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R B o

(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Analysed by type of collateral

16 BHRERRBR (&)

(c) BEARERD

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
202145 20204
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFIT
Secured loans G HE R 991,368 1,698,504
Guaranteed loans REBEER 374,259 558,951
Unsecured loans ERERER 12,571 34,840
Gross loans and advances to customers BRERRBREE 1,378,198 2,292,295
Add: Interest receivable hn: e RS 86,376 77,850
Less: Allowances for impairment losses B BFORE %R (153,032) (156,592)
Net loans and advances to customers BWER KB FEE 1,311,542 2,213,553

Overdue loans analysed by overdue period

(exclusive interest receivable)

31 December

(d EBHERNBHHR DN
(TEERRFE

)

31 December

2021 2020

20214 2020%F

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT AREFT

Overdue within 3 months (inclusive) BEASME A LA (E3f@A) 143,363 63,636

Overdue more than 3 months to #EAGME A =61E A (5618 AR ) 51,562 125,350
6 months (inclusive)

Overdue more than 6 months to BEGE A E1F (515F) 76,971 59,165
one year (inclusive)

Overdue more than one year BHEIFI 211,798 107,096

483,694 355,247
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B IS R R Y T

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Overdue loans analysed by overdue period
(exclusive interest receivable) (Continued)

Overdue loans represent loans, of which the whole or part
of the principal or interest were overdue for one day or
more.

(e) Analysed by methods for assessing allowances
for impairment

16 BRERRBR (&)
(d CEBEXRNEHHR D7
(TRERKFE) (&)
EBPEREEEHXTOAS

F A BRI EE K-

() MBRERAEBEFMERED
#r

31 December 2021
2021%12H31H

Lifetime ECL Lifetime

12-month not credit ECL credit

ECL impaired impaired Total

BEFEN BRAFRY

AR12(8A AHER REMER
BEER  BAARE  BAER4E

Bx ERRE ERRE Bt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETR AR®TT ARETR

Micro-lending NS EER 573,953 24,900 137,151 736,004

Retail loans BAAER 395,368 43,272 203,554 642,194

Gross loans and advances to EWEA KRBT AE 969,321 68,172 340,705 1,378,198
customers

Add: Interest receivable m: EF 8 86,376 - - 86,376

Less: Allowances for impairment 5 : B {E%EE (24,550) (5,534) (122,948) (153,032)
losses

Net loans and advances to customers¥ it E 3 & 2 50 F 48 1,031,147 62,638 217,757 1,311,542
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B 75 ¥R R B o

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 16 BHERRBK (&)
(CONTINUED)

(e) Analysed by methods for assessing allowances (e) RBEBRLAEBETIGAED
for impairment (Continued) (&)

31 December 2020

2020%12A31H
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not credit ECL credit
ECL impaired impaired Total

REGEY  EEFES

RR1218 A BHER BHER

BHER BAREE  BREEL
B & AR E fERRE a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AEETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Micro-lending MR EER 694,737 = 115,512 810,249

Retail loans BAAER 1,251,778 52,730 177,538 1,482,046

Gross loans and advances BRERRBTEE 1,946,515 52,730 293,050 2,292,295
to customers

Add: Interest receivable n: e S 77,850 = = 77,850

Less: Allowances for impairment i : & ZUREEE (41,775) (5,951) (108,866) (156,592)
losses

Net loans and advances to customers K E F R B TR S8 1,082,590 46,779 184,184 2,213,553

Annual Report 2021
S wry 247



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

(CONTINUED)

(f)

16

Movements of allowances for impairment losses

RRERKRBR(F)

( BEBXEHEESNEH

31 December 2021

20215128318

Lifetime ECL Lifetime

12-month not credit ECL credit
ECL impaired impaired Total

BEEGESD ERERES

AR12BR BEHEAELX RBHAGHAX

BEER -XRREER -CR4EER
Bx HEMER  RHENEX Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT  AREFT ARETT AREFT
As at 1 January M1A1H 4,775 5,951 108,866 156,592

Transfer: PR
— to 12-month ECL - KR12EAEEEREL 2,322 (65) (2,257) -
— to lifetime ECL not credit-impaired - BEFEHRBHEREX (999) 1,096 (97) -
RELERARENER
—to lifetime ECL credit-impaired - ZEFEHBHEREBL (6,438) (1,133) 7,571 -
ERAEERARENER

(Reversal)/charge for the year A (#E) /R (7,047) 750 12,692 6,395
Write-offs AEZE - - (21,083) (21,083)
Transfer out B (5,063) (1,065) (7,329) (13,457)
Recoveries WEBZEER KRR - - 24,585 24,585
As at 31 December R12A31H 24,550 5,534 122,948 153,032
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16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(CONTINUED)

(f)

Movements of allowances for impairment losses

(Continued)

16 BHRERR B

B 75 ¥R R B o

R (&)
() BEBXERSHN2E (&)

31 December 2020

2020F12A31H

Lifetime ECL Lifetime

12-month not credit ECL credit
ECL impaired impaired Total

BEFESR  REEFED

AR12EA BEEREXLX BHEREX

BHER —AEEER -DRAEER
Bk REMER  HENEX &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREFT ARETT AEEFT
As at 1 January ®1A1R 102,932 10,438 177,467 290,837

Transfer: PEEriE
- to 12-month ECL - RE12EAEBERER 1,245 (264) (981) =
- to lifetime ECL not credit-impaired - Z{E77& H 7 Hi{Z A% (84) 84 = =
AEEERRENER
- to lifetime ECL credit-impaired - B{EAFENREHREAERL (6,803) (688) 6,491 -
BEEERRENER

(Reversal)/charge for the year A (8E) /iR (45,605) (2,235) 4,069 (43,771)
Write-offs AERE - - (92,107) (92,107)
Transfer out #i (10,910) (1,384) (4,441) (16,735)
Recoveries WEEZEERRER - - 18,368 18,368
As at 31 December R 12A318 41,775 5,951 108,866 156,592
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B IS R R Y T

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
(CONTINUED)

(g) Analysed by credit quality

16 BRERRBR (&)

(9) BEERENTMIRMT

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
20214 20204
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Gross balance of loans and advances to AKRA121E A FEERE B X
customers that are assessed for BHERRB BT
12-month ECLs
— Neither overdue nor credit-impaired —BE R @ Bt R E A5 ARE 980,880 2,014,898
— Overdue but not credit-impaired —EmHKREEEARE 74,817 9,467
Sub-total N 1,055,697 2,024,365
Gross balance of loans and advances to BEFEPRZEETABRER
customers that assessed for lifetime BRBERER N RAFBEE
ECLs not credit-impaired
— Overdue but not credit-impaired —BEaBEREEFEHRE 68,172 52,730
Sub-total 1N 68,172 52,730
Gross balance of loans and advances to BEEAFEHESREHREX
customers that are assessed for BHERRBHEEE
lifetime ECLs credit-impaired
— Overdue and credit-impaired — BB L EARE 340,705 293,050
Sub-total o NEE .. 840,705 293,050
Less: Allowances for impairment losses B B FOREEE (153,032) (156,592)
Net value FE 1,311,542 2,213,553
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B 75 ¥R R B o

17 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

17 EWmEHRER

31 December 31 December

2021
20214
12H31H
RMB’000

2020

20204
12 A31H
RMB’000

AREFRT ARETT

Finance lease receivables EWE &R E R 184,659 205,536

Less: Unearned finance lease income W AREIREE W (27,360) (30,337)

Present value of minimum finance lease wRIEGEHE Wz 157,299 175,199
receivables

Less: Allowance for impairment losses BB (65,634) (66,987)

Net balance FEE 91,665 108,212

(a) Ageing analysis: (a) ZHEARA D

Finance lease receivables, unearned finance lease income
and minimum finance lease receivables analysed by
remaining period are listed as follows:

At 31 December 2021

FERBMEEER AERBEW
S RIERE G WK ERSRE
HH D

At 31 December 2020

120215127318 2020612 A31R
Unearned Minimum Unearned Minimum
Finance lease finance lease finance lease  Finance lease  finance lease  finance lease
receivables income receivables receivables income receivables
REREUR ABRREN BREREHE REAELT AZREELK FERERS
# # gt # # WHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETR AEEFT  ARETE AEEFT  ARFFT  ARETI
Less than 1 year PRIE 180,743 (26,780) 153,963 189,885 (28,027) 161,858
1 year to 2 years 1E 526 3,916 (580) 3,336 11,736 (1,732) 10,004
2 years to 3 years 26 BIF - - - 3,915 (678) 3,337
184,659 (27,360) 157,299 205,536 (30,337) 175,199
Less: Allowance for mpairment & - BE %S (65,634) (66,987)
losses
91,665 108,212
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B IS R R Y T

17 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 17 B EMEHER (&)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Impairment of finance lease receivables: (b) MEHEVRREREERX
At 31 December 2021
R2021F12A31H

Lifetime ECL Lifetime

12-month credit Not ECL credit
ECL impaired impaired Total

BEFES BETED

BHERALX AHGEREX

AR12BR -KBEERA -BREEH
BHGEREX RENER RENER &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEEFT ARETT ARETT AREFn
At 1 January M1A1H 215 - 66,772 66,987
Reversal for the year AEE (78) - (1,275) (1,353)
At 31 December M12H31H 137 - 65,497 65,634

At 31 December 2020
12020412318

Lifetime ECL Lifetime

12-month credit Not ECL credit
ECL impaired impaired Total

B{EFEH B{AFEH

BHERELX BHERBAX

AKI2EA -REEER -BER4EER
BHERBLX  AENER  REMNEXR BEt
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB 000
AREFT ANREFT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January ®1A1R 523 - 37,367 37,890
(Reversal)/charge for the year AE (EE) /52 (308) - 29,405 29,097
At 31 December M12R318 215 - 66,772 66,987

252 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
RESERPERAH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the result, assets or liabilities of the

B 75 ¥R R B o

18 HIMEBATMNKRE

TERHINMBRAREREREARE
BmEE EEXRBEELTRTE

Group. KB A RIMEES -
Equity interest held by the Group
rEESENRARSR
Place and date At At Particulars of
of incorporation/ 31 December 31 December paid-in capital as
establishment 2021 2020 at 31 December 2021 Principal activities
20215 M20205  12021%12A31A
it/ RIREEY 12A31A 12R31H BEHEANFE TEEH
RMB’000
ARETT
Chongqing Hanhua Assets Management Co., Ltd. Chongqing 100% 100% 500,000 Assets management
(BEHZEEERARAR) 29 May EEER
0078
200765 A 298
Chongaing Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. Chongaing 86% 86% 500,000 SME lending
(*Chongging Micro-credit’) 25 September RNREER
(BETHE EERBREALA) 2008EF
200859A25H
Sichuan Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. Chengdu 85.71% 85.71% 700,000 SME lending
(*Sichuan Micro-credit’) 19 May RNREER
(mimz  EERERAR) 20005 2
200965A19A
Hanhua Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd. Chongaing 100% 100% 3,500,000 Financial guarantee
(BERERRRHBRAA) 19 August RAER
2009EF
200958 A 19H
Sichuan Small & Medium-sized Assets Chengdu 100% 100% 200,000 Assets management
Management Co., Ltd. 21 Qctober BEER
(mlhHEEERERAR) 20105 %
2010610A21H
Tianjin Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. Tianjin 100% 100% 200,000 SME lending
(REHZ EEHERAR) 29 June PEEER
011KE
20115629
Shenyang Financial and Commercial Development Shenyang 100% 100% 300,000 SME lending
District Hanhua Technology Micro-credit Co., Ltd. 30 September HNREEH
(tELREEREEHENR 20117k
NEEFERAR) 2011F9A308
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18 INVESTMENTS

IN SUBSIDIARIES

18 BB LA RNRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Equity interest held by the Group
AEERENRTER
Place and date At At Particulars of
of incorporation/ 31 December 31 December paid-in capital as
establishment 2021 2020 at 31 December 2021 Principal activities
R20215F M20206  1A2021512A31A
iR/ RIEEES 12A31R 12A31R BUEANHE ITEH
RMB’000
ARBTFT
Chongging Huiwei Investment Co., Ltd. Chongaing 100% 100% 400,000 Investment consulting
(*Chongaing Huiwer’) 7 January REEN
(BEEBRREARAR) 0138F
2013E1A7H
Beijing Hanhua Internet Technology Co., Ltd. Beijing 100% 100% 120,000 Technical consulting and
(‘Hanhua Internet’) 11 October technical service
(ERBERENBEERAA) 20133t R BRAREMRS
2013104118
Guiyang Yunyan District Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. Guiyang 100% 100% 100,000 SME lending
(EGmEREHE | EEHERAA) 10 April PREER
201455
2014F4810H
Chongaing Changjiang Financial Factoring Co., Ltd. Chongaing 91% 91% 300,000 Financial Factoring
(BRERISRFRBARAR) 1 July SRRE
0148F
201457718
Nanning Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. Nanning 100% 100% 20,000 SME lending
(‘Nanning Micro-credit’) 8 December FNREER
(HETHENEERERAR) 01EHE
2011412F8H
Beijing Hanhua Management Consulting Co., Ltd. Beijing 100% 100% 5,000 Management consulting
(LRBZEREATRAR) 20 July EREH
20153t %
201557 A 208

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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IN SUBSIDIARIES

18 BB LA RANRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Equity interest held by the Group
AEERENRTER
Place and date At At Particulars of
of incorporation/ 31 December 31 December paid-in capital as
establishment 2021 2020 at 31 December 2021 Principal activities
#20215F 120205 ®2021%612A31A
2R/ RIEEES 12318 12A31R BUEANFE ITEH
RMB’000
ARBFT
Nanjing Hanhua Technology Micro-credit. Co., Ltd. Nanjing 95% 95% 100,000 SME lending
(*Nanjing Micro-credit’) 29 October RIMEEER
(ARTAENR ) EENERLA) N14EF
2014410A29A
Hanhua Capital Investment Management Co., Ltd. Beijing 65% 65% 10,000 Investment consulting
(BEEAREERERAA) 25 December RELA
20143t
2014124258
Shenzhen Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. Shenzhen 100% 100% 300,000 SME lending
(RYIBENEERERDF) 20 January PEEER
2016751
20161 A20H
Liaoning Fu'an Financial Assets Management Ltd. Shenyang 60% 60% 1,000,000 Assets management
(‘Fu'an AMC’) 9 May BEEE
(FEEZEREEERARAR) 017358
201755190
Huiwei Hong Kong Holding Co., Ltd. Hong Kong 100% 100% 77,999 Investment consulting
(*Huiwei HK') 8 September RELEN
(EWBERERERAA) 20158 %
201569A8H
Hanhua Hong Kong Holdings Co., Ltd. Hong Kong 100% 100% 8 Investment consulting
(‘Hanhua HK') 11 October REEN
(BERAERERAA) 20128 %
20129104118
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18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

19

(CONTINUED)

All of the above subsidiaries (exclusive Huiwei HK and Hanhua
HK) are companies with limited liability incorporated and
operated in the PRC. The English translation of the names of
these companies is for reference only. The official names of
these companies are in Chinese.

Pursuant to the resolution of the shareholder meeting of
Nanning Micro-credit on 11 January 2021, the registered
capital of Nanning Micro-credit is decreased from RMB150.0
million to RMB20.0 million. The Group still hold 100% equity
interest to Nanning Micro-credit.

FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

18 BB LA RANRE (&)

PrE LB AR (B T EMEEMN
MEFE)ARTEEMREENE
REMERA -ZMBEBRARNRESR

(EXRE

Zo BB AR EN BN

PR

BEEBEMHENBERBRA A
2021 F1 BB MR € AR &
EHHE/NEERERAFMKAR
150.0B B T ARKB AL E20.08 8
TTARE  S@NFAZ A 7100%H)

P -

19 UAREEFTEREESBHFA
ENEENEREE

31 December 31 December
2021 2020

20214 2020%F
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥FT AREEFT

Equity instrument: BmTA:

— Listed — kW

— Unlisted —3EET

Debt instrument: BT HA:

— Unlisted —3ELE™
Non-performing asset packages (Note) TREESB (M)

55,814 54,614
295,050 442,602

795,462 1,068,085
661,433 580,524

1,807,759 2,135,825

Note: Non-performing asset packages are the distressed debt assets
acquired from financial institutions and non-financial institutions
by a subsidiary of the Company. The non-performing asset
packages mainly include bank loans, entrustment loans and
accounts receivable.
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20 INVESTMENT PROPERTY AND PROPERTY, 20 REMEHWERYE BER

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT G
Buildings
held for Office and other Leasehold ~ Construction in Right-of-use Investment
ownuse  Motor vehicles equipment  improvements process assets Sub-total property Total
HEEAY
AR HENE EfbEE REH
BEY BRRE LB HRXH RRIR RRAGE it EitE #ag
AMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 AMB 000 RMBO00 AMB 000 RMB000 AMB 000

NEEFT NERFT ANEEFT NERFR ANEREFT AERTT ANREFT NEBFT ANREFT

Cost: A
At 1 January 2020 120205118 1,100,870 28,581 64,247 191,497 32,858 64,433 1,482,486 36,000 1,518,486
Additions b= pil = 4 1,953 = 4,799 30,948 37,704 - 37,704
Transfer in/{out) ) /84 - - 979 - 979) - - - -
Transfers to intangiole assets BARVEE - - - - (35,791) - (35,791) - (35,791)
Disposals RE = (2,408 (5,420) - - - (7,828) - (7,828)
At 31 December 2020 2020512318 1,100,870 26177 61,759 191,497 887 95,381 1,476,571 36,000 1,512,671
At 1 January 2021 Ro02151A18 1,100,870 26177 61,759 191,497 887 95,381 1,476,571 36,000 1,512,671
Additions £ = - 1,383 292 - 14,488 16,163 - 16,163
Transfers to intangiole assets BARNEE - - - - 879) - 879) - 879)
Disposals RE - (3,649 (479) - - - (4,128) - (4,128)
At 31 December 2021 20215125317 1,100,870 22,528 62,663 191,789 8 109,869 1,487,727 36,000 1,623,727
Accumulated depreciation:  B{TE:
At 1 January 2020 202051 R1R (80,614) (20,261) (56,821) (101,366) - (29,446) (288,508) (2.482) (290,990)
Charge for the year Kl (34559) (1,174 (6353 (1373 - (31,887) (67,346) (1,315 (68,661)
Written back on disposals REED - 2,298 5112 - - - 7410 - 7410
At 31 December 2020 and R2020512A31A R
1 January 2021 202151518 (115,173) (19,137) (60,062) (112,739 = (61,333) (368,444) 3797 (372,241)
Charge for the year REHR (31,49) (1,030) (1,848) 21,721) - (23,820) (79.915) (1,316) (81,231)
Witten back on disposals RERR - 3420 344 - - - 3,764 - 3,764
ASfDecomber 202 R2AFMBMA (16669 (674 _____ B1566 ____ (%4460 - R o5y (s 613 (49708
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2021 #2021%12A318 954,201 5,781 1,097 57,329 8 24,716 1,043,132 30,887 1,074,019
At 31 December 2020 #2020512A318 985,697 7,040 1,697 78,758 887 34,048 1,108,127 32,203 1,140,330
Note: As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the investment Bt 2021128318 K E MBS E
property amounted to RMB32.9 million (31 December 2020: WARBEARAREKRIBEET
RMB33.7 million). (2020%12R31H B A R#33.7

BET) -
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21 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21 BILEE
All intangible assets of the Group are software during the years R E £20214F &2020F12A318 1
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. FE - AEENEEFEERT -

31 December 31 December
2021 2020

202145 20204
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FiT ARKFT

Cost R A

At the beginning of the year REH] 124,358 86,852
Additions ANEFIE N 7,061 37,646
Disposals RFERE (26) (140)
At the end of the year RER 131,393 124,358
Less: Accumulated amortisation W RET

At the beginning of the year REY] (25,470) (16,034)
Charge for the year REFHE (13,589) (9,576)
Written back on disposals B E 25 140
Attheendoftheyear  __ _____________ REXR_____ (39,034) (26,470)
Net book value BREFE

At the end of the year RER 92,359 98,888
At the beginning of the year REF 98,888 70,818

258 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
RESERPERAH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R B o

22 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

The following list contains only the particulars of material
associates, all of which are unlisted corporate entities whose
quoted market price is not available:

22 RERERE-BEhHE

TREHINEZMELXNFEE &
H

LA RIELTRR EEERF]

mEEM:

Proportion of ownership interest

FE&ERLA
Place of Particulars of Group’s
Form of business incorporation issued and effective Held bythe  Heldbya

Name of associate structure and business paid-up capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activities
BeEb¥sR BHER TELE BA  KEER EBEEER @ BEER TEEHK

000

i
Chongaing Fumin Bank Co., Ltd. Incorporated Chongaing 3,000,000 30% 30% = Banking
(EEERBARMDERAR) RHERAR BF ordinary shares RITE

gl
Shandong Financial Assets Incorporated Jinan 200,000 30% 30% - Financial asset trading
Exchange Co., Ltd. RERAF R ordinary shares services
(LREHEERFFLERAR) LAk CTRAERIRH

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

AEBEDRERHRRDRAER

ERE
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22 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 2 REBRERE —BE X
(#&)
Summarized financial information of the material associates BHECENETZHHEERESH
reconciled to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial M HRREEEAEMNBEEENT

statements are disclosed below:

Shandong Financial Assets

Chongqing Fumin Bank Co., Ltd. Exchange Co., Ltd.
ERERBRITROBRAA LREMEERZPOERAF
2021 2020 2021 2020
2021 20205 2021 20206
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB 000

AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Gross amount of the associate K& tE¥MNAEHE

Total assets AEMB 54,131,214 53,177,229 654,763 641,422

Total liabilities BREA (50,247,684)  (49,652,203) (432,124) (422,458)

Net assets FEE 3,883,530 3,525,026 222,639 218,964

Revenue VN 1,976,330 1,714,761 60,355 81,700

Total comprehensive income e e 358,504 227,518 3,677 5,782

Reconciled to the Group’s interest RN BB & P EIRE 107,551 68,255 1,103 1,735
in the associate HER

Gross amount of net assets of HEPRNFEE 3,883,530 3,525,026 222,639 218,964
the associate

Group's effective interest AEBEEBEER 30% 30% 30% 30%

Group’s share of net assets of the A& B 45 3% bt I E Y 1,165,059 1,057,508 66,792 65,689
associate FEENSE

Carrying amount in the consolidated % & (> £ K1 B MR B 1,165,059 1,057,508 66,792 65,689
financial statements BE

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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23

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 REBRERE-BHELE

(&)
Aggregate information of associates that are not individually BRIBEEBLERANELZARN
material: T
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR®FiT ARKEFTT
Aggregate carrying amount of individually BB RERPERIFEE 273,300 435,647
immaterial associates in the consolidated AT RIREEBEERE
financial statements
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of SEEBE ARG EN
those associates’ BFtE
Gains/(losses) from continuing operations REAFBECEN R, (BE) 1,965 (12,091)
Total comprehensive income RAEWEEET 1,965 (12,091)

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

Details of the Group’s interest in the joint venture, which is

23 RUIRERE-S&ELE

BARARERES FHRRTRAER

accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated ERENEECERENERSS W
financial statements, are as follows: T
Proportion of ownership interest
FEE#R LA
Form of Place of Particulars of Group’s
business incorporation issued and effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of joint venture structure and business  paid-up capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activities
RELXER ABE TERE BE  KEERER BEERR BEER TEEY
‘000
K
Chongging Gongkang Enterprise Incorporated Chongaing 20,000 50% - 50% Management consulting
Management Co., Ltd. (‘Gong Kang’) B ER A EE  ordinary shares EREN
(BEEARGEERERAA) TER

Gong Kang, the only joint venture in which the Group
is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted

participates,
market price is not available.

ERAEER —NaEhE H
%*%#Lﬁ’&ﬁj'ﬁ/ EEH
MISHE

=
N
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23 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES B RIEIBRERE-SE ¥

(CONTINUED) (%)
Summarised financial information of Gong Kang and a HENTBKEEMERES IR
reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated XEAEENFAHRENT
financial statements are disclosed below:
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20215 2020%F
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Gross amounts of Gong Kang HERSH
Total assets BEE 77,541 994,002
Total liabilities =Ry 92,341 1,079,752
Equity FrBE = (14,800) (85,750)
Included in the above assets and liabilities: BEREHMEEMBE:
Cash and cash equivalents HEMBREEED 11,140 34,834
Financial liabilities (excluding trade and TREE(TEEES R - 73,900
other payables and provisions) H b A< 3008 I B )
Revenue WA 1,062,450 =
Gains/(losses) from continuing operations REAFBECENRE (BE) 69,818 (16,937)
Total comprehensive income RE W B 69,818 (16,937)

Included in the above gains/(losses):
Interest and commission expenses

BER LMW (B%) :
FMEMEE T H 143 95
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INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES W RIEIBRERE-GELE
(CONTINUED) (4 )
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in AEEHEERENATR
Gong Kang
Gross amount of Gong Kang’s net assets HEFEE (14,800) (85,750)
Group’s effective interests AEBEERFER 50% 50%
Group’s share of Gong Kang’s net assets AEEZENREFEENTE (7,400) (42,875)

Carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements

HAZEEMNKRENEEEER

GOODWILL 24 BBE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
202145 20204
12831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARMFIT
Cost R
At the beginning and the end of the year REF/ R 11,190 11,190
Accumulated impairment losses: Rt EERERK:
At the beginning of the year REFEA] (1,470) (1,470)
Impairment loss BERMEERK - -
Attheendoftheyear . REXR . (1,470) ___ (1,470)
Carrying amount FREE
At the end of the year RER 9,720 9,720
At the beginning of the year REA] 9,720 9,720
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24 GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGU”) identified as follows:

24

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

i

(&)

EHENREELETNEENR

BERAEECINENRSELE
TT(CGU)Z ECaA T

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

20215128 20205121

31H 31H

RMB’000 RMB 000

AR¥TFT ARKFIT

Zhongli Insurance Sales Co., Ltd. (AR EERRAE) 9,720 9,720
(“Zhongli Insurance”)

Beijing Beiniu Techonlogy Co., Ltd. (ERBEFREHERAA) - =

(“Beijing Beiniu”)
9,720 9,720

On 6 February 2015, Hanhua Internet, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, acquired 100% equity interests
of Beijing Beiniu from its former shareholders at an aggregate
consideration of RMB1.5 million. Following the completion of
the transaction on 6 February 2015, Beijing Beiniu became
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanhua Internet. The excess
of the aggregate consideration over the net fair value of the
Beijing Beiniu’s identifiable net assets measured as at the
acquisition date, amounting to RMB1.5 million was recognized
as goodwill by Beijing Hanhua Internet. Based on the result of
the impairment testing, RMB1.5 million of impairment losses
on goodwill have been recognized in 2017.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (Continued)

On 31 August 2015, Hanhua Internet Financing, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired 95% equity
interests of Zhongli Insurance from its former shareholders
at an aggregate consideration of RMB56.5 million. Following
the completion of the transaction on 31 August 2015, Zhongli
Insurance became a 95% non-wholly owned subsidiary of
Hanhua Internet Financing. The excess of the aggregate
consideration over the net fair value of Zhongli Insurance’s
identifiable net assets measured as at the acquisition date,
amounting to RMB9.7 million was recognized as goodwill by
Hanhua Internet Financing.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period.

The management is of the view that there is no impairment of
goodwill as the value of Zhongli Insurance’s business license is
beyond the carrying amount of goodwill.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

The interest-bearing borrowings were repayable as follows:

24

25

B 75 ¥R R B o

mE (&)

EHENREELETHRENR
(#&)

MR201548A31H B EH BN (K
RAEIZEN B AR E AP FRE R
REFREEREDE SEPFRR
95% K A% #E - 5 5 B B 48 Uk BE AR R (R
REE A ARKS6.58 8L 82015
F8A31H A FIRB K A B E G B
WMERMIEZEMBAR W BEE
FRHREBOAHRFEEAREES
REFEEI7THEE L AL BS
BRAREE -

[REELER | TRKRESHEERA
MAMEEFEMR -t EERADN
RAeRneRERBHENERKAF
BenHEAE-

EERER/THRRAFERNEE
B ENIREEER i EER
@O

s EMER
FAEERREETADHAOT :

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

20214 2020%F

12H31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AREFIT

Within 1 year EREEIIFUARN 2,038,852 2,619,286
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FF2F 261,979 1,726,891
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F E5F 271,727 584,328
After 5 years 5 LA 542,462 171,661
Interest payables FERTFE 62,885 60,587
3,177,905 5,162,753
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25 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 25
(CONTINUED)

The interest-bearing borrowings were secured as follows:

—t- S ‘fﬂ: (/IE )

+

ERIRERT AT -

31 December 31 December
2021 2020

202145 20204
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FiT ARKFT

Bank loans (Note (i) IRITIEFR (HTa23))
— Unsecured BER 469,996 405,395
— Secured by properties of the Group (Note (i) — — 75 B4 3£ 1 7 276,771 174,618
(B atdi))
— Secured by other assets of the Group (Note (i) — 7% B H {th & 7 & 48 376,000 370,000
(Bt 72 (i) )
1,122,767 950,013
Other loans (Note (iv)) H A& (Hativ)) 1,162,999 2,882,813
Other interest-bearing liabilities (Note (v)) Bt B aE (M) 829,254 1,269,340
3,115,020 5,102,166
Interest payables FERT RS 62,885 60,587
3,177,905 5,162,753
Notes: Btaz

() Al of the Group’s bank loans are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group was to breach the covenants,
the loans would become payable on demand. The Group
regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in
Note 35(c). At 31 December 2021 and 2020, none of covenants
relating to the bank loans had been breached.

(i)  The bank loans are secured by the Group’s buildings held for
own use. The aggregate carrying value of the secured properties
amounted to RMB796.3 million as at 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020: RMB346.4 million).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

26 FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD

The bank loans are secured by deposits and receivables
for factoring business owned by the Group. The aggregate
carrying value of receivables of factoring business amounted to
RMB393.2 million as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
RMB461.7 million), and that of deposits amounted to RMB120.1
million as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: nil).

Other loans bear interest at various interest rate, which are
repayable no later than 28 February 2024.

The Group issued trust plans of RMB79.5 million at 31 December
2021 (31 December 2020: RMB312.7 million) to finance for
SME business, and the Group acquired all the interests of the
subordinated tranches of the trust plan. The Group provided
financial guarantee against the investors of the senior tranches.

The remaining other interest-bearing liabilities represents third
party investors’ interest of RMB749.8 million (31 December 2020:
RMB956.6 million) in the consolidated structured entities.

UNDER

REPURCHASE AGREEMENT

B 75 ¥R R B o

25 HEBR (&)

Hrat: (%)

(i)

ZRTEFREAAEEFTENEREK
JE W AR BB 3R 3K 4 o 722021412 A 31
B RBRKEREXREAEEEAARE
393.2H & 7T (202012 A318 :
461.7E B L) - R2021F12A318
FREEAEARARKI201BE T
(20205128318 + &) -

EMERNFEEGTR HEAR
2024F2 F28HE & -

HE2021F12A31H AL BT T
79.58 BT ARB K {F5EE (2020
F12A318 :312.765& ) B/
¥XBERE AEEKET RS
IRBED K 2P AEEAIE L
IEFE DRI EEIRME T B ER -

HHEMEMABEABRREZ AR
BEEAHAEBLEETRNERA
749.88 &t A R # (2020512 A31
H:956.6B8TTARE) -

26 EHOBEEMEE

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

20214 2020%F

12831H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB 000

AR®FiT ARKFTT

Beneficial rights of loans and advances to BRER KRB R W - 17,000
customers

Beneficial rights of receivables for factoring FEUUR B R 2 1 89,700 144,700

business
Interest payables FERTFILE 564 4,147
90,264 165,847

Details of the carrying values of underlying assets of financial
assets under repurchased agreement are set out in Note 16(a)
and Note 15.

BELOBeREENEREEREE
AHBE M EE16() MK EE15 o
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27 PROVISIONS FOR GUARANTEE LOSSES

27 RRBEEGS

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

20214 20204

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRB¥Fir AREFT

As at 1 January F1) 358,624 371,159
Reversal for the year REETE (36,495) (12,535)
As at 31 December FR 322,129 358,624

28 CUSTOMER PLEDGED DEPOSITS

Customer pledged deposits refer to deposits received from
customers as collateral security of the credit guarantee issued
by the Group. These deposits are interest-free, and will be
returned to customers after the guarantee contracts expire.

29

28 FAREE

BAREREABSFUNRES
DA 7 g B4R AR MO PRI 40 o
fEREAME LR ERSENE
WERERS -

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 29 FEGtRHEMEMSR
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20214 20204
128318 12 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFT
Other payables H b FE T 5R0R 266,199 340,309
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost XK ANt E S B A E 266,199 340,309

Accrued staff cost (Note) ST T B (A aE)

— Salaries, wages, bonuses and other benefits ~ — T & + 88& 285 & H 43 7 33,357 52,714
Value-added tax and other surcharges payable 3% {8 i Kz E i Fff hn & 3,219 13,580
Withholding individual income tax payable TEH FE A ME A PS5 4,098 4,364
Receipts in advance TE U BR =X 28,256 30,382
Total A5t 335,129 441,349

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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29 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 29 Bt RHEMEMNRK (F)
(CONTINUED)

Note: Contributions to the defined contribution retirement plan, Kiait: BRASEABEZRBESIER
include the social pension insurance schemes, are recognized AR ERSERTENOER T
as expenses when incurred, and there is no forfeited BERBERAASY AEBETE
contributions that may be used by the Group to reduce the AR KA EREEIRE R
existing level of contribution. HROKE -

30 LEASE LIABILITIES 30 HEAE
At 31 December 2021 At 31 December 2020
2021F12H31H 2020912831 H
Present Present

value of the Total  value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments

BEEE RXESE REHE REHE
HRERE fIRBE RERE KB
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFR ARETR ARETT ARETT

Within 1 year 1ER 14,185 15,923 16,632 17,424
After 1 year but within 2 years 15224 7,123 7,701 9,597 9,773
After 2 years but within 5 years 2E54F 2,836 2,982 7,249 7,346

24,144 26,606 33,478 34,543
Less: total future interest expenses il ARRA B H 458 (2,462) (1,065)
Present value of lease liabilities HEABRE 24,144 33,478
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31 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 31 SREHMBERARNTE
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@A) Movements in current taxation in the (a) ENHIBERA G BRREMN
consolidated statement of financial position are SEHMT :
as follows:

31 December 31 December
2021 2020

20214 20204
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFIT

Balance of income tax payable FHERFT1S T A5 168,427 221,249
at the beginning of the year
Provision for income tax on the estimated £ IR {51 FE 4 51 P15 48 6,132 46,970
taxable profit for the year (Note 6(a)) SRS E A
(Ki:t6(a))
Income tax paid during the year REBBNETEE (81,193) (99,792)
Balance of income tax payable at the end £ 7K fE XX FT 15 Tt 45 £ 93,366 168,427

of the year

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized:

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognized
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the

&

31 ?&E(;éﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂiﬁ B9 P 18 Bt

b) ERAELEFEHEERE

REER A B TR R R
BEEFSHEE (AE)ERE

movements during the year are as follows: NEEEEMAT !
Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets liabilities
BEFEH
BEEHEE af
Fair value Fair value
adjustments adjustments
Provisions  on financial on financial
Provisions for for guarantee assets assets
impairment Accrued lossesand  measured at measured at
Deferred tax arising from: BEEHEELR: losses staff cost accruals fair value Total fair value Net
NARER NARER
GTEAE FEEH
RUHER BEHIFA L E DN
EEAE EABT EEeR  EHBEHN EHBRN
BABE i BWER AAEESD At DABELRE it
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
AREFT  ARETT  ARETT AREFI  AREFfT  AREFT  ARETT
At 1 January 2020 202061 A1A 435,962 118 82,325 15,716 534,121 (352) 533,769
Recognized to the consolidated statement ~ RAA BB R A (45,736) 30 (21,735) 18,811 (48,630) 185 (48,445)
of profit or loss (Note 6/2)) (Hit6)
At December 31, 2020 and 20206124316 390,226 148 60,590 34,527 485,491 (167) 485,324
January 1, 2021 2021%1 818
Recognized to the consolidated statement of WA #HBEFER (14,217) (138) (21,666) (9,812) (45,839) 167 (45,666)
profit or loss (Aot 6/3)) (Kizt6)
At 31 December 2021 20215128318 376,009 10 38,924 24,715 439,658 - 439,658
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31 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 31 HREHMBERARNITE

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (%)

(CONTINUED)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognized (c) RERNELEFRBHEE
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note BIEHRMFE 1) ST B R
1(p), the Group has not recognized deferred tax assets in BN A R] KR B2 1E Al T8 R B
respect of cumulative tax losses of RMB1,499.9 million 1RGSR AR EEBEN
(2020: RMB1,512.0 million) at 31 December 2021, as it RREFAE  WAEERAR
is not probable that future taxable profits against which A FE2021F12A31HM &
the losses can be utilized will be available in the relevant ETATENE B A A R1,499.9
tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses incurred by the A BT (2020 5 AR #1,512.0
Company and its subsidiaries in the PRC will expire in five BEL)ERELEMEREE-
years since initial occurrence under current tax legislation. BERTHE AR RHEAEAE

BT ARBEENAIRNEESE
BRBETROAFAZH-
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32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

(b)

Movement in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing of
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is
set out in the consolidated statements of changes in
equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning and the end
of the year are set out below:

B 75 ¥R R B o

32 EX -RERRE

(a)

EZEE2H

AEBENREREEE QLR
ARESMEHERINE KRR
HAEHER - ADAB LR
BEHHRFVNEFANESFE
IO INE

(Accumulated

losses)/
Share Share Capital Surplus retained
capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total
ABRER/
R R4 RE ERNE BRAE R EFE a%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFL AREFL AREFL AREFL AREFL AREFL
Note 32(c) Note 32(d)fi) Note 32(d)fi)  Note 32(diii)
Hi##32(c) K 32(0)) Hataz)i) M52
Balance at 1 January 2020 20201 A1 HERE 4,600,000 1,091,555 480,366 135,194 60,912 6,368,027
Changes in equity for 2020: 2020 MR B E
Profit for the year and total FhaEkizakaes - = = = 368,819 368,819
comprehensive income
Appropriation to surplus reserve REOABAE - - - 43,903 (43,903) -
Equity-settled share-based payment  JA#E#S £ & KR 17 3+ - - 4,515 - - 4515
Balance at 31 December 2020 202012A31A K 4,600,000 1,091,555 484,881 179,097 385,828 6,741,361
and 1 January 2021: 2021F1 1A MEE:
Changes in equity for 2021: 2021 FHEEE
Profit for the year and FhERRA NGRS - - - - 259,062 259,062
total comprehensive income
Cash dividends paid to the TR ARREN = = = - (138,000) (138,000)
equity shareholders of the Company 3 £ I 7l
Appropriation to surplus reserve RERHBARE - - - 28,124 (28,124) =
Balance at 31 December 2021 20211231 AR E 4,600,000 1,091,555 484,881 207,221 478,766 6,862,423
Dividends (b) B2

In accordance with the resolution of the Company’s board
of directors’ meeting held on 30 March 2022, no dividend
is proposed for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
profit appropriation resolution mentioned above has yet to
be approved by the Company’s shareholders’ meeting.

RIE2022F3A30R BHM=E
EELH AT IRFEEE2021
F12HA3 B FEANIRE ° £
MEBEHEAQFBRRERNSH
o

Annual Report 2021
B -FFR

273



274

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Dividends (Continued)

In accordance with the resolution of the Company’s
shareholders’ meeting held on 29 June 2021, the
dividends appropriations for the year ended 31 December
2020 are as follows:

— Declare cash dividends to all shareholders of
RMB138.0 million representing RMB0.30 per 10
shares before tax.

Share capital

The share capital was issued and fully paid.

Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the Company
and capital proceeds received from the issuance of
the shares of the Company.

(ii) Capital reserve
The capital reserve mainly comprises the following:

—  the cumulative net change in the fair value of
financial assets measured at fair value held at
the end of the reporting period and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies in
Note 1(k)(i);

— the portion of the grant date fair value
of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company that has been
recognized in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in
Note 1(0).

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

RE (&)

RIE202156 H29H BH M E =
YR EEE E2020%F12

ABTEMM FREBHMT :

- MAEBRREERESESR

AR ¥138H & 7t B Al
B AR¥0.307T -

IR A
A B BEITMBUE °
BELEREN
() KiEE
B EEANRB RN E

BEEFITARBRND MG
RIBEZHEHER-

(i) EXLE

]

BAREEENIISA:

- R HRATE B R
AR EEHENRS
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32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Surplus reserve

The surplus reserve represents statutory surplus
reserve fund. The Company is required to
appropriate 10% of its net profit as determined
under the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises and other relevant requirements issued
by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC after making
good prior year’'s accumulated loss, to the statutory
surplus reserve fund until the reserve fund balance
reaches 50% of its registered capital.

The total appropriation to surplus reserve of the
Company was RMB28.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: RMB43.9 million).

General reserve

Pursuant to relevant regulations, the subsidiaries
engaged in credit guarantee business are required to
set aside a general reserve through appropriations
of profit after tax according to 10% of its profit after
as determined under the Accounting Standard for
Business Enterprise and other relevant requirements
issued by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC after
making good prior year’s accumulated loss to cover
potential losses against their assets.

B 75 ¥R R B o

32 EXR -RERRE (&)

(d) REEEREN (&)

(iii)

(iv)

BRROR

BRABEATREG AR
T N UART FE R R &
BR®E& ARAARETH
Lyl @B R VR Sy it
Al H b H B AR E - &
10%8 F# FI BB R = ER
BAEE BEERAHKRA/ER
AP EEIEEME AW
50% °

RE E£2021F128318 1k
FECAQRARRAHKA
BRI ARE21HETT
(2020F E : A R#43.908

S —

BIL) °
—REREE

RERBER TS ERE
RERH KB R R F R
BABFERES —RE
Rt LB TE AR F
BRI BRENFNB
10% (AR 4% A B B 0 AR
ORTSE Sy (DS ol
BRE) ABBEEER
REHIRAEIR -
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32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv) General reserve (Continued)

(v)

While subsidiaries engaged in providing a range
of loan and services to the small sized and micro
enterprises (“‘SME enterprises”) are required to set
aside a general reserve through appropriations of
profit after tax according to a certain provision ratio
of the ending balance of gross risk-bearing assets
to cover potential losses against their assets. In
principal, the general reserve balance should not be
lower than 1.0% of the ending balance of gross risk-
bearing assets.

The total appropriation to general reserve of the
Group was RMB22.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB45.5 million).

Exchange reserve

Foreign exchange differences arising from activities
of Huiwei Hong Kong Holding Limited and Hanhua
Hong Kong Holdings Limited (accounted in HK
dollars) are recognized as “exchange reserve” in the
shareholder’s equity in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
equity shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurate with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 32 EX -RERKRE (&)

(CONTINUED)

(e) EXERE (A)

(e) Capital management (Continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
equity holder/shareholders returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital
management during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.

Particularly for guarantee and credit loan operation,
the Group monitors regularly the residual balance of
outstanding guarantees or/and credit loans for single
customers and multiples of the total outstanding
guarantees or/and credit loans in relation to paid-in/share
capital of companies in the Group engaging guarantee
or/and credit loan business respectively, so as to keep
the capital risk within an acceptable limit. The decision
to manage the share capital of companies in the Group
to meet the needs of developing guarantee or/and credit
loans business rests with the directors.

ANEBEEG M E M BERALEIE
HERRE NERSKRERSH
A/ R EERIE ST 7] B BE A
ReEEKE UARRIFHER
AL 7 R Y 4F B B AR E 2 R ER 1S
T WARRKEAN R E E)
BERRE-

R E Z£20214F K2020F12H31H
HEE AEEEAREENTE
3 4 ok B o

HEEREREAERER A&
BEHERE-FPNERSRE
&/ RERERBELEBEAE
EET DRI EERE RER
EREBRRNERSRIERA
BEReEnBERER RANRE
B URFERRBRER A ER
MBEEAN FREEAEEET
RANBRER IRARATTE %
RERS REREREBNFE
EMRRHESETE
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33

34

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 33 FEZHIMES
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20214 20204
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRB¥Fir AREFT
Fu’an AMC FEELCHMEEERBRAA 481,443 473,404
Sichuan Micro-credit m)IsENBEERER A A 97,697 95,852
Chongaing Micro-credit EEMBHENEEXREREFAF 91,686 90,081
Others Hith 30,344 44,275
701,170 703,612

SEGMENT REPORTING 34 PEW/E

The Group manages its business by business lines. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group defines reporting
segments based on the following operating segments:

Partnership finance business

Based on the Group’s operation network across the country,
this segment mainly provides integrated financial services
and solutions to a range of small sized and micro enterprises
(“SME enterprises”). These services include credit guarantee
business and capital business (capital business mainly includes
accounts receivables for factoring business, bill discount
business, and entrusted loans), financial assets management,
and other services.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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34 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

SME lending

With the Group’s microfinance companies established in
Chongqing, Chengdu, Tianjin, Shenyang, Nanning, Guiyang,
Nanjing and Shenzhen as its networks, this segment provides
micro, distributed and integrated financial services and
solutions to small and individual business proprietors and
individual clients.

Capital investment and management

This segment provides capital investment services to a range
of SME enterprises that have growth potential and value, by
utilization of fund under their ownership and raising funds
through cooperation with external institutions.

Others

This segment represents the aggregation of other business
lines and the operational results that undertake management
functions of the headquarters and cannot be completely
divided into any of the above segments.

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
senior executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of deferred tax assets.
Segment liabilities include all liabilities managed directly
by the segments.

B 75 ¥R R B o

34 TEHHRE (&)

FEXR®

AAEERBRINEE K- X
ROBEG BT BB BRERY
PNEERRBAEE TEEREK
EARENE DHOEE EE R
BHORTTER -

EXAREREEREH

MHEBEES UEREBHEIBEE
BEEEES RMABKEZRMIE
REENBEATNEERHEARE
AR5 -

RBREIBELD

EAERTEEREAREBE RS2
DR L AE— D B R B R A IR AR

s e g
REXE-

(@ 2HFANE - BEERER

STFESEDBHRERAE
EEER AKEEEESTEY
EHRBR SO MEE BER
B ELEMMNREERIT

DHEERERFBR D BNMA
BREE BREENREBEE
BrEREEHRBHEE D H
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34 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Others (Continued)

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities

(Continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortization of assets attributable to those segments.

Internal charges and transfer prices are determined with
reference to market rates and have been reflected in the
performance of each segment.

The Group has further restructured the assessment and
management on business segments and optimized the
resource allocation at Group level during the reporting
period. The Group has integrated guarantee and entrusted
loan business, and factoring business into partnership
finance business, separated capital investment and
management from others.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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34 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 34 DE®E (&)
Others (Continued) BB EFEBEKDI (&)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) 2BFB - EERERE (&)
(Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

2021F12A31H
Capital
Partnership investment
finance SME and
business lending management Others Total
BHLE BARER #HREIE
EBER FEER EEER (B2 CH)

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT  ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFZ

Net guarantee and consulting ERRZAEFRA 476,999 - - - 476,999
fee income
Net interest and handling FERFERF 152,646 215,653 10,755 (147,966) 231,088
fee income/(expense) WA/ (£it)
Reportable segment AHEBPA/ (ZH) 629,645 215,653 10,755 (147,966) 708,087
income/(expense)
Net trading gains/(losses) DhEEEZSFER 76,007 (13,058) 19,686 (6,599) 76,126
Net foreign exchange losses 0 5B e - - - (298) (298)
Other operating income, net Hi 58 32,344 3,895 23,832 14,251 74,322
Operating income 5L ON 738,086 206,490 54,273 (140,612) 858,237
Share of profits of associate BE 1,718 - (1,046) 109,947 110,619
Reversal for guarantee losses EOEREEEES 36,495 - - - 36,495
Impairment losses BERERX (202,903) 6,617 (6,361) 7,882 (194,765)
Operating expenses EEZL (263,650) (140,358) (9,095) (220,263) (633,366)
Other net gains/(losses) Hiplgzs,/ (BK)FE 129 (85) (112) (13,012) (13,080)
Reportable segment profit/(loss) 2 %% A 38,/ (12%) 309,875 72,664 37,659 (256,058) 164,140

before taxation
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34 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Others (Continued)

34 DEWME (&)

RBREIBREED (A)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) 2HAE - BEEREE (F)
(Continued)
At 31 December 2021
R2021512A318
Capital
Partnership investment
finance SME and
business lending management Others Total
BHtm BARER #HREIE
EBER FEER EEER (B2 CH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Segment assets NEEE 6,513,420 1,010,032 873,013 3,520,982 11,917,447
Segment liabilities AHEE (2,609,955) (192,285) (739,928) (777,652) (4,319,820)
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B 75 ¥R R B o

34 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 34 DEEE (&)

Others (Continued) BB EFEBEKDI (&)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities PHANE - EERAE (F)

(a)

(Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020

2020%12831H
Partnership Capital
finance SME  investment and
business lending  management Others Total
Bem BARER PEETIE
E3/% i FEXER EBER %i% il Ch
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000
ARETFT  AREFr AREFT  AREFT  AREFIL
Net guarantee and consulting EREZABTFHA 528,026 - - - 528,026
fee income
Net interest and handling FERFEE 214,811 378,401 11,919 (177,008) 428,123
fee income/(expense) WA/ ()
Reportable segment DEMA/ (L) 742,837 378,401 11,919 (177,008) 956,149
income/(expense)
Net trading gains/(losses) NBEZSFES 115,380 (30,927) 32,770 (45,116) 72,107
Net foreign exchange losses L6 - - - (120) (120)
Other operating income, net Hit WA F5E 86,335 8,368 12,263 18,919 125,885
Operating income EEHA 944,552 355,842 56,952 (203,325) 1,154,021
Share of profits of associate BECERR 7,147 - (3,892 54,645 57,900
Reversal for guarantee losses BOEREEEES 12,535 - - - 12,535
Impairment losses BERERX (224,263 52,687 6,796 (33,173) (197,953)
Operating expenses HESH (273,381) (154,613) (7,930) (238,236) (674,160)
Other net losses HiB k55 (210) (413) - (48,320) (48,943)
Reportable segment AEHAFE, (BX) 466,380 253,503 51,926 (468,409) 303,400

profit/(loss) before taxation
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

34 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 34

Others (Continued)

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities

TERE (&)

RBREIBREED (A)

(@ 2B - BEEREE (&)

(Continued)
At 31 December 2020
#2020 12A31H
Partnership Capital
finance SME  investment and
business lending  management Others Total
Bl BRBAR HBHRFHIE
E3/% i FEXER EEEB B9 Ch
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT  AREFr  AREFT  AREFT  AREFIL
Segment assets ok=is 8,368,921 2,263,005 844,035 2,902,320 14,378,281
Segment liabilities ok=is (3,743,968) (1,417,098) (964,667) (640,934) (6,766,667)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment assets

(b) D BEEMNFEH

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
20214 20204
12H31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRB¥TT AREFT

Assets BE
Reportable segment assets DEEE 11,917,447 14,378,281
Deferred tax assets RIEFTSHEE 439,658 485,324
Consolidated total assets BEASG 12,357,105 14,863,605

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

Exposure to credit, interest rate and liquidity risks arises in the
normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practice used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a customer will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. Credit risk is primarily attributable to unexpired
guarantee issued by the Group and financial assets
measured at amortized cost.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the net carrying amount of each type of financial assets
as at the end of the reporting periods. Except for the
guarantee as disclosed below, the Group has no credit
risk arising from any other guarantee.

Credit risk arising from guarantee business

The Group has taken measures to identify credit risks
arising from guarantee business. The Group manages
credit risk at every stage of the risk management system,
including pre-approval, review and credit approval and
post-transaction monitoring processes. The Group
conducts customer acceptance and due diligence by
business department and risk management department
during the pre-approval process. A transaction may be
subject to the review and approval of credit approval
officer, regional risk committee, deputy chairman and
chairman depending on the transaction size.

B 75 ¥R R B o

5 KEABEEREMIANA

REE

AEEHH %%W R mERER
*U%&/}Ib@.ﬂiﬂ PR

AREBEEFNERNEGELRAREEBRR
&ﬁ?ﬂﬁﬂ*ﬁ GBS LALTE m 515
M AEE KL R

(a) 1=AERR
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Eﬁﬁ ﬁ($$lﬂjiﬂ@ﬂ@§ﬁ§ﬁﬁ
2o ERRREIEREAEHE
E’Hﬂ'JEHTEﬁ&Hz%Eﬁ%EXK
?r%E’\J%%ﬂ‘l;éEH

RS RAERRBRER RS
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EH RERE DD - A E AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk arising from guarantee business
(Continued)

During the post-transaction monitoring process, the
Group conducts on-site inspection and ongoing post-
transaction reviews focusing on various aspects, including
but not limited to customers’ product markets, operating
income, assets and liabilities, cash flows from operating
activities to detect potential risks. The Group takes
proactive preventive actions based on the risk analysis
and design contingency plans accordingly.

When a certain number of clients undertake the same
business activities, stay in the same geographical
locations, or bear similar economic features for their
industries, their ability to fulfill contracts will be affected by
the same economic changes. Concentration of credit risk
reflects the sensitivity of the Group’s operating results to
specific industries or geographical locations. As the Group
mainly operates its businesses in the PRC, there exists
a certain level of geographical concentration risk for its
guarantee and loan portfolios in that it might be affected
by changes in the PRC economic conditions.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk arising from guarantee business
(Continued)

The guarantees issued and outstanding are analyzed by
type as follows :

B 75 ¥R R B o

35 BEEREERESBMIAND
REE (#)

(a)

ERAER (&)

EREBELENEAAR
(#&)

ERBPEREBEINNOT :

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

20214 20204F

12831H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AREFT

Traditional financing guarantees ERmEER 4,152,428 6,738,033
Bond guarantees BEHER 11,959,000 15,229,000
Financing guarantees B & B IR 16,111,428 21,967,033
Subtotal N 16,111,428 21,967,033
Performance guarantees B 4 &R 16,340,651 12,195,003
Maximum amount guarantee EREREE 32,452,079 34,162,036
Less: Customer pledged deposits B EARED (42,401) (57,391)
Net guarantee exposure FERE R 32,409,678 34,104,645

As at 31 December 2021, it is estimated that an increase
in probability of default by 5%, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased the Group’s provisions
for guarantee losses by approximately RMB16.1 million

(2020: RMB17.9 million).

AR EAEREEMEAERT
BHERT MSHEERER
B ERGENE% 15 3] i
202112 A31H M ERE R %
HeEMHAREI61IBEE T
(2020%F12831H :17.98 &
JT) °
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B IS R R Y T

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk arising from financial assets
measured at amortized cost

The Group adopts the same pre-approval, review and
credit approval risk management system for credit risk
arising from financial assets measured at amortized
cost. During the post-transaction monitoring process,
the Group conducts a visit of customers within one
month after disbursement of loans and receivables, and
conducts on-site inspection on a semi-annual basis. The
review focuses on the use of loans and receivables, the
financial and operational conditions of the borrowers or
the progress of projects and status of the collateral.

The Group classifies financial assets measured at
amortized cost into three stages and makes provisions for
expected credit losses accordingly, depending on whether
credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

The three stages are defined as follows:

Stage 1: A financial asset of which the credit risk has not
significantly increase since initial recognition.
The amount equal to 12-month expected credit
losses is recognized as loss allowance.

Stage 2: A financial asset with a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition but is not
considered to be credit-impaired. The amount
equal to lifetime expected credit losses is
recognized as loss allowance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk arising from financial assets
measured at amortized cost (Continued)

Stage 3: A financial asset is considered to be credit-
impaired as at statement of financial position
date. The amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses is recognized as loss allowance.
Refer to Note 1(K)(ii) for the definition of credit-
impaired financial assets.

Significant increase in credit risk

The assessment of significant increase since initial
recognition in the credit risk is performed at least on a
quarterly basis for financial assets held by the Group.
The Group takes into consideration all reasonable and
supportable information (including forward-looking
information) that reflects significantly change in credit
risk for the purposes of classifying financial assets.
The main considerations are regulatory and operating
environment, internal and external credit risk gradings,
debt-servicing capacity, operating capabilities, contractual
terms, and repayment records. The Group compares the
risk of default of a single financial asset or a portfolio of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics as at
statement of financial position date and its risk of default
at the date of initial application to determine changes in
the risk of default during the lifetime of a financial asset
or a portfolio of financial assets. In determining whether
credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group considers factors
indicating whether the probability of default has risen
sharply, whether the financial asset has been past due for
more than 30 days (except micro-lending business, which
is 7 days), whether the market price has been falling to
assess deterioration.
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B IS R R Y T

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment assessment

Generally, a financial asset is considered to be credit-
impaired if:

e |t has been overdue for more than 90 days;

o In light of economic, legal or other factors, the Group
has made concessions to a customer in financial
difficulties, which would otherwise have been
impossible under normal circumstances;

e  The customer is probable to be insolvent or carry out
other financial restructurings;

° Due to serious financial difficulties, the financial asset
cannot continue to be traded in an active market;

e  There are other objective evidences that the financial
asset is impaired.

Description of parameters, assumptions, and
estimation techniques

Expect for the credit-impaired financial assets, expected
credit losses (“ECL”) is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL or lifetime ECL depending on whether
a significant increase in credit risk has occurred since
initial recognition or whether an asset is considered to be
credit-impaired. ECL is the product of the Probability of
Default (“PD”), Loss Given Default (“‘LGD”), and Exposure
at Default (“EAD”), considering the time value of money.
Related definitions are as follows:

PD is the possibility that a customer will default on
its obligation within a certain period of time in light of
forward-looking information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

Description of parameters, assumptions, and
estimation techniques (Continued)

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default
in light of forward-looking information.

EAD refers to the total amount of on- and off-balance
sheet exposures in the event of default and is determined
based on the historical repayment records.

The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation, such
as how the PDs and LGDs of different maturity profiles
change are monitored and reviewed on a quarterly basis
by the Group.

There have been no significant changes in estimation
techniques or significant assumptions made during the
year.

The impairment loss on credit-impaired assets applied
cash flow discount method, if there is objective evidence
that an impairment loss has incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original
effective interest rate. The allowance for impairment loss
is deducted in the carrying amount. The impairment
loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
In determining allowances on an individual basis, the
following factors are considered:

e The sustainability of the customer’s business plan;

e The customer’s ability to improve performance once
a financial difficulty has arisen;
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B IS R R Y T

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

Description of parameters, assumptions, and

estimation techniques (Continued)

e  The estimated recoverable cash flows from projects

and liquidation;

e The availability of other financial support and the

realisable value of collateral; and

e The timing of the expected cash flows.

It may not be possible to identify a single, or discrete
events that result in the impairment, but it may be
possible to identify impairment through the combined
effect of several events. The impairment losses are
evaluated at the end of each reporting period, unless
unforeseen circumstances require more careful attention.

Forward-looking information contained in ECL

The calculation of ECL incorporates forward-looking
information. The Group has performed historical analysis
and identified the key economic variables, including
GDP, CPI, PMI, M2, Industrial Added Value and Real
Estate Climate Index, impacting ECL for each portfolio.
The impact of these economic variables on the PD and
LGD has been determined by performing statistical
regression analysis to understand the correlations among
the historical changes of the economic variables, PD and
LGD. Forecasts of these economic variables are provided
by the Group at least once per year and provide the best

estimate view of the economy over the next year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENT

(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Forward-looking information contained in ECL
(Continued)

When calculating the weighted average ECL, the
optimism, neutral and pessimism scenarios and its
weightings determined by a combination of macro-
statistical analysis and expert judgment are taken into
account by the Group.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off financial assets when it has
exhausted practical recovery efforts and has concluded
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Interest rate risk

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of credit
guarantee, lending, factoring, finance lease and related
consulting services to SME enterprises in the PRC. Its
interest rate risk arises primarily from deposits with banks,
loans and advances to customers and interest-bearing
borrowings.
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B IS R R Y T

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)
(b) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

294

Interest rate profile

The following tables details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s assets and liabilities as at the end of the
year:

BHEREEREMIAND
REE (&)

35

(b) FIRER (AF)

() FRE R
AEEREREERARE
MM EE BRI

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
20214 20204F
12831H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Fixed interest rate FE =
Financial assets SREE
— Cash and cash equivalents -EES 215,526 10,000
— Time and restricted bank deposits - HAFR #E31@E B LA £ K 7F Ef 1,609,552 2,099,118
ERMEFHRES
- Loans and advances to - BWRERRBR 1,225,465 2,136,393
customers
- Receivables for factoring business ~ — & W R FE 7K 1,082,082 1,253,087
— Finance lease receivables - EREEHER 91,665 108,212
4,224,290 5,606,810
Financial liabilities EA =R
— Interest-bearing borrowings - FHEE R (3,115,020) (5,102,166)
— Financial assets sold under -EHOBEEMEE (89,700) (161,700)
repurchase agreement
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (3,204,720) (5,263,866
Net FE 1,019,570 342,944

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
RESERPERAH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R B o

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35 MXEARBREEREMIANA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

(CONTINUED)

(b) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate profile (Continued)

REE (&)

(b) FIREBR (AF)

(i)

MEmBRER (&)

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
20214 20204
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥FT AREFIT
Variable interest rate 7 B I R
Financial assets TMEE
- Cash and cash equivalents -EEES 579,434 1,495,101
- Time and restricted bank deposits - HARFE31E A LA F & E Ef 144,026 111,473
FERMEFEHRES
723,460 1,606,574
Financial liabilities SMaE
____—Interest-bearing borrowings - &S&EH - - =
Net R 723,460 1,606,574
Fixed rate financial liabilities as a BEMESREELBSE 100.00% 100.00%

percentage of total financial liabilities

BEMBDL
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B IS R R Y T

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL

(CONTINUED)

(b) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

INSTRUMENT

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that a general
increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have increased
the Group’s profit before taxation for the next 12
months by approximately RMB3.6 million (2020:

RMB8.0 million).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group at

the end of the reporting period.

(c) Liquidity risk

Management regularly monitors the Group’s liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and

long term.
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables provide an analysis of financial assets
and liabilities of the Group into relevant maturity groupings

35 BEEREERESBMIAND
REE (#)

(c) REMEREER (&)

RER AEEZEREENSE
BB EREEERRIHA DN

based on the remaining periods to repayment at the end wm
of the year:
At 31 December 2021
#2021512A31R
Between Between one
Repayable ~ Within three three months year and More than
Indefinite  on demand months and one year five years five years Total
EHR ERHEE Z=@EANR =@AE-F£ -£ZIE BENE /it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFR AREFT ARETT ABEFT ARETT ARETR
Financial assets SHEE
Cash and cash equivalents gRES - 584,513 210,526 - - - 795,039
Time and restricted bank deposits  #3FR 7E3{E A LA £ K0 E 45 - 139,434 43,323 338,774 1,230,354 1,693 1,753,578
RRAFLHRES
Trade and other receivables MR I H A e M 5 - 1,324,505 692,076 24,138 23,070 = 2,063,879
Receivables for factoring business  EYT{RIE 5 212,504 14,902 224,119 607,446 52,571 - 1,112,142
Loans and advances to customers Z & 7} B3 642,050 112,884 96,907 370,712 88,838 151 1,311,542
Financial assets measured AR BETEREES 1,495,976 311,783 - - - - 1,807,759
at fair value through profit or loss st AEHEZMEREE
Finance lease receivables ERRBERER 86,260 - 865 2,506 1,944 - 91,665
Total &t 2,436,790 2,488,111 1,268,416 1,343,666 1,396,777 1,844 8,935,604
Financial liabilities SHEE
Customer pledged deposits BARES - 7,896 5,421 21,985 4,484 2,615 42,401
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEER - - 366,018 1,735,719 533,706 542,462 3,177,905
Financial assets sold under EfEEEREAE - - 60,564 29,700 - = 90,264
repurchase agreement
Accruals and other payables JEAT R E A e 50 - 132,944 133,255 - - = 266,199
Total At - 140,840 565,258 1,787,404 538,190 545,077 3,576,769
Net BE 2,436,790 2,347,271 703,158 (443,738) 858,587 (543,233) 5,358,835
Guarantee issued RUNBERR
Maximum amount guaranteed”  ER ERE%E - 17,276 8,643,584 10,081,221 13,155,684 511,913 32,409,678
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(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL
(CONTINUED)

INSTRUMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

35 IKEAREERSMIANA
REE (&)

(c) REMEREER (&)

At 31 December 2020

20205128318
Between three  Between one
Repayable on  Within three  months and year and More than
Indefinite demand months one year five years five years Total
EHR ERER ZfEAMA =ZEAZ-F —%EZ1% RAENE At
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  AREFT AREFLT AREFr AREFT AREFr AREFrT
Financial assets SHEE
Cash and cash equivalents ERES = 1,495,187 10,000 = = = 1,505,187
Time and restricted bank deposits  #IfR £3(E A M £ A 5 - 216,780 307,701 272,053 1,409,848 4,209 2,210,591
FRAGELRES
Trade and other receivables U T L R R 0E - 1,744,705 21,325 46,216 53,402 336 1,865,984
Receivables for factoring business &R 3% 2 39,749 796 415,529 787,813 64,579 - 1,308,466
Loans and advances to customers 3 HE K & 2 3K 200,190 82,384 173,126 1,062,472 695,171 210 2,213,553
Financial assets measured at fair AR EEEELEH 1,624,022 511,803 - - - - 2135825
value through profit or loss AEHERMEREE
Finance lease receivables EhEERER 96,582 = 1,243 2,147 8,240 = 108,212
Total &t 1,960,543 4,051,655 928,924 2,170,701 2,231,240 4,755 11,347,818
Financial liabilities SRAE
Customer pledged deposits BARES - 12,988 4,466 37,707 7,360 2,699 65,220
Interest-bearing borrowings FIN b = = 633,194 2046810 2,311,149 171,600 5,162,753
Financial assets sold under EROEEREE - - 4,147 161,700 - - 165,847
repurchase agreement
Accruals and other payables FEST R E A R 5B - 227,563 112,746 - - - 340,309
Total A5t = 240,551 754,553 2,246,217 2,318,509 174,299 5,734,129
Net 3@ 1960543 3,811,104 174,371 (75,516) (87,269) (169,544) 5,613,689
Guarantee issued RENBERR
Maximum amount guaranteed® R LB EE - - 5,927,031 9,866,468 17,249,217 1,061,929 34,104,645

expected future cash outflows.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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The maximum amount guaranteed represents the total
amount of liability less the amount of customer pledged
deposits should all customers default. Since a significant
portion of guarantee is expected to expire without being
called upon, the maximum liabilities do not represent
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL

(CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period)
and the earliest date the Group and the Company can be

required to pay:

35 MBEEABEEREMIAND
INSTRUMENT RfEE (&)

(c) REMEREER (&)

2021 Contractual undiscounted cash flow

S NE P ENNC]
TEERABRATRENARE
ERE (BREERARNEFTERN
B MRZFBHMKRBNRRE
HIRMBITHNRFENNE) D
Fera W HAR - LA KRR E SR AT
WE&FHBPET:

R E HIR A 3F

WANEXERREFRER
Between  Between one Carrying
Repayable on ~ Within three  three months year and More than amount at
Indefinite demand months  and one year five years five years Total 31 December
12A31H
EHR BiEE ZfEAMA Z@ERE-F£ -£Z1% AEHNE At EEEE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFLT  ARBFRT  ARBTT AREFLT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETZ
Customer pledged deposits 7 ARE S - 7,896 5,421 21,985 4,484 2,615 42,401 42,401
Interest-bearing borrowings T B & - - 402,633 1,795,740 614,330 667,987 3,480,690 3,177,905
Financial assets sold under ~ EHEBEERHEE - = 62,117 32,549 = = 94,666 90,264
repurchase agreement
Accruals and other payables B E ftt FE (S 508 - 132,944 133,255 - - - 266,199 266,199
Total At - 140,840 603,426 1,850,274 618,814 670,602 3,883,956 3,576,769
2020 Contractual undiscounted cash flow
XNFREFRERRLR
Between three  Between one Carrying
Repayable on Within three months and yearand  More than five amount at
Indefinite demand months one year five years years Total 31 December
12A318
EHR EREE ZEAMR =Z@ERAE§ %1% AFENUE At REER
RMB'000 AMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 AMB'000 RMB000
AREFL  ARETT ARETr AREFr ARETT  AREFr  AREFr  AKETZ
Customer pledged deposits ~ FARE £ - 12,988 4,466 37,707 7,360 2,699 65,220 65,220
Interest-bearing borrowings 5t {3 - - 719,046 2,088,425 2,395,348 171,722 5,374,541 5,162,753
Financial assets sold under ~ B EESBEE - - 30,000 176,700 - - 206,700 165,847
repurchase agreement
Accruals and other payables &t & L ftt FE {3 3B - 207,563 112,746 - - - 340,309 340,309
Total Rt - 240,551 866,258 2,302,832 2,402,708 174,421 5,986,770 5,734,129
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B IS R R Y T

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENT

(CONTINUED)

(d) Fair values measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorized
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

e |level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENT

(CONTINUED)

(d) Fair values measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Group has a team headed by the finance
manager performing valuations for the financial
instruments, including the unlisted debt instrument,
listed and unlisted equity instrument, and non-
performing asset packages. The team reports directly
to the chief financial officer and the audit committee.
A valuation report with analysis of changes in fair
value measurement is prepared by the team at each
interim and annual reporting date, and is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer. Discussion
of the valuation process and results with the chief
financial officer and the audit committee is held twice
a year, to coincide with the reporting dates.

B 75 ¥R R B o

35 BEEREERESBMIAND
REE (#)

(d) A5

(i)

Fair value at

31 December

BEFE (&)

N

BARBEESENSHE
ERGE (H)
RAEBEEX ()

AEEGEE -SSP BHERE
REZEBK BERERT
E(BRIFLHEBIE:
£ R LT AR AR R
TREEB)ETHE %
B B B % 1 B TS AR B e AT
ZEBEWE-HEANEE
AAEEHOMZAERST
HEBR ST A RFERE
FHIRE YHUKRES
B Ko HtfE - B s A E B 12
LGRS FHEMHRERE
AEZESETRARE R A
R E B R — B

Fair value measurements as at

12A31H 31 December 2021 categorised into
DAEE 202112831 BAREBESE
2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
20214 F-ERX FZER E=ZER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETr ARBETT AREFT
Recurring fair value REHQAABETE
measurements
Financial assets: TREE:
Debt instrument BRIA
- Unlisted -JEm 795,462 - - 795,462
Equity instrument BEaTA
- Listed il 55,814 55,814 - -
- Unlisted -3kEm 295,050 - - 295,050
Non-performing asset TREER: 661,433 - - 661,433
packages measurement
financial assets:
Total At 1,807,759 55,814 - 1,751,945
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B IS R R Y T

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL

(CONTINUED)

(d) Fair values measurement (Continued)

INSTRUMENT

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at

REE (&)

35 BKEBREEREMIANA

(d) RAEEE (HF)

() BEPrARBEEFAENEHE

fair value (Continued) EREE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NAEEEN (E)
Fair value at
31 December Fair value measurements as at
12A31H 31 December 2020 categorised into
AREE 2020F12A31B DA BEDE
2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2020 F-EBR E-ER EZER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Recurring fair value REHQAAEHETE
measurements
Financial assets: TREE:
Debt instrument EEIA
- Unlisted -3k Emm 1,058,085 - - 1,058,085
Equity instrument BRIA
- Listed -k 54,614 54,614 - -
— Unlisted -3k Emm 442,602 - = 442,602
Non-performing asset TREER: 580,524 - - 580,524
packages measurement
financial assets:
Total &t 2,135,825 54,614 - 2,081,211
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(CONTINUED)

35

INSTRUMENT

(d) Fair values measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at

fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements is

B 75 ¥R R B o

BHEREEREMIAND
REE (&)

(d) RAEEE (HF)
() BEAARBEEAENEHME
EREE (H)
A BEEX(E)

FEMA R BEFEER

as below: (INE
Significant
Valuation unobservable
techniques inputs
BERFITEHE
& {8+ i LN ¢
Financial assets at fair value NAnEBEF=8EE
through profit or loss AFAEHESNEREE

Equity instrument: T HE:
— Unlisted -3Em Market Discount
comparable for lack of
companies marketability
miF At A a mEESTE

Debt instrument: BEFTE:
— Unlisted -t Discounted Risk-adjusted
cash flow discount rate
REeERME AR FAEMEX
Non-performing asset packages TRE&EES Discounted Risk-adjusted
cash flow discount rate
ReERWHE RABAEMREX
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENT

(CONTINUED)

(d) Fair values measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair value of unlisted equity instruments is
determined using the price/earning ratios of
comparable listed companies adjusted for lack of
marketability discount. The fair value measurement
is negatively correlated to the discount for lack
of marketability. As at 31 December 2021, it
is estimated that with all other variables held
constant, a decrease/increase in discount for lack of
marketability by 5% would have increased/decreased
the Group’s profit by RMB4.1 million (2020: RMB5.9
million).

The fair value of debt instruments and non-
performing asset packages is determined using
discounted cash flow model and the significant
unobservable input used in the fair value
measurement is risk-adjusted discount rate. The
fair value measurement is negatively correlated to
the risk-adjusted discount rate. As at 31 December
2021, it is estimated that with all other variables held
constant, an increase/decrease in the risk-adjusted
discount rate by 5% would have decreased/
increased the Group’s profit by RMB3.8 million
(2020: RMB4.7 million).
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(d) Fair values measurement (Continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The movement during the year in the balance of
Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows:

35

B 75 ¥R R B o

BHEREEREMIAND

REE (&)
(d) RAEEE (HF)
() BEAARBEEAENEHME
EREE (H)

FIBRAABEELR

REIAE ST
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20214 20204

12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFTT ARETT

At 1 January ®1A18 2,081,211 1,738,081
Payment for purchases BE 405,088 755,762
Net unrealised gains or losses RERIEEEROAREIR 12,953 (27,747)
recognized in profit or loss during M B R
the year
Proceeds from sales & o (747,307) (384,885)
At 31 December W12A31H 1,751,945 2,081,211

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, there were no transfers into or out of Level 3.

RE 22021F12A831H &
2020512 A31H L FEE &
FZEBREASELNIE
e
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENT

(CONTINUED)

(d) Fair values measurement (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Valuation of financial instruments with
significant unobservable inputs

Financial instruments valued with significant
unobservable inputs are primarily the unlisted debt
instrument, unlisted equity instrument, and non-
performing asset packages, which are classified
under fair value hierarchy at level 3 financial
instruments. These financial instruments are valued
based on a combination of market data, internal
valuation models and valuation report, if any, issued
by an independent licensed valuer. The models
incorporate various non-observable assumptions
such as discount rate reflecting specific risks relating
to the financial instruments and average volatilities
for the related business, etc.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortized cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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36 COMMITMENTS 36 #iE
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 (a) R2021F12831H I K R &
December 2021 not provided for in the financial BHRERPRIUNEREEEN
statements were as follows: T

31 December 31 December
2021 2020

20215 20204
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT

Commitments in respect of purchase of ERWE WEREE
property, plant and equipment
— Contracted for -REBEERE - 1,918

37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37 EXBHARS

(a) Transactions with key management personnel (a) AREEAEEHMH
remuneration

31 December 31 December
2021 2020

20214% 20204
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FiT ARKEFTT

Key management personnel remuneration  BASRE IR A B 3N (A7:20)) 19,276 28,837
(Note ()))

Notes: Wizt

()  Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group () AEENBEREEASTFHE
includes amounts paid to the Company’s directors as BERF7TRENINFAR
disclosed in Note 7 and the highest paid employees as AIEEMN 28 RN M E8K R
disclosed in Note 8. HR=E AL

(i)  All the balances with key management personnel are (i) FTEBEEEABFHMALH
included in ‘staff costs’ (see Note 5(a)). RAFHEBENEREE (R

#5@)) °
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37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Transactions with related parties other than key

37 EXEBMAEIRS (&)

(b) EEBREAGEEIE A S LAY BE

management personnel FRENRS
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥Frr ARKFIL
Guarantee and consulting fee income EREEHERA - 21,242
Re-guarantee expenses BERER = (779)
Interest and handling fee income FMERFEEWA 109,564 152,250
Interest and handling fee expense FERFEES N (39,249) (45,287)
Acquisition of debt instrument BEEE 46,960 232,740
Additions of interest-bearing borrowings B S 18 R N EE 300,000 538,000
Decrease of interest-bearing borrowings B S 18 ROR D 58 (338,000) (460,000)
Decrease of financial assets sold under EEELDECHERE (131,700) =
repurchase agreement
Repayment of loans and advances L gEI=-/5E-EN (11,237) (208,280)
to customers
Providing guarantee HEIMNE R - 1,128,860
Releasing guarantee N BR FE IR (464,430) (965,820)
Other revenue H A - 1,811
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37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

37 EXBHBAERS (&)

(c) EEBREAGEEIE A S LASMHY BE B

(c) Balances with related parties other than key

management personnel

FRENXRZREEREGERAN
BREE

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FiT AREFT
Assets BE
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 12(a)) B Ew (Kfit12a) 82,588 573,573
Time and restricted bank deposits HAPR 7E31E A M /) & 5 14,275 65,972
ERAMFHERRES
Trade and other receivables JE U R E At JrE L SR IE 48,763 304,864
Loans and advances to customers BERMERRER 90,350 77,587
Liabilities Bf&
Interest-bearing borrowings B S & 5K 470,000 508,000
Financial assets sold under repurchase EHOESmEEXR - 131,700
agreement
Accruals and other payables FE ST R H A FE A5 3R IE 26,094 24,055
Customer pledged deposits FARES 5,700 =
Off balance sheet FINFETE
Outstanding guarantee HINER 254,440 718,870
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38 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 38 &4 A MBI &K

POSITION
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20214 20204
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETFT AR¥FrT
Assets BE
Cash and cash equivalents EEEe 1,804 21,729
Trade and other receivables JE U Re E At i Lk SR IE 1,638,026 1,470,835
Interest in associate REFIRERE —BatE 1,246,477 1,127,742
Investments in subsidiaries REIRERE B A A 8,095,584 8,177,250
Property, plant and equipment LR N 1,816 2,470
Intangible assets mEEE 1,562 1,703
Total assets WEE 10,985,269 10,801,729
Liabilities =R
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEER - 188,000
Accruals and other payables FEET N Eo A B A5 FRO0E 4,122,846 3,872,368
Total liabilites = #&E 4122846 4,060,368
NET ASSETS EEFE 6,862,423 6,741,361
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXAR#EE
Share capital f% 7R 4,600,000 4,600,000
Reserves e 2,262,423 2,141,361
TOTAL EQUITY EREs 6,862,423 6,741,361
Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on KT = ERIRENR2022F3/30
30 March 2022. =Rk
Name: Zhang Guoxiang Name: Ren Weidong (Company stamp)
Position: Chairman of the Board Position: Chief Financial Officer
RE EHR ARMNE
EFEFE BHEMEE

31 O Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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39 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Note 35 contains information about the assumptions and their
risk factors relating to fair value of financial instruments. Other
key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(@) Impairment of financial assets measured at
amortised cost

The Group reviews portfolios of financial assets measured
at amortized cost to assess whether any impairment
losses exist and the amount of impairment losses if there
is any indication of impairment. Objective evidence for
impairment includes observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows for financial assets measured at amortized cost. It
also includes observable data indicating adverse changes
in the repayment status of the debtors, or change in
national or local economic conditions that causes the
default in payment.

The impairment loss for financial assets measured at
amortized cost using the expected credit loss model
is subjected to a number of key parameters and
assumptions, including the identification of loss stages,
estimates of probability of default, loss given default,
exposures at default and discount rate, adjustments for
forward-looking information and other adjustment factors.
The expected credit losses for financial assets measured
at amortized cost are derived from estimates whereby
management takes into consideration historical data, the
historical loss experience and other adjustment factors.
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of the
relevant observable data that reflect current economic
conditions and the judgment based on management’s
historical experience. Management reviews the
selection of those parameters and the application of the
assumptions regularly to reduce any difference between
loss estimates and actual loss.
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39 Far ARG 45
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

39 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of long-lived assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of a
long-lived asset may not be recoverable, the asset may
be considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss may
be recognized in accordance with accounting policy for
impairment of long-lived assets as described in Note 1(n)
(ii). The carrying amounts of long-lived assets are reviewed
periodically in order to assess whether the recoverable
amounts have declined below the carrying amounts.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is
reduced to recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and the
value in use. In determining the value in use, expected
future cash flows generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value, which requires significant judgment
relating to the level of revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of the recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections
of the level of revenue and amount of operating costs.
Changes in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the carrying value of the assets and could
result in additional impairment charge or reversal of
impairment in future periods.

Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
depreciated and amortized using the straight-line method
over their useful lives after taking into account estimated
residual value. The useful lives and residual value are
regularly reviewed to determine the depreciation and
amortization costs charged in each reporting period. The
useful lives are determined based on historical experience
of similar assets and the estimated technical changes. If
there is an indication that there has been a change in the
factors used to determine the depreciation, the rate of
depreciation is revised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Provisions for guarantee losses

(e)

The Group makes reasonable estimate on costs
required to fulfil the relevant obligation of guarantee
contracts when the Group computes the provisions of
guarantee losses. Such estimation is made based on the
available information as at the balance sheet date and is
determined by the Group’s practical experience, taking
into consideration of industry information and market
data.

Tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgment on
the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group
carefully evaluates the tax implications of transactions and
tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislation. Deferred tax assets
are recognized for tax losses not yet used and temporary
deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets
can only be recognized to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
the unused tax credits can be utilized, management’s
judgment is required to assess the probability of
future taxable profits. Management's assessment is
constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets
are recognized if it becomes probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

40 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new
standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2021 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be relevant to
the Group.

40 A8 £2021F12A31BH L &
ECEMAEEKRERWIEL -
HEARBENBEESE

HENEMBREROTIZEAH 5
SR ASEBMZHERE E2021F
12 A31H IEFE i R A B It 5 B
ERRAL AR RPEOERT R —HFTLE
Bl—— (BB SRS EA FE175
RBERE) A TEFI Al AL AN F
1R

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

RUATT B #Is AR R 4R

Ve AT EIM AR

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property,
Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts
—Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of
liabilities as current or non-current

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of accounting
policies

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of
accounting estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax
related to assets and liabilities arising from
a single transaction
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

41

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITY

The Group has consolidated structured entities which issued
trust plans of RMB114.7 million at 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020: RMB534.1 million). The Group acquired
all the interests of the subordinated tranches of the trust
plans and the Group provided financial guarantee against the
investors that required the senior tranches.

The Group has consolidated structured entities which initiated
partnerships of RMB1,657.8 million at 31 December 2021
(81 December 2020: RMB1,595.4 million). The Group has the
right to variable returns from its involvement and has the ability
to affect its returns through its power over the entity and the
Group provided financial guarantee against the limited liabilities
partners that required the fixed returns.

As at 31 December 2021, the above structured entities
consolidated by the Group amounted to RMB1,772.5 million
(81 December 2020: RMB2,129.5 million).

The relevant activities of the structured entities are directed
by means of contractual arrangement and the entity has been
designed so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant
factor in deciding who has control. These structured entities
are consolidated as the Group is exposed or has the right to
variable returns from its involvement with these entities and
has the ability to affect its returns through its power over the
entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS R R Y T

42

43

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform
to current year’s presentation and to provide comparative
amounts in respect of items disclosed for the first time in 2021.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 10 January 2022, the Company and Chengdu Metallic
Materials Co., Ltd. (B #8m €& E M £ B R A7) entered
into an equity transfer agreement pursuant to which the
Company has agreed to acquire, at the total consideration
of RMB116,000,000, an aggregate of approximately 14.29%
equity interest in Sichuan Micro-credit from Chengdu Metallic
Materials Co., Ltd. Upon completion of the equity transfer,
Sichuan Micro-credit will become a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.
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